
THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
2015 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
  
 

A G E N D A 
      

DATE:  Wednesday, October 21, 2015 
 
CLOSED MEETING:    5:30 P.M. 
REGULAR MEETING:  7:00 P.M.  

 
≠ Denotes resolution prepared  
 

1. Call the Meeting to Order  
 
2. Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest & the General Nature Thereof. 
 

≠  3. Adoption and Receipt of Minutes of the Previous Meeting. 
 

(a) Special Council Meeting –   September 29, 2015 
(b) Budget Meeting – September 30, 2015 
(c) Council Meeting – October 7, 2015  
(d) Closed Council Meeting – October 7, 2015 

 
4. Business Arising Out of the Minutes. 
 
5. PUBLIC MEETINGS  
 

1. Rezoning Application File D14/FRO – Glenn and Yvonne Frosch c/o Robert 
and Lisa Frosch, Concession Gore, Part Lots 1-3, municipally known as 
6525 Concession 1 

 
*note this Public meeting will be held on Wednesday, October 21, 2015 at 
6:30 p.m. at the Municipal Complex – 7404 Wellington Rd. 34    

 
(a) Notice of Public Meeting – Rezoning Application File D14/FRO – Glenn and 

Yvonne Frosch c/o Robert and Lisa Frosch, Concession Gore, Part Lots 1-3, 
municipally known as 6525 Concession 1. 
 

(b) Report PD-2015-025 – Information Report - Rezoning Application File 
D14/FRO Glenn and Yvonne Frosch c/o Robert and Lisa Frosh, Concession 
Gore, Part Lots 1-3, municipally known as 6525 Concession 1.  

  



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
October 21, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 

  
 

P a g e  | 2 
 

 
2.  Community Improvement Plan  

 
*note this Public meeting will be held on Thursday, November 5, 2015 at 
7:00 p.m. at the Municipal Complex- 7404 Wellington Rd. 34    

 
(a) Notice of Public Meeting and Open House. 

 
 
6. COMMUNICATIONS  
 
≠1.  Green Legacy Committee  
 

(a) Correspondence from County of Wellington regarding Local Representative – 
Green Legacy Committee dated October 5, 2015.   

  
  2.  2015 Annual Compliance Assessment Report  
 

(a) Correspondence from Robert Gibson Consulting Services Inc. regarding 
Annual Compliance Assessment Report for 2015 – Licence #5654 (Martini 
Pit), North ½ Lot 4, Concession 4, Township of Puslinch Licensee:  TGL Ltd. 
dated September 25, 2015 with attachment. (6576 Forestell Rd)  
 

(b) Correspondence from Robert Gibson Consulting Services Inc. regarding 
Annual Compliance Assessment Report for 2015 – Licence #5610 (Philips Pit 
Pit), Part Lots 4 & 5 , Concession 5, Township of Puslinch Licensee:  TGL 
Ltd. dated September 25, 2015 with attachment. 
 

(c)  Correspondence from Robert Gibson Consulting Services Inc. regarding 
Annual Compliance Assessment Report for 2015 – Licence #5709 McKenzie 
Brothers (Guelph) Limited, Part Lots 3 - 5 , Concession 9, Township of 
Puslinch Licensee:  TGL Ltd. dated September 25, 2015 with attachment. 
(661 Watson Rd S.). 
 

(d) Correspondence from Robert Gibson Consulting Services Inc. regarding 
Annual Compliance Assessment Report for 2015 – Licence #15338 McKenzie 
Brothers (Guelph) Limited, Part Lot 3, Concession 9, Township of Puslinch 
dated September 25, 2015 with attachment. (661 Watson Rd S.) 

  



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
October 21, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 

  
 

P a g e  | 3 
 

 
3.  Dufferin Aggregates  
 

(a) Correspondence from Dufferin Aggregates regarding August 2015 monitoring 
report Mill Creek Pit Licence #5738, Lots 21-24, Conc. 2 dated September 11, 
2015. (7115 Concession 2) 

 
Mr. Stan Denhoed, Harden Environmental Services Ltd. has reviewed 
the report and is satisfied that there are no exceedences.  

 
(b) Correspondence from CRH Canada Group Inc. regarding Dufferin 

Aggregates 2015 Compliance Assessment Reports – Mill Creek Pit Licence 
#5738 with attachment dated September 25, 2015 with attachment.  – 7115 
Concession 2 
 

(c) Correspondence from CRH Canada Group Inc. regarding Dufferin 
Aggregates 2015 Compliance Assessment Reports – Licence #5483 & 5609 
Aberfoyle Pits dated September 25, 2015 with attachments.  
 

(d) Correspondence from Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry regarding 
Licence Amendment under the Aggregate Resources Act, Licence Number 
5483 dated September 10, 2015. (Aberfoyle Pit).   
 

(e) Correspondence from Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry regarding 
Licence Amendment under the Aggregate Resources Act, Licence Number 
5609 dated September 10, 2015. (Aberfoyle Pit 2). 
 

(f) Correspondence from County of Wellington regarding Application for Official 
Plan Amendment, County File OP-2015-04, Dufferin Aggregates – Mill Creek 
Pit, University of Guelph, Part of Lot 24, Concession 1, Puslinch Township, 
Part Lots 21, 22, 23, and 24, Concession 2, Puslinch Township dated 
September 28, 2015.   

 
4. Licensees Compliance Assessment Report – Aggregate Resources Act  
 

St. Marys Cement Inc. (Canada)  
 
(a) Licence ID 5497 (McNally Pit) - 4350 Con. 7 
(b) Licence ID 5531 (Edgington 1 Pit), Pt Lot 25, Con. 7   
(c) Licence ID 5563 (Coburn Pit) – Pt Lot 23, Con. 7  
(d) Licence ID 5520 (Aberfoyle Pit) – Pt Lot 24 & 25, Con 7 
(e) Licence ID 5734 (Edgington 2 Pit) – Pt Lot 25, Con. 7  



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
October 21, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 

  
 

P a g e  | 4 
 

(f) Licence ID 5737 (McMilan Pit) – Pt. Lot 22, Con. 1 
(g) Licence ID 48576 (Tikal) -  Pt. Lot 21, Con. 9 – Victoria Rd. 
(h) Licence ID 624864 (McNally East) – Pt. Lot 27, Con. 2 
(i) Licence ID 625284 (Neubauer pit) – Pt. Lot 27, Con. 1  
(j) Licence ID 129817 (Mast Snyder) - 6848 Forestell Rd 
(k) Licence ID 625189 – Pt. Lots 1 & 2, Conc. 3&4 -  6618 and 6524 Roszell Rd 
(l) Licence ID 624952 (Lanci) –  Concession 2/Sideroad 25 
(m) Licence ID 17600 -  Pt. Lot 26, Conc 1 -  4313 Sideroad 25 S 

 
5. Meadows of Aberfoyle   
 

(a) Correspondence from Stan Denhoed, Harden Environmental Services Ltd. to 
Township regarding Permit to Take Water – Meadows of Aberfoyle dated 
October 1, 2015.  
 

≠6. County of Wellington – Draft Official Plan Amendment to Update 
Community Improvement Policies   

 
(a) Correspondence from County of Wellington to Township regarding Request 

for Comment, Draft Official Plan Amendment to Update Community 
Improvement Policies with attachments dated October 6, 2015.  

 
≠7.  Speed Limit Request 
 

(a) Correspondence from Bill Dennis regarding request to lower speed limit – 
Watson Rd. South of 401 to Leslie Rd. dated October 12, 2015.   
 

≠8. Intergovernmental Affairs 
 

(a) Various correspondence for review. 
 
 
7. DELEGATIONS/PRESENTATIONS  
 
≠1. 7:05 p.m. – Mr. Brandon Flewwelling, Associate-Senior Planner, GSP Group Inc. 

and Mr. Hugh Handy, Associate, GSP Group Inc. regarding Persian Investments 
Inc. * See Agenda Item 8.4(b)   

  



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
October 21, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 

  
 

P a g e  | 5 
 

 
≠2.  7:25 p.m. – Mr. Don Kudo, Deputy City Engineering/Manager, Infrastructure 

Services and Mr. Philip Rowe from R. J. Burnside and Associates, regarding 
Update on City of Guelph, Niska Rd. Environmental Assessment.   
 
(a) Municipal Class Environmental Assessment for Niska Road Improvements – 

Presentation by R. J. Burnside and Associates and City of Guelph  
Supporting documents: 

 
i. Niska Road Cultural Heritage Landscape Addendum report 
ii. City of Guelph Heritage Committee and River Systems Advisory 

Committee resolutions 
 

*note delegations with respect to the City of Guelph R.J. Burnside and 
Associates Niska Road presentation will immediately follow the 
presentation. 

 
≠3.   Ms. Sandy Nichols, regarding Niska Rd.  
 
≠4.   Mr. Shugang Li, regarding Niska Rd.  
 
≠5.   Ms. Nicole Abouhalka, regarding Niska Bridge.  
 
≠6.   Ms. Hanna Boos, regarding Niska Bridge.  
 
 
8. REPORTS 
 
1. Puslinch Fire and Rescue Services  
 
≠ (a) Puslinch Fire and Rescue Services Response Report – September 2015   
 
2. Finance Department 
 
≠ (a) Financial Reports –September 2015  
 

i. Financial Report as of September 30, 2015  
ii. Cheque Register –September 1 to  September 30, 2015 
iii. Financial Report By Department –September 2015  
iv. Total Revenues, Contributions from Working Reserves and Expenditures 

– All Departments –  September 2015 
 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
October 21, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 

  
 

P a g e  | 6 
 

3. Administration Department 
 
 None.  
  
4. Planning and Building Department 
 
≠ (a) Chief Building Official Report – September, 2015  
 
≠ (b) Report from County of Wellington Planning and Development Department 

regarding Zoning By-law Amendment – Application D14/PER, Part Lot 16, 
Concession 7, Township of Puslinch, 424 Maltby Road – Persian Investments 
Limited Proposed Industrial Development with attachments dated October 14, 
2015.   

 
≠ (c) Report PD-2015-026 - Conditional Building Permit Agreement - Release of 

Securities – Jeffrey Born and Vicki Dickson – Con 10 PT Lot 15 RP 61R5385 
Part 2 PT - 4614 Concession 11, Puslinch 

 
5. Roads & Parks Department  
 
≠ (a) Report PW-2015-004 – Costing of Paved Shoulders and Edge Line Painting 
≠ (b) Report PW-2015-005 – Authorizing Speed Limits By-Law 53/12   
  
6.  Recreation Department 
 
 None.  
 
7.  Mayor’s Updates  
 
 None.  
 

≠ 9. NOTICES OF MOTION  
  

   (a) Councillor Bulmer - Amendment to the Township’s Site Plan Control By-law 
16/08.   

 
* note to be distributed under separate cover on Monday, October 19, 2015  

 
10.  COMMITTEE  MINUTES  
 
 None.  
 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
October 21, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 

  
 

P a g e  | 7 
 

11. MUNICIPAL ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
12. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

≠ 13. CLOSED ITEMS  
 

(a) Confidential Communication from Aird & Berlis LLP dated October 9, 2015, 
regarding litigation or potential litigation, including matters before 
administrative tribunals affecting the municipality or local board and advice 
that is subject to Solicitor-Client privilege, including communications 
necessary for that purpose – Reid – 7827 Wellington Rd. 36 

 
(b) Confidential Verbal Report from Karen Landry CAO/Clerk, regarding litigation 

or potential litigation, including matters before administrative tribunals 
affecting the municipality or local board – 599 Arkell Rd.  

 
(c) Confidential Verbal Report from Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk, regarding a 

proposed or pending acquisition or disposition of land by the municipality or 
local board and litigation or potential litigation, including matters before 
administrative tribunals, affecting the municipality or local board – Plan 386 

 
14. BY-LAWS  
 

None.  
 
≠15. CONFIRMING BY-LAW  
 

(a) By-law to confirm the proceedings of Council for the Corporation of the 
Township of Puslinch 

 
≠16. ADJOURNMENT 
 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
September 29, 2015 SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

M I N U T E S 
 

DATE:  Tuesday, September 29, 2015  
TIME:   1:00 P.M. 

 
The September 29, 2015 Special Council Meeting was held on the above date and called to 
order at 1:05 p.m. in the Puslinch Community Centre, 23 Brock Rd South, Guelph. 
 
1. ATTENDANCE:   
 

Mayor Dennis Lever 
Councillor Matthew Bulmer 
Councillor Susan Fielding - Absent 
Councillor Ken Roth  
Councillor Wayne Stokley  
 
STAFF IN ATTENDANCE: 

 
1. Donna Tremblay, Deputy Clerk 
2. Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk  
3. Mary Hasan, Director of Finance/Treasurer 
4. Paul Creamer, Acting Director of Finance/Treasurer 
5. Don Creed, Director of Public Works & Parks  
6. Steve Goode, Fire Chief  
7. Robert Kelly, Chief Building Official  

    
OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE 
 
1. John Whitesell, Managing Partner, Whitesell & Company 

  
2. DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST & THE GENERAL NATURE THEREOF: 

 
None.  
 

3.   Community Based Strategic Plan – Planning Session 
 

i. Mission 
ii. Vision  
iii. Strategic Priorities  

 
Mr. John Whitesell, Managing Director, Whitesell & Company lead Council and Township 
Staff  in several small group discussions regarding the Township’s Mission and Vision and 
Strategic Priorities.     
 

4. CONFIRMING BY-LAW  
 

(a) By-Law to confirm the proceedings of Council for the Corporation of the 
Township of Puslinch  
 

Resolution 2015-356     Moved by Councillor Stokley and  
Seconded by Councillor Roth 

 
That the following By-law be taken as read three times and finally passed in open 
Council: 

 
• By-Law 53/15 being a by-law to confirm the proceedings of Council for the 

Corporation of the Township of Puslinch at its meeting held on the 29th day of 
September 2015. 

 
CARRIED 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
September 29, 2015 SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
5.  ADJOURNMENT: 
 

Resolution No. 2015-357:   Moved by Councillor Stokley and  
Seconded by Councillor Roth 
 

That Council hereby adjourns at 4:57 p.m. 
    
CARRIED 

 
   ________________________________________ 

     Dennis Lever, Mayor 
    

 ________________________________________ 
  Karen Landry, CAO Clerk 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
September 30, 2015 COUNCIL BUDGET MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 
M I N U T E S 

 
DATE:  Wednesday, September 30, 2015 
TIME:   9:00 A.M. 

 
The Council Budget Meeting was held on the above date and called to order at 9:00 a.m. in the 
Council Chambers, Aberfoyle. 
 
1. ATTENDANCE:   
 

Mayor Dennis Lever 
Councillor Matthew Bulmer 
Councillor Susan Fielding  
Councillor Ken Roth 
Councillor Wayne Stokley 
 
STAFF IN ATTENDANCE: 

 
1. Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk 
2. Donna Tremblay, Deputy Clerk 
3. Mary Hasan, Director Finance/Treasurer 
4. Paul Creamer, Acting Director Finance/Treasurer 
5. Don Creed, Director of Public Works and Parks 
6. Steve Goode, Fire Chief  
7. Robert Kelly, Chief Building Official 

 
2. DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST & THE GENERAL NATURE THEREOF: 
 

None.  
 

3. REPORTS: 
 

Finance Department  
 

1.  Report FIN-2015-031 – 2016 Proposed Budget 
 
 Mary Hasan, Director of Finance/Treasurer provided Council with a summary of the key 

points regarding Report FIN-2015-031 – 2016 Proposed Budget.  
 
Council requested staff to follow up on the following related to the Proposed 2016 
Capital and Operating Budgets as follows:   
 
Item – Nassageweya Puslinch Townline 
 
Councillor Bulmer inquired as to whether the Township had considered offering a lesser 
amount than the 50% request for the road repairs given that the Township has 
jurisdiction over 1.5 km of the 6 km of roadway.  Don Creed, Director of Public Works 
and Parks indicated that the Township had previously provided 30% of the project or 
$300,000 which was financed over 10 years by the Town of Milton.  Mr. Creed indicated 
that the Township could inquire of Milton as to whether this arrangement could be made 
again on this project.  
 
Badeoch Community Centre  
 
Council requested staff to switch the timing of the exterior wall repairs with the interior 
wall repairs.  



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
September 30, 2015 COUNCIL BUDGET MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 
Item Caroll Pond & Lesic-Jassal Municipal Drain 
 
Council inquired as to whether the Township has a Maintenance Agreement with the 
County of Wellington and whether the Township has inquired of the County of 
Wellington as to whether they wish to participate in the costs.   Karen Landry, 
CAO/Clerk advised that the Township would being making these inquires of the County 
of Wellington.  
 
Item Clothing and Safety – All Departments         
 
Council requested that staff provide a chart showing the total annual costs of this 
expense.  Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk advised the Chart will be updated and staff will 
report back with this information when reporting back on the Expense Policy.  
 
Item Contributions to Working Reserves and Reserve Funds  
 
Council expressed concerns regarding the 2016 proposed budget not including 
contributions to working reserves and reserve funds.  
 
Council recessed from 10:55 a.m. to 11:00 a.m.  
 
Item – Parks Trail Development  

 
Councillor Roth inquired as to whether the works associated with the trail development 
could be undertaken by Township Staff.  Councillor Bulmer advised that Friends of Mill 
Creek may be interested in working with the Township through their Ranger Program.  
Councillor Bulmer requested that staff provide him with details of the scope of work and 
he could make inquiries at the next Friends of Mill Creek meeting regarding their 
interest.  

 
Item - Video and Audio Recording of Council Meetings  

 
Council requested staff to follow up on audio recordings of Council meetings versus 
audio and video recordings.  

 
Resolution 2015-358 :  Moved by Councillor Stokley and  

Seconded by Councillor Fielding  
 

That Report FIN-2015-031 - regarding the 2016 Proposed Budget be received; and 
 
That the Parkland Trail Development project at the Puslinch Community Centre Park with 
an estimated cost of $37,800 be funded as $18,900 through the Wellington County Trail 
Funding Program and $18,900 through the Township’s Parks and Recreation Development 
Charge Reserve Fund; and 
 
That staff report back on the implementation of a $1,000,000 capital tax funded program in 
May 2016 to effectively address the Township’s future capital requirements. 

 
CARRIED 
 
2. Report FIN-2015-032 – 2015 Completed Capital Projects (Projected)  
 
 
Resolution 2015-359 : Moved by Councillor Stokley and  
  Seconded by Councillor Fielding  

 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
September 30, 2015 COUNCIL BUDGET MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

That Report FIN-2015-032 regarding the 2015 Completed Capital Projects (Projected) be 
received.  
 
CARRIED 

 
3.  Report FIN-2015-33 – Balances in Working Reserves and Reserve Funds (Projected)  
 
Councillor Bulmer requested that for clarification purposes the language be changed from 
Reserve Funds to Restricted Reserve Funds and Unrestricted Reserve Funds.   
 
Resolution 2015-360 : Moved by Councillor Roth and  
  Seconded by Councillor Bulmer  
 
That Report FIN-2015-33 regarding the Balances in Working Reserves and Reserve Funds 
(Projected) be received.  
 
CARRIED 

 
4. 2016 Proposed Capital Budget Presentations  
 

(a) Steve Goode, Fire Chief – Fire and Rescue Services Department 
(b) Don Creed, Director Public Works and Parks - Public Works Department, Optimist 

Recreation Centre and Parks Department 
(c) Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk –Corporate Department 
(d) Mary Hasan, Director of Finance/Treasurer – Finance Department  
(e) Donna Tremblay, Deputy Clerk – Puslinch Community Centre 
(f) Robert Kelly, Chief Building Official – Building Department and Planning Department  

 
Steve Goode, Fire Chief made a presentation to Council regarding the Quint Apparatus.    

 
Council requested that further Operating and Capital Budget meeting be set for November 
25, 2015 commencing at 9:00 a.m. in order to take into recommendations contained in the 
Fire Master Plan.   

 
5. BY-LAW:  

 
Resolution 2015-361   Moved by Councillor Bulmer and  

Seconded by Councillor Roth 
 
That the following By-law be taken as read three times and finally passed in open Council: 

 
(a) By-Law 54/15 being a by-law to confirm the proceedings of Council for the Corporation 

of the Township of Puslinch at its meeting held on the 30th day of September, 2015. 
 

CARRIED 
 
6. ADJOURNMENT: 
 

Resolution No. 2015-362:   Moved by Councillor Stokley and  
Seconded by Councillor Fielding 

 
That Council hereby adjourns at 12:12 p.m.   
 
CARRIED 

 
   ________________________________________ 

   Dennis Lever, Mayor 
 

  ________________________________________ 
  Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
 October 7, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 1 of 12 
 

   
M I N U T E S 

 
DATE:  Wednesday, October 7, 2015  
TIME:   12:00 noon. 

 
The October 7, 2015 Regular Council Meeting was held on the above date and called to order 
at 12:00 noon in the Council Chambers, Aberfoyle.  
 
1. ATTENDANCE:   

 
Mayor Dennis Lever 
Councillor Matthew Bulmer 
Councillor Susan Fielding  
Councillor Ken Roth  
Councillor Wayne Stokley  
 
STAFF IN ATTENDANCE: 

 
1. Donna Tremblay, Deputy Clerk 
2. Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk  
3. Paul Creamer, Director of Finance/Treasurer 
4. Steve Goode, Fire Chief  

    
OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE 
 
1. Doug Smith  
2. Aldo Salis 
3. Steve Smith 
4. Kathy White 
5. Karen Lever  
6. Joanne Townes 
7. Stephen Goyda 
8. John Sloot 
9. Jessica Goyda  
10. Dave Prior  
 

2. DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST & THE GENERAL NATURE THEREOF: 
 
None.  
 

3. ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES: 
 

(a) Council Meeting –  September 16, 2015 
(b) Closed Council Meeting – September 16, 2015  

 
Resolution No. 2015-363:  Moved by Councillor Stokley and  

Seconded by Councillor Fielding 
 
That the minutes of the following meetings be adopted as written and distributed:  

 
(a) Council Meeting – September 16, 2015, as amended 
(b) Closed Council Meeting –  September 16, 2015 

 
CARRIED 

 
4. BUSINESS ARISING OUT OF THE MINUTES: 

 
None.  
 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
 October 7, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 2 of 12 
 

5. PUBLIC MEETINGS:  
 

2016 International Plowing Match discussions on this matter will occur upon 
conclusion of all other business items on this Agenda.  
  

i. Township of Puslinch Theme 
ii. Inclusion of local business, artists and/or musical talent groups 
iii. Budget for IPM contributions. 

 
Council suggested that the Puslinch theme could be “Horse Power” and that each member 
of Council would submit to Ms. Herner directly suggested business, artists and/or musical 
talent groups.  Ms. Herner will be preparing information to submit to members Council 
should they wish to contact groups directly.  Council set a preliminary budget amount of 
$3,500.      
 

6. COMMUNICATIONS: 
  

1. Puslinch Pit – Cox Construction Limited  
6803 Laird Road, Township of Puslinch  
 
(a) Memorandum from Aldo Salis, Manager of Development Planning, County of 

Wellington regarding Vertical Zoning and Proposed Rezoning of Cox Site Township 
of Puslinch Zoning By-law Amendment File D14/COX Cox Construction Laird Road.    

 
(b) Revised Site Plan drawings – refer to changes on Page 2 of 3 under Item 22 and 

Hours of Operation and on Page 3 of 3 under item 16.  
 

(c) Email correspondence dated September 25, 2015 from Seanna Richardson, 
Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry, Guelph District, acknowledging 
revisions.  

 
Resolution No. 2015-364:   Moved by Councillor Fielding and  

Seconded by Councillor Stokley 
 

That Council receive the following:  
 
(a) Memorandum from Aldo Salis, Manager of Development Planning, County of 

Wellington regarding Vertical Zoning and Proposed Rezoning of Cox Site Township 
of Puslinch Zoning By-law Amendment File D14/COX Cox Construction Laird Road.    

 
(b) Revised Site Plan drawings- refer to changes on Page 2 of 3 under Item 22 and 

Hours of Operation and on Page 3 of 3 under item 16. 
 

(c) Email correspondence dated September 25, 2015 from Seanna Richardson, 
Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry, Guelph District, acknowledging 
revisions. 

 
CARRIED  

 
2.  Mini Lakes Mobile Home Community 

 
(a) Correspondence from GM Blue Plan Engineering regarding Mini Lakes Wastewater 

Treatment Plant Effluent Monitoring Report dated September 24, 2015. 
   

(b) Report from Stantec Consulting Ltd. regarding Mini Lakes Mobile Home Community 
Quarterly Monitoring Program – 1st Quarter 2015 dated May 8, 2015.  *note a full 
copy of the report is available for reviewing in the Clerk’s office at the 
Township Offices. 

  



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
 October 7, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 3 of 12 
 

(c) Correspondence from Harden Environmental Services Ltd. regarding Mini Lakes 1st 
Quarter 2015 – Groundwater Monitoring dated September 22, 2015.  

 
Council requested that staff advise GM Blue Plan that they are not in support of annual 
reporting and prefer the 12 month rolling average for nitrate reporting.  

 
3. Liquor Licence Application – 599 Arkell Rd.  

 
(a) Alcohol and Gaming Commission of Ontario Agency Letter of Approval dated July 

27, 2015. 
 

(b) Alcohol and Gaming Commission of Ontario – Application for a New Liquor Licence 
for outdoor areas being added to an existing liquor licence -Municipal Information – 
The Dirty Apron, 599 Arkell Road dated September 10, 2015.  
 

(c) Correspondence from AGCO dated September 25, 2015. 
 

(d) Correspondence from Glenna & Doug Smith regarding Concern over Liquor Sales 
Licence dated September 21, 2015  
 

(e) Correspondence from The Dirty Apron Ltd. to The Arkell/Puslinch Community dated 
September 30, 2015  
 

(f) Correspondence from Dave Prior Re: Letter of Objection, Liquor Licence File 
803092 dated October 5, 2015. 

 
Resolution No. 2015-365:  Moved by Councillor Roth and  

   Seconded by Councillor Bulmer 
 

That Council direct staff to file an Objection with the Alcohol and Gaming Commission 
of Ontario indicating that all Zoning, Building and Fire Legislation and Municipal By-
Laws be complied with  prior to the issuing of a Liquor Licence for 599 Arkell Road, 
Puslinch.   

 

 CARRIED 
 

4. University of Guelph 
Mill Creek Pit – Licence #5738 
Lots 21-24, Conc. 2 – 7115 Concession 2     
 
(a) Correspondence from Dufferin Aggregates regarding July 2015 monitoring report 

dated August 13, 2015.  
 
Mr. Stan Denhoed, Harden Environmental Services Ltd. has reviewed the report 
and is satisfied with the July 2015 monitoring report.  
 

5. Morriston Streetscape Project  
 
(a) Ministry of Transportation Encroachment Permit – Morriston Community 

Streetscape Improvements – Tree and Shrub planting (Phase 1) dated September 
18, 2015 with attachments. 
 

6. 2016 Municipal Insurance Program 
 
(a) Frank Cowan Company 2016 Municipal Insurance Program Renewal Report for the 

Policy Term February 1, 2016 to February 1, 2017. 
  

  



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
 October 7, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 4 of 12 
 

 
7. Cox Construction Ltd. 

2015 Licensees Compliance Assessment Reports – Aggregate  
Resources Act  
 

(a) Licence #624889 – 6795 Laird Rd.  
(b) Licence # 5710 – 6795 Laird Rd.  
(c) Licence #20212 -6696 Forestell Rd.  
(d) Licence 20749 (Nigro)   
 

8. Highway #6 Morriston  
 

(a) Correspondence from Bill Knetsch regarding Highway #6 Morriston Ontario dated 
September 24, 2015.  

 
9. Intergovernmental Affairs   

 
(a) Various correspondence for review.  

 
 Resolution No. 2015-366:   Moved by Councillor Stokley and  

 Seconded by Councillor Fielding 
 

That the correspondence items listed on the Council Agenda for October 7, 2015 
Council meeting be received. 
 
CARRIED 
 

7. DELEGATIONS/PRESENTATIONS 
 

1. Julio D'Antonio, Jeffery & Spence Ltd. and Steven Smith, Frank Cowan Company – 
Presentation – 2016 Municipal Insurance Program. 
  
Mr. Juilo D’Antonio and Mr. Steve Smith made a presentation to council on the 
2016/2017 Municipal Insurance Program.  
 
Council requested that if there are any insurance requirements regarding cyber crime 
that Jeffery & Spence Ltd. and Frank Cowan Company advise the Township of the 
changes.    
 

Resolution No. 2015-367:   Moved by Councillor Fielding and  
   Seconded by Councillor Stokley 
 
That Council receive the delegation from Julio D'Antonio, Jeffery & Spence Ltd. and 
Steven Smith, Frank Cowan Company – Presentation – 2016 Municipal Insurance 
Program and the Frank Cowan Company 2016 Municipal Insurance Program Renewal 
Report for the Policy Term February 1, 2016 to February 1, 2017; and  
 
That the Township renew its insurance coverage in the Frank Cowan Company as 
outlined in the 2016 Municipal Insurance Program Renewal Report for the Policy Term 
February 1, 2016 to February 1, 2017. 
 
CARRIED 
 

2. Mr. Stephen Goyda, regarding The Dirty Apron, 599 Arkell Road.   
 

Mr. Goyda made a presentation to Council which included information regarding his 
business plans for 599 Arkell Rd.  Mr. Goyda also provided information regarding his 
Liquor Licence Application to the AGCO.      

 
 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
 October 7, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 5 of 12 
 

Resolution No. 2015-368:   Moved by Councillor Stokley and  
   Seconded by Councillor Fielding 
 

That Council receive the delegation from Mr. Stephen Goyda, regarding The Dirty Apron, 
599 Arkell Road and correspondence from The Dirty Apron Ltd. to The Arkell/Puslinch 
Community dated September 30, 2015. 
 
CARRIED 
 

3. Mr. John Sloot, regarding support of Liquor Licence Application – 599 Arkell Rd. 
 

Mr. Sloot made a presentation to Council which included information regarding past 
usage of the property since his purchase of the building located at 599 Arkell Rd. Mr. 
Sloot advised Council that he is in support of the proposed restaurant at this location.   

 
Resolution No. 2015-369:   Moved by Councillor Fielding and  

   Seconded by Councillor Stokley 
 

That Council receive the delegation from Mr. John Sloot regarding support of Liquor 
Licence Application – 599 Arkell Rd. 
 

CARRIED 
 

8. REPORTS: 
 

1. Puslinch Fire and Rescue Services  
 

None. 
  

2. Finance Department  
 

(a) Financial Reports – August 2015  
 

i. Financial Report as of August 31, 2015  
ii. Cheque Register – August 1 to  August 31, 2015 
iii. Financial Report By Department – August 2015  
iv. Total Revenues, Contributions from Working Reserves and Expenditures – All 

Departments –  August 2015 
 

Resolution No. 2015-370:  Moved by Councillor Stokley and  
Seconded by Councillor Fielding 

 
That Council hereby receives the following reports as information:  

 
i. Financial Report as of August 31, 2015  
ii. Cheque Register – August 1, 2015 to August 31, 2015 
iii. Financial Report by Department – August 2015  
iv. Total Revenues, Contributions from Working Reserves and Expenditures – All 

Departments – August, 2015. 
 

CARRIED  
  



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
 October 7, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 6 of 12 
 

 
(b) Applications for Cancellation, Reduction or Refund of Taxes re:  Chapter 25, Section 

357, 358, the Municipal Act, S.O., 2001. 
 

Resolution No. 2015-371:  Moved by Councillor Roth and  
 Seconded by Councillor Bulmer 

 
That Council does hereby authorize the applications for Cancellation, Reduction or 
Refund of Taxes chapter 25, section 357 or 358 of the Municipal Act, 2001 as 
follows:  
 
Year Application # Roll # Write Off Amount 
2013 10/15 7-09950 $549.68 
2014 11/15 7-09950 $616.96 
2015 12/15 7-09950 $658.90 
2015 05/15 6-06300 $18.20 
2015 09/15 6-06300 $1,390.51 

 
CARRIED 
 

3. Administration Department 
 

(a) Report ADM-2015-015 – Revised 2015-2016 Council/Budget Meeting Schedule. 
 
Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk advised that since preparation of the Report that an 
additional date of November 25, 2015 at 9:00 a.m. for the holding of an additional 
Capital and Operating Budget Meeting.   
 
Resolution No. 2015-372  Moved by Councillor Bulmer and  

Seconded by Councillor Roth 
 
That Report ADM-2015-015 regarding the Revised 2015-2016 Council/Budget Meeting 
Schedule, be received; and  
 
That Council adopt the Revised 2015-2016 Council/Budget Meeting Schedule, 
attached as Appendix “A” to Report ADM-2015-015, as amended; and  
 
That the revised schedule be circulated to the County of Wellington; and  
 
That the Township’s website be updated to reflect the changes. 
 
CARRIED 
 
(b) Report ADM-2015-016 – 2018 Municipal Election – Vote Counting Equipment 
   
Resolution No. 2015-373  Moved by Councillor Roth and  
 Seconded by Councillor Bulmer 
 
That Report ADM-2015-016 regarding the 2018 Municipal Election – Vote Counting 
Equipment be received; and  
 
That Council authorize the single source retainer of Dominion Voting Systems 
Corporation at the unit prices paid for System Lease Pricing for the 2014 Municipal 
Election at a total of $25,295 exclusive of consumables and additional item pricing 
such as ballot boxes and ballots. 
 
CARRIED 

  



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
 October 7, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 7 of 12 
 

 
4. Planning and Building Department  

 
(a) Report PD-2015-024 – Site Plan Agreement – 1471352 Ontario Inc., property 

described as Plan 684, Part Lot 12, RP 61R4192, Parts 1 & 3, municipally known as 
38 Winer Road, Township of Puslinch.  

 
Resolution No. 2015-374   Moved by Councillor Bulmer and  

 Seconded by Councillor Roth 
 
That Report PD-2015-024 regarding the Site Plan Agreement 1471352 Ontario Inc.  
property described as Plan 684, Part Lot 12, RP 61R4192, Parts 1 & 3, municipally 
known as 38 Winer Road, Township of Puslinch, be received; and 
 
That Council pass a by-law to authorize the entering into and the execution of a Site 
Plan Agreement with 1471352 Ontario Inc. 
 
CARRIED  
 

5. Roads & Parks Department  
  

None.  
 

6. Recreation Department 
 
None.  
 

7. Mayor’s Updates  
 

None.  
    

9. NOTICE OF MOTION:  
  
(a) Councillor Stokley – Bill 100 Support Ontario Trails Act. 

 
  Resolution No. 2015-375  Moved by Councillor Stokley and  

Seconded by Councillor Fielding 
 

 WHEREAS Bill 100, Supporting the Ontario Trails Act has the following purposes: 
 

1. To increase awareness about and encourage the use of trails. 
2. To enhance trails and the trail experience. 
3. To protect trails for today's generation and future generations. 
4. To recognize the contribution that trails make to quality of life in Ontario. 
5. To recognize the contribution to quality of place.  

 
AND WHEREAS the Association of Municipalities of Ontario has had input into this Bill 
looking out for municipal interests 

 
AND WHEREAS the Bill includes stronger penalties for property damage and 
trespassing to discourage such actions 

 
AND WHEREAS the Bill will be asking for best practices to be created and will have 
participation in these practices be voluntary therefore not creating undue hardship on 
the municipality 

 
AND WHEREAS this is complementary to recommendations contained in the Township 
of Puslinch Recreation and Parks Master Plan.  



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
 October 7, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 8 of 12 
 

 
NOW THEREFORE LET IT BE RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Township of 
Puslinch supports the overall direction Bill 100 Supporting the Ontario Trails Act 

 
AND FURTHER LET IT BE RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Township of Puslinch 
encourages the government to continue to work with stakeholders such as ROMA and 
OFA to enhance the liability and trespass provisions of the Bill 

 
AND FURTHER LET IT BE RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Township of Puslinch 
forward this resolution for consideration by all other municipalities in the Province of 
Ontario. 
 
CARRIED 
 

(b) Councillor Bulmer - Amendment to the Township’s Site Plan Control By-law 16/08 
 
Councillor Bulmer will work with staff to bring forward a Notice of Motion for 
consideration by Council to the next meeting regarding an amendment to the By-Law 
No. 16/08 – Site Plan Control.  

 
10. COMMITTEE MINUTES 

 
(a) Planning and Development Advisory Committee-  August 11, 2015 
(b) Committee of Adjustment –  August 11, 2015 
(c) Recreation Committee Meeting – July 21, 2015 
 
Resolution No. 2015-376   Moved by Councillor Roth and  

Seconded by Councillor Bulmer 
 
That Council hereby receives the following minutes as information:  
 
(a) Planning and Development Advisory Committee – August 11, 2015  
(b) Committee of Adjustment – August 11, 2015  
(c) Recreation Committee – July 21, 2015 

 
CARRIED 
 

11. MUNICIPAL ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
Jack Johnston Memorial Highway Dedication  
 
Councillor Fielding advised that she attended the Jack Johnston Memorial Highway 
Dedication on Friday, October 2, 2015.   
 
COP Committee – Suicide Prevention Workshop  
 
Councillor Fielding advised that she attended the Suicide Prevention workshop held by the 
COP Committee on October 1, 2015.   Councillor Fielding advised that approximately 25 
individuals took part and completed the workshop and received their certificates of 
completion.  
 
Arkell Store Meeting  
 
Councillor Bulmer advised that he attended a meeting with Arkell residents and Mr. Goyda 
in attendance regarding the proposed AGCO Liquor Licence Application for 599 Arkell Rd.  
 
Ontario Stone Sand and Gravel 
 
Councillor Bulmer advised that along with Mayor Lever they attended an OSSGA breakfast 
meeting on October 7, 2015.  Councillor Bulmer advised that he was pleased to hear at the 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
 October 7, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 9 of 12 
 

meeting of the increase in inspectors from 1 to 3 in the Guelph Offices and believes that 
this is good news in that it assists in building trust in the process.      
 
Gravel Watch – Ontario Meeting  
 
Mayor Lever advised that he attended the Gravel Watch meeting on October 1, 2015 at the 
Puslinch Community Centre.  Mayor Lever advised that approximately 40-50 individuals 
attended the meeting along with Ingersoll Mayor Ted Comiskey attended the meeting and 
gave an excellent presentation.    
 
Wellington County Economic Development Meeting  
 
Mayor Lever advised that he attended the Wellington County Economic Development 
Meeting held at the Wellington County Museum at Aboyne on September 17, 2015. Mayor 
Lever advised that there was a demonstration by StreetCast who have created a software 
app that will attract tourists and other traffic to local downtown cores through special events 
being promoted by area businesses.  
 
Streetlights at Townline and Ellis Rd.  
 
Mayor Lever advised that the streetlights are now operational at the corner of Ellis and 
Townline Rds.  
 
Puslinch Historical Society Presentation   
 
Mayor Lever advised that he attended a presentation at the Knox Crieff Sunday School 
Room for "The Third", Killean, Crieff and Morriston areas (School Sections 5 to 8 Crieff) on 
Tuesday October 6, 2015.  Mayor Lever advised that there were excellent presentations 
given that evening.  The last presentation in the series will be held in November.  Details 
are available on the Puslinch Historical website.   
 
Community Based Strategic Plan Meeting  
 
Mayor Lever advised that along with other members of Council and Township Staff they 
attended a Community Based Strategic Planning session with the Township’s consultant 
John Whitesell on Tuesday, September 29th at the Puslinch Community Centre.     
 
 

12. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
 
None.  
 

13. CLOSED MEETING 
 

Council was in closed session from 12:02 p.m. to 12:22 p.m. 
Council recessed from 12:23 p.m. to 1:00 p.m. 
 
(a) Confidential verbal report from Karen Landry CAO/Clerk, regarding litigation or potential 

litigation, including matters before administrative tribunals affecting the municipality or 
local board and advice that is subject to Solicitor-Client privilege, including 
communications necessary for that purpose –  Reid - 7827 Wellington Rd. 36 

 
(b) Confidential Verbal Report from  Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk, regarding litigation or 

potential litigation, including matters before administrative tribunals affecting the 
municipality or local board and advice that is subject to solicitor-client privilege, 
including communications necessary for that purpose – 6643 Concession 2 
 

(c) Confidential Report from Julio D' Antonio, Jeffrey and Spence Insurance and Steven 
Smith, Frank Cowan Company, regarding litigation or potential litigation, including 
matters before administrative tribunals affecting the municipality or local board and 



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
 October 7, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 10 of 12 
 

advice that is subject to Solicitor-Client privilege, including communications necessary 
for that purpose – Insurance Claim Matters. 

 
Resolution No. 2015-377:   Moved by Councillor Bulmer and  

Seconded by Councillor Roth 
 

That Council shall go into closed session under Section 239 of the Municipal Act for the 
purpose of: 
 

 
(a) Confidential Verbal Report from Karen Landry CAO/Clerk, regarding litigation or 

potential litigation, including matters before administrative tribunals affecting the 
municipality or local board and advice that is subject to Solicitor-Client privilege, 
including communications necessary for that purpose – Reid - 7827 Wellington Rd. 36 
 

(b) Confidential Verbal Report from Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk regarding litigation or 
potential litigation, including matters before administrative tribunals affecting the 
municipality or local board and advice that is subject to solicitor-client privilege, 
including communications necessary for that purpose –  6643 Concession 2 
 

(c) Confidential Report from Julio D' Antonio, Jeffrey and Spence Insurance and Steven 
Smith, Frank Cowan Company, regarding litigation or potential litigation, including 
matters before administrative tribunals affecting the municipality or local board and 
advice that is subject to Solicitor-Client privilege, including communications necessary 
for that purpose – Insurance Claim Matters 
 

CARRIED 
 
Resolution No. 2015-378    Moved by Councillor Fielding and  

Seconded by Councillor Stokley 
 
That Council move into open session. 
 
CARRIED 
 
(a) Confidential verbal report from Karen Landry CAO/Clerk, regarding litigation or potential 

litigation, including matters before administrative tribunals affecting the municipality or 
local board and advice that is subject to Solicitor-Client privilege, including 
communications necessary for that purpose – Reid - 7827 Wellington Rd. 36 
 

Resolution No. 2015-379    Moved by Councillor Roth and  
 Seconded by Councillor Bulmer 
 
That Council receive the Verbal Report from Karen Landry CAO/Clerk, regarding litigation 
or potential litigation, including matters before administrative tribunals affecting the 
municipality or local board and advice that is subject to Solicitor-Client privilege, including 
communications necessary for that purpose – Reid - 7827 Wellington Rd. 36. 
 
CARRIED  
 
(b) Confidential Verbal Report from  Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk, regarding litigation or 

potential litigation, including matters before administrative tribunals affecting the 
municipality or local board and advice that is subject to solicitor-client privilege, 
including communications necessary for that purpose –  6643 Concession 2 

  



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
 October 7, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 11 of 12 
 

 
Resolution No. 2015-380  Moved by Councillor Bulmer and  
 Seconded by Councillor Roth 
 
That Council receive the confidential verbal report from Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk, 
regarding litigation including matters before administrative tribunals affecting the 
municipality or local board and advice that is subject to solicitor-client privilege, including 
communications necessary for that purpose – 6643 Concession 2 
 
CARRIED 
 
(c) Confidential Report from Julio D' Antonio, Jeffrey and Spence Insurance and Steven 

Smith, Frank Cowan Company, regarding litigation or potential litigation, including 
matters before administrative tribunals affecting the municipality or local board and 
advice that is subject to Solicitor-Client privilege, including communications necessary 
for that purpose – Insurance Claim Matters 
 

Resolution No. 2015-381:  Moved by Councillor Roth and  
 Seconded by Councillor Bulmer 

 
That Council receive the Confidential Report from Julio D' Antonio, Jeffrey and Spence 
Insurance and Steven Smith, Frank Cowan Company, regarding litigation or potential 
litigation, including matters before administrative tribunals affecting the municipality or local 
board and advice that is subject to Solicitor-Client privilege, including communications 
necessary for that purpose – Insurance Claim Matters 

 
CARRIED 
 

14. BY-LAWS:  
 

(a) A By-law to amend Zoning By-Law 19/95 (Cox Construction ) Part Lot 13, 
Concession 4, Puslinch 
 

(b) A by-law to authorize the entering into an Agreement with Whistle Stop Co-
Operative Preschool Inc. – Puslinch Community Centre – 23 Brock Rd. S. 
 

(c) A by-law to authorize the entering into of a Site Plan Agreement with 1471352 
Ontario Inc. 

 
Resolution 2015-382    Moved by Councillor Stokley and  

Seconded by Councillor Fielding 
 
That the following By-law be taken as read three times and finally passed in open Council: 
 
(a) By-Law 55/15 being a by-law to amend Zoning By-Law 19/95 (Cox Construction) Part 

Lot 13, Concession 4, Puslinch. 
 

(b) By-Law 56/15 being a by-law to authorize the entering into of a Site Plan Agreement 
with 1471352 Ontario Inc. 

  
CARRIED 
 

    
15. CONFIRMING BY-LAW  

 
(a) By-Law to confirm the proceedings of Council for the Corporation of the Township of 

Puslinch  
  



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
 October 7, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 

 
 
 

Page 12 of 12 
 

 
Resolution 2015-383:    Moved by Councillor Fielding and  

Seconded by Councillor Stokley 
 
That the following By-law be taken as read three times and finally passed in open Council: 
 

(a) By-Law 57/15 being a by-law to confirm the proceedings of Council for the 
Corporation of the Township of Puslinch at its meeting held on the 7th day of 
October, 2015. 

 
CARRIED  

 
 
16.  ADJOURNMENT: 
 

Resolution No. 2015-384   Moved by Councillor Stokley and  
Seconded by Councillor Fielding 
 

That Council hereby adjourns at 2:51 p.m. 
    
CARRIED 

 
   ________________________________________ 

     Dennis Lever, Mayor 
    

 ________________________________________ 
  Karen Landry, CAO Clerk 



N 

THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
NOTICE OF COMPLETE APPLICATION 
& NOTICE OF THE PUBLIC MEETING 

TAKE NOTICE that pursuant to the requirements of the Planning Act, R.S.O., 1990, as amended, the Township of Puslinch 
has received a complete application to amend Zoning By-law 19/85. The file number assigned to this application is 
D14/FRO. 

AND TAKE NOTICE that the Council of the Township of Puslinch will hold a Public Meeting on Wednesday the 21st  of 
October, at 6:30 pm in the Council Chambers at 7404 Wellington Road 34, pursuant to the requirements of Section 34 of 
the Planning Act, R.S.O., 1990, as amended. 

THE LAND SUBJECT to the application is known as Part Lots 1 to 3, Concession Gore, municipally known as 6525 
Concession 1, Township of Puslinch. The subject lands are shown on the inset map. 

THE PURPOSE AND EFFECT of the application is to amend Township of Puslinch Zoning By-law 19/85 to rezone the lands 
from Agricultural to an Agricultural (A-_) Site Specific Zone to not permit the housing of livestock in an existing barn on 
the property that does not meet MDS 1 requirements, to satisfy conditions of related County of Wellington Consent File 
B32/15. 

ORAL OR WRITTEN SUBMISSIONS may be made by the public either in support or in opposition to the proposed Zoning 
By-law Amendment. Any person may attend the public meeting and make and oral submission or direct a written 
submission to the Township Clerk at the address below. All those present at the public meeting will be given the 
opportunity to make an oral submission, however; it is requested that those who wish to address Council notify the 
Township Clerk in advance of the public meeting. 

TAKE NOTICE that if a person or public body does not make an oral submission at a public meeting or make a written 
submission to the Township of Puslinch before the Zoning By-law is passed, the person or public body is not entitled to 
appeal the decision of the Council of the Township of Puslinch to the Ontario Municipal Board. 

AND TAKE NOTICE that if a person or public body does not make an oral submission at a public meeting or make a 
written submission to the Township of Puslinch before the Zoning By-law is passed, the person or public body may not 
be added as a party to the hearing of an appeal before the Ontario Municipal Board unless, in the opinion of the Board, 
there are reasonable grounds to do so. 

REQUEST FOR NOTICE OF DECISION regarding the Zoning By-law amendment must be made in written format to the 
Township Clerk at the address shown below. 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION regarding the proposed amendment is available for review between 9:00 a.m. and 4:30 
p.m. at the Township of Puslinch Municipal Office as of the date of this notice. 

Dated at the Township of Puslinch on this 25th day of September 2015. 

Karen Landry  KEY MAP: 
CAO/Clerk 
Township of Puslinch 
7404 Wellington Road 34 
Guelph, Ontario  N1H 6H9 
Phone (519) 763-1226 
admin@puslinch.ca 



1 
 

REPORT PD-2015-025 
 

INFORMATION REPORT 

FROM: Kelly Patzer, Development Coordinator 

DATE:  October 21, 2015 

SUBJECT: Public Meeting - Rezoning Application File D14/FRO 
 Glenn and Yvonne Frosch c/o Robert and Lisa Frosch, Concession Gore, 

Part Lots 1-3, municipally known as 6525 Concession 1 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 

1. Purpose of Report 

This report is to advise Council and the Public of the application for a Zoning By-law 
Amendment located at 6525 Concession 1. The proposed amendment seeks to rezone 
the property from Agricultural Zone to a site specific Agricultural (A-_) Zone. 

2. Application 

The zoning amendment application has been submitted to satisfy a condition of County 
of Wellington consent file B32/15. The severance of the new lot has created a Minimum 
Distance Separation I (MDSI) conflict with the existing barn on the retained parcel. 

 



2 
 

The proposal would rezone the existing barn on the retained lands to not house animals 
which would achieve MDSI compliance with the new severed lot. An explanation letter 
by the agent for the application (Attachment “A”) has been submitted as part of the 
application package. 

3. Location & Site Characteristics 

The subject site known municipally as 6525 Concession 1, is located on the south side 
of Concession 1, east of Townline Road.  

The parcel to be severed is a 0.7 hectare (1.8 acre) rural residential lot containing an 
existing dwelling. The 73 hectare retained agricultural parcel contains an existing 
dwelling, a shed and a barn. 
 

 
 

APPLICATION CHRONOLOGY: 

1. Township of Puslinch Zoning Application 

The application was submitted July 3rd, 2015 and deemed complete August 4th, 2015. 

2. Notice: 

August 28, 2015: Notice of a Complete Application & Public Meeting was mailed to 
property owners within 120 metres of the subject property and all required agencies. 



3 
 

September 25, 2015: Notice of a Complete Application and Public Meeting was 
published in The Wellington Advertiser. 

October 21, 2015 @ 6:30 p.m.: Public Meeting to be held at Township of Puslinch 

3. Staff, Agency & Public Circulation Comments: 

The application was circulated to the Township’s consultants and External Agencies for 
comments. The following comments have been received to date: 

Planning and Development Advisory Committee: 

• Rezoning the barn will unnecessarily encumber the future agricultural use of the 
property;  

• Difficult to enforce the rezoning;  
• A barn is meant to be full to maintain its structure; and  
• Any rezoning should be done as to not restrict future agricultural operations or 

structures on the property. 

The Township’s Building Department has commented that it is not in support of the 
application as it would create a situation that would be difficult to detect and enforce if 
an inappropriate use was started. 

All other comments received from the consultants and agencies have been “no 
comments or objections”. The County of Wellington Planning report is attached as a 
separate document (Attachment “B” – County of Wellington Planning Report).   

The Township has not received any comments from the public in support of or against 
the application.  

APPLICABLE LEGISLATION & REQUIREMENTS:  

1. County of Wellington Official Plan 

The Official Plan designates the subject property as Secondary Agricultural, Core 
Greenlands and Greenlands. Agricultural uses and single detached homes are 
permitted uses within this designation. 

2. Township of Puslinch Zoning By-Law 19/85 

The subject lands are designated Agricultural (A) Zone and Natural Environment (NE) 
Zone. The parcel to be severed is within the Agricultural (A) Zone. Permitted uses under 
the A Zone include an agricultural use, an intensive agricultural use and a single 
detached dwelling. 



4 
 

An Agricultural Use is defined under the by-law as an area of land, with or without 
accessory buildings or structures, which is used primarily for: 

(i) the tillage of soil; 
(ii) the growing and harvesting of vegetables, fruits, field crops, mushrooms, 

berries, trees, flowers or landscaping materials and may include the erection 
and use of greenhouses, and woodlots and forestry uses; 

(iii) the grazing, breeding, raising, boarding or training of livestock of all kinds, 
including, but not so as to limit the generality of the foregoing, cattle, swine, 
sheep, goats, rabbits, poultry, fish, horses, ponies, donkeys, mules, fur-
bearing animals and household pets but not at an intensive level as defined in 
Subsection 2(6) (b); 

(iv) dairying, beekeeping, but not at an intensive level as defined in Subsection 
2(6)(b) 

(v) any other operation normally associated with farming; 
(vi) an accessory farm sales outlet; 

but excluding a kennel, an abattoir or any premises used for the killing of 
livestock or the processing of meat. 
 

An Intensive Agricultural Use is permitted on agricultural parcels that have an area 
greater than 4.0 hectares, where the number of permitted livestock is calculated by a 
formula based on the area of the parcel and the type of livestock, including animals or 
birds.  
 
CONCLUSION: 

Once all relevant information, reports and comments have been reviewed and 
completed, a final Recommendation Report will be brought forward to Council with the 
associated amending By-law which will summarize all agency and public comments and 
assess the merits of the application. 



ATTACHMENT "A" - EXPLANATION LETTER







PLANNING REPORT  
for the TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 

Prepared by the County of Wellington Planning and Development Department 

DATE: October 1, 2015 
TO: Kelly Patzer, Development Coordinator 

Township of Puslinch 
FROM: Sarah Wilhelm, Senior Planner 

County of Wellington 
SUBJECT: FIRST CIRCULATION D14/FRO (Frosch) 

Zoning By-law Amendment 
6525 Concession 1 (Part Lots 1, 2 & 3, Gore Concession), Puslinch 

SUMMARY 
This zoning by-law amendment application was deemed complete by the Township of Puslinch and a 
public meeting scheduled for October 21, 2015. The purpose of this report is to provide our preliminary 
comments concerning the application materials submitted by the applicant’s agent (Jeff Buisman, 
VanHarten Surveying). There were no comments or concerns identified by the public at the time of 
writing this report.  The Building Department is not in support of the application. The Planning and 
Development Advisory Committee also has concerns with the application. 

INTRODUCTION 
The land subject to the proposed zoning by-law amendment (Application D14/FRO) fronts onto the 
south side of Concession 1 to the east of Townline Road (see Figure 1). The property is legally described 
as Part of Lots 1, 2 and 3, Gore Concession. This irregular shaped property has 627 m (2,057 ft) of 
frontage on Concession 1 and is 72.6 ha (179 ac) in size.  

This agricultural property has approximately 42 ha (104 ac) under cultivation and 30 ha (74 ac) of treed 
areas. The remainder of the acreage is taken up by the area of the existing dwelling, barn and driveshed. 
Surrounding land uses include rural residential lands to the west, rural residential and natural areas to 
the north and east and a shooting range to the south. 

BACKGROUND 
This property has been the subject of an application to sever a 0.7 ha (1.8 ac) rural residential lot with 94 
m (308 ft) frontage (file B32/15). The retained lot includes a single detached dwelling, barn and 
driveshed. This rezoning would satisfy a condition of the severance, which was provisionally approved 
by the County Land Division Committee. Conditions must be fulfilled by June 17, 2016. 

PROPOSAL 
According to the application materials, the purpose of the proposed zoning by-law amendment is to 
rezone the existing barn on the retained lands of severance application B32/15 to not house animals. 
This would achieve Minimum Distance Separation I (MDSI) compliance from the new lot. 

In support of the rezoning application, the proponent has filed the following information: 

• Zone Change Sketch
• Explanation Letter by VanHarten Surveying

If approved, the retained lands would continue to be used for rural residential and agricultural purposes. 

ATTACHMENT 'B' - COUNTY OF WELLINGTON PLANNING REPORT



 
PLANNING REPORT for the TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH   
First Circulation, D14/FRO (Frosch) 
October 1, 2015  Page 2 

 
Figure 1 Property Location  
 

 
 
PROVINCIAL PLANNING POLICY 
The Provincial Growth Plan (Places to Grow) provides for limited development within rural areas under 
Section 2.2.9. This includes rural land uses that cannot be located in settlement areas.  
 
The Provincial Policy Statement (2014) provides for limited residential development and other rural land 
uses in rural areas of municipalities. New land uses, including the creation of lots, and new or expanding 
livestock facilities, shall comply with the minimum distance separation formulae. 
 
COUNTY OFFICIAL PLAN 
According to Schedule A7 (Puslinch) of the Official Plan, the property is designated SECONDARY 
AGRICULTURAL, CORE GREENLANDS and GREENLANDS. Agricultural uses and single detached homes are 
a permitted use within this designation. According to Section 6.5.6 of the Plan “The provincial minimum 
distance formula will be applied to new land uses, lot creation and new or expanding livestock facilities”. 
  



 
PLANNING REPORT for the TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH   
First Circulation, D14/FRO (Frosch) 
October 1, 2015  Page 3 

 
MINIMUM DISTANCE SEPARATION (MDS) 
The MDS Formulae are intended to minimize nuisance complaints about livestock facilities due to odour 
and thereby reduce potential land use conflicts. There are two formulae: MDSI and MDSII. MDSI is 
applied to ensure that appropriate setbacks are provided from existing livestock facilities to proposed 
development. MDSI is usually dealt with by the County. MDSII is applied to ensure that a new or 
expanded livestock facility provides appropriate setbacks from existing development. MDSII is usually 
dealt with by staff of the local building department. 
 
MDSI was applied by the County at the time of consideration of the proposed new lot. As the lot would 
result in the fourth lot in a row, it is considered a rural residential cluster. This qualifies as a Type B land 
use which has an increased setback (in this case, double). Although the barn on the retained lands is 
vacant, our office completed a calculation based on a beef operation which was reported on the Farm 
Data Sheet prepared by the land owner. The resultant MDSI arc is 500 m. The barn is 115 m from the 
new lot and therefore, would not meet the required separation. 
 
Application of MDS to Empty Livestock Facilities 
The current Implementation Guidelines provide direction concerning the application of MDS to empty 
livestock facilities. Guideline 20 states that “MDSI applies to empty livestock facilities if they are 
structurally sound and reasonably capable of housing livestock.” We have been advised that this bank 
barn has been empty since 2006, but is in good condition. 
 
Figure 2 Existing Barn 
 

 
 
The Ministry of Agriculture, Food and Rural Affairs (OMAFRA) is currently reviewing the Minimum 
Distance Separation Implementation Guidelines. The draft document issued by OMAFRA (2015) 
proposes changes to Guideline 20. One of the changes would exempt an unoccupied livestock barn from 
an MDSI setback when:  
 

“the lot on which the unoccupied livestock barn is located is rezoned to preclude a livestock 
facility as a permitted use”. 

 



 
PLANNING REPORT for the TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH   
First Circulation, D14/FRO (Frosch) 
October 1, 2015  Page 4 

 
Given the large size of the farm, there could be locations for a new barn elsewhere on the property 
provided MDSII requirements are met. The ability to construct a new livestock facility should be 
protected. 
 
PUBLIC AND AGENCY COMMENTS 
There were no comments from neighbouring property owners or from the Fire Prevention Officer at this 
time. We are in receipt of comments indicating no concerns from:  
 

• Harden Environmental Services Ltd. 
• GM BluePlan Engineering 
• GWS Ecological and Forestry Services Inc.  
• Grand River Conservation Authority 

 
The Chief Building Official is not in support of the rezoning. In his comments of September 30, 2015 
Robert Kelly advised: 
 

“From a building and by-law perspective, on the surface there is no immediate issue; however 
this would create a situation that would be both difficult to detect and enforce if an 
inappropriate use were started. As such the Building Department is not in support of the re-
zoning.” 

 
The Planning and Development Advisory Committee provided the following comments at their meeting 
of September 8, 2015: 
 

• Rezoning the barn will unnecessarily encumber the future agricultural use of the property 
• Difficult to enforce the rezoning 
• A barn is meant to be full to maintain its structure 
• Any rezoning should be done so as to not restrict any future agricultural operations or structures 

on the property 
 
TOWNSHIP ZONING BY-LAW 
According to Schedule ‘A’ of Zoning By-law 19/85, the subject property is zoned Agricultural (A) and 
Natural Environment (NE). As requested, this application proposes to amend the zoning as follows: 
 
• From Agricultural (A) to Agricultural Site-Specific (A-__) on the retained agricultural lot to prohibit 

the keeping of livestock within the existing barn 
 
NEXT STEPS 
The public meeting for this application is scheduled for October 21, 2015. Materials associated with the 
application should be available to the public at the Township office prior to the public meeting date. 
Following the public meeting, Township Council may further consider the applicant’s response to any 
matters raised by the public and other comments and concerns identified. We will be in attendance at 
the public meeting to hear the applicant’s presentation, public comments and Council discussion. 
 
  



 
PLANNING REPORT for the TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH   
First Circulation, D14/FRO (Frosch) 
October 1, 2015  Page 5 

 
Our planning recommendations will be provided following the public meeting and resolution of 
outstanding issues. 
 
Respectfully submitted 
County of Wellington Planning and Development Department  
 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Sarah Wilhelm, BES, MCIP, RPP 
Senior Planner  



 

THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING & OPEN HOUSE 

 
TAKE NOTICE that pursuant to the requirements of the Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990, the 
Township of Puslinch will hold a Public Meeting & Open House on November 5, 2015 at 
7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers to consider a Community Improvement Plan (CIP). 

THE LANDS SUBJECT to Community Improvement Plan Area are lands that have frontage 
along the Brock Road corridor to the limits of the Villages of Aberfoyle and Morriston, as 
shown on the key map below. 

ORAL OR WRITTEN SUBMISSIONS may be made by the public either in support or in 
opposition to the proposed CIP. Any person may attend the public meeting and make and 
oral submission or direct a written submission to the Township Clerk at the address below. 
All those present at the public meeting will be given the opportunity to make an oral 
submission, however; it is requested that those who wish to address Council notify the 
Township Clerk in advance of the public meeting. 

TAKE NOTICE that if a person or public body does not make an oral submission at a public 
meeting or make a written submission to the Township of Puslinch before the CIP is 
adopted, the person or public body is not entitled to appeal the decision of the Council of 
the Township of Puslinch to the Ontario Municipal Board. 

AND TAKE NOTICE that if a person or public body does not make an oral submission at a 
public meeting or make a written submission to the Township of Puslinch before the CIP is 
adopted, the person or public body may not be added as a party to the hearing of an 
appeal before the Ontario Municipal Board unless, in the opinion of the Board, there are 
reasonable grounds to do so. 

REQUEST FOR NOTICE OF DECISION regarding the Community Improvement Plan must be 
made in written format to the Township Clerk at the address shown below. 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION regarding the proposed CIP is available for review between 
9:00 a.m. and 4:30 p.m. at the Township of Puslinch Municipal Office as of the date of this 
notice. 

Dated at the 
Township of Puslinch 
on this 16th day of October 2015 
 

Karen Landry                            
CAO/Clerk   
Township of Puslinch 
7404 Wellington Road 34 
Guelph, Ontario  N1H 6H9 
Phone (519) 763-1226 
admin@puslinch.ca 
 

KEY MAP 





















































































































































































































































































1 

MUNICIPAL CLASS ENVIRONMENTAL 
ASSESSMENT FOR NISKA ROAD 

IMPROVEMENTS 

 

Puslinch Township Council Presentation 
Date October 21, 2015 



2 

STUDY CORRIDOR 
A Class Environmental Assessment 
Study is being conducted to determine 
road improvements for Niska Road 
from the westerly City Limits at the 
Speed River to the intersection at 
Downey Road and Niska Road. 

 

Assessments for improvement include 
the Bailey Bridge over the Speed River, 
and the condition of Niska Road in the 
City of Guelph. 

 

The current City of Guelph’s Official 
Plan recognizes Niska Road as a two-
lane collector road which collects 
vehicle trips from the immediate area 
and provides for through movement 
for vehicular travel to and from arterial 
roadways and expressways.   

 

A secondary important function is to 
serve as an access and link to the 
Townships of Puslinch and Guelph-
Eramosa.  

 



3 

We Are 
Here 



4 

•Identify Problems and Opportunities 

•Inventory natural, built, social/cultural and economic environments  Phase 1 

•Identify Alternative Solutions to Address the Problems 

•Identify all reasonable alternative solutions 

•Consider environmental and technical impacts on each alternative solution 

•Identify preliminary preferred solutions 

•Select a Preferred Solution to Address the Problems 

•Evaluate preliminary preferred solutions base don public input and feedback 

•Select a preferred solution to address the problems 

Phase 2 

•Identify Design Concepts to Implement the Preferred Solution 

•Identify all reasonable alternative design concepts to implement the preferred solution  

•Consider environmental and technical impacts on each alternative design concept 

•Identify preliminary preferred design concepts 

•Select a Preferred Design Concept to Address the Problems 

•Evaluate preliminary design concepts base don public input and feedback 

•Select a preferred design concept to address the problems 

Phase 3 

•Prepare and File the Environmental Study Report (ESR) 

•Complete an ESR detailing all of the activities undertaken to date 

•Issue the ESR for a 30-day public review period 

•Address any concerns raised by the Minister of the Environment and Climate Change 

•Notify the public and agencies of completion of the ESR and of the Part II Order provision in the EA Act 

Phase 4 

•Project Implementation 

•Proceed to detailed design and construction of the project 

•Monitor for environmental provisions and commitments 
Phase 5 

MUNICIPAL CLASS EA PROCESS 

We Are 
Here 



5 

PROBLEM/OPPORTUNITY STATEMENT 
• The current City of Guelph’s Official Plan recognizes Niska Road as a two-lane collector road which collects vehicle trips from the immediate area and 

provides for through movement for vehicular travel to/from arterial roadways and expressways.  A secondary function is to serve land access and to link 
the Townships of Puslinch and Guelph-Eramosa.  

 
• Segments of the Niska Road through the study corridor are nearing the end of their useful life and the single lane Niska Road Bailey Bridge, installed in 

1974 as a temporary replacement, is in very poor condition and is also nearing the end of its life expectancy. 
 
• A solution is required to address the deterioration and increasing maintenance costs to Niska Road infrastructure.  In addition to reviewing a variety of 

road cross-sections; impacts to the natural environment and community road safety issues; a range of bridge solutions will also be examined which 
includes bridge closure, bridge rehabilitation and bridge replacement. 

 
• Completion of this Environmental Assessment is part of the process to enable the City of Guelph to address both the short-term and the long-term 

transportation needs for the local community and the connected overall transportation network. 
 
• Social and economic impact, aquatic impact, natural environmental impact, archaeological assessments and heritage assessment will all be assessed as 

part of the Class EA study process.  Community safety and road safety will also be examined.  Presently, traffic volumes exceed regulatory thresholds and 
guidelines for a single lane bridge. 

 
• The Local Community has identified 4 important considerations:  

1. Consider how to maintain, preserve and protect natural environment and cultural heritage, viewscapes, historic character of existing road and 
rural/urban interface. 

2. Consider the cultural and historical evaluation of the existing Bailey Bridge. 
3. Consider health and safety of the local community. 
4. Consider recreational opportunities. 

  
• As an opportunity, the following bridge options shall be considered equally:  

• Consider closing the bridge (i.e. allow pedestrian and bicycle traffic only) 
• Consider rehabilitation of existing bridge 
• Consider bridge removal 
• Consider replacing existing bridge with a one lane bridge 
• Consider replacing existing bridge with a two lane bridge 

 



6 

Notice of 
Commencement 

Schedule B EA 
Published  

April 11, 2013 

Community 
Workshop 

June 27, 2013 

Notice of 
Commencement of 

Schedule C EA 
Published  

October 17, 2014 

CWG Meetings: 

• CWG Selection 
Meeting November 
10, 2013 

• CWG Meeting 1 
December 10, 
2013 

• CWG Meeting 2 
January 21, 2014 

• CWG Meeting 5 
March 18, 2014 

• CWG Meeting 4 
June 2, 2014 

• CWG Meeting 5 
August  12, 2014 

• CWG Meeting 6 
September 30, 
2014 

• CWG Meeting 7 
April 21, 2015 

• CWG Meeting 8 
August 18, 2015 

Response Letters 
to Stakeholders 

and Direct 
Mailing to Local 
Residents as a 

Result of 
Published Notice 

of 
Commencement  

PIC #1: 
November 27th 
from 5:00 -7:00 
p.m. at Kortright 

Presbyterian 
Church 

Gymnasium  

Ongoing 
Communication 
with the public 

Staff report to 
Infrastructure, 
Development 
and Enterprise 
Committee and 

City Council 

December 
2015 ESR 
Filing for 

Public 
Review 

STAKEHOLDER CONSULTATION TIMELINE 

We are here Class EA 
Objection Letter 

to MOECC 
September 8, 

2014 

Study Team 
Response to 

Class EA  
Objection  Letter 

to MOECC 

October 8, 2014 

Over 100 
Responses to 

Community as a 
Result of 

Community 
Workshop 

Advance copy 
of PIC #1 

boards send 
to CWG for 
review and 
comment 

Implementation  

PIC #1 Summary 
Report 

Notice of Commencement 

 Letter to Agencies 

• GRCA 
• Ministry of Natural 

Resources 
• Hydro One 
• Local Police 
• Township of Puslinch  
• Guelph Eramosa 

Township 
• Local School Board 
• Aboriginal Affairs and 

Northern Development 
Canada 

• Ministry of Aboriginal 
Affairs 

• Ministry of Tourism, 
Culture and Sport 

• Department of Fisheries 
and Oceans  

• Ministry of Agriculture 
• Ministry of Infrastructure 
• Transport Canada 
• First Nations 
• University of Guelph 

 

 

April 17, 2014 
Meeting with 
Townships of 

Guelph- 
Eramosa and 

Puslinch 

February 3, 2015 
Meeting with 
Townships of 
Guelph-Eramosa 
and Puslinch 

March 2, 
2015 
Meeting 
with GRCA  

PIC #2 
September 10, 

2015  

February 18, 
2015 
Presentation at 
River Systems 
Advisory 
Committee 
Meeting   

March 9, 2015 
Presentation 
at Guelph 
Heritage 
Committee 
Meeting 

May, 2015 
Presentation 
at Guelph 
Heritage 
Committee 
Meeting 

April 13, 2015 
Guelph 
Heritage 
Committee 
Meeting 
(Continuation 
of March 9th 
meeting) 

September 14 - 21  
2015 Presentations 
to Guelph Heritage 
Committee, RSAC, 
Puslinch Township 
and 
Guelph/Eramosa 
Township 

PIC #2 Summary 
Report 

Notice of PIC 
#2 Published  
August 27 
September 2, 
2015  



7 

COMMUNITY CONCERNS 
To encourage active participation and cooperation between the project team and members of the community, a 14 
member Community Working Group (CWG) was established including a representative for the Grand River 
Conservation Authority (GRCA). 
 

The local community through the Community Working Group and through individual correspondence made it clear 
their preferences were to keep the one lane bridge and/or close the road. The list of key community concerns 
included: 

• Road  safety  and traffic speeds, 
• Volume of truck traffic and size of trucks in the community, 
• Volume of vehicular traffic, 
• Traffic speed on Niska Road, 
• Heritage value of bridge and streetscape, 
• Preservation of corridor viewscapes, 
• Protection of aquatic and terrestrial wildlife and wildlife habitat, 
• Preservation of recreational use of lands (water use, trail use, greenspace, cycling), 
• Implementation of traffic calming measures, 
• Deer and other incidental wildlife observed onsite and is valued by residents and anglers; and, 
• Future development plans for GRCA Lands. 

 

The community expressed their opinion that the one lane Bailey Bridge also serves as a convenient traffic calming 
feature that helps discourage truck traffic and discourages bypass traffic. The community also wishes to keep and 
maintain the 41 year Bailey Bridge which helps to preserve a heritage character and ascetics of the local 
community. 



8 

RESULTS OF PUBLIC INFORMATION 
CENTRE #1 – OPEN HOUSE 

• Held:  Thursday, November 27, 2014 

• 135 People attended 

• 26 written comment sheets received prior to  
PIC #1 

• 51 written comment sheets received at PIC #1 

• 110 written comment sheets received after PIC #1 

• City conducted online survey – 305 responses 



9 

COMBINED STAKEHOLDER AND ON-LINE SURVEY RESULTS  
REGARDING ALTERNATIVE SOLUTIONS FOR ROAD 

40% 

12% 

47% 

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

45%

50%

Do Nothing Repave Road Reconstruct Road

P
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
s

 

Road Alternatives 



10 

COMBINED STAKEHOLDER AND ON-LINE SURVEY RESULTS  
REGARDING ALTERNATIVE SOLUTIONS FOR BRIDGE 

25% 

20% 

3% 

19% 

33% 

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

Do Nothing Close bridge to
vehicular traffic

Remove bridge &
do not replace
existing bridge

Replace existing
Bailey bridge with
a New One-Lane

Bridge

Replace existing
Bailey bridge with
a New Two-Lane

Bridge

P
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
s

 

Bridge Alternatives 



11 

EXISTING BRIDGE CHARACTERISTICS  
• The Niska Road Bailey Bridge is a single lane bridge, installed in 1974 as a 

‘temporary replacement bridge.’ 

• Currently Niska Bridge is in need of repair due to: 
• Poor structural condition 
• Water encroaching against abutments 
• Absence of pedestrian access 
• Progressive undermining of northwest retaining wall 
• Failure of northwest and northeast embankments 
• Severe corrosion on both embankments 
• Posted 5 tonne load limit  
• High estimated cost of complete repairs ranging over a $1 Million 



12 

PREFERRED SOLUTION SELECTION 
Why Replace the Bridge? 
• Simply stated, the existing Bailey Bridge has reached the end of its operational life and 

will eventually cause an operational risk. The Bailey Bridge was not originally designed 
as a long term structure and it is failing. 

• The abutments and bridge foundation are failing. 
• Continued structural deterioration has potential to increase sedimentation into river. 
• It is cost prohibitive to repair and/or maintain the bridge in its current form. 
 

From 2013 Bridge Assessment  
‘Overall the structure is in very poor condition with an aggregate condition index of 22.2. The major concerns at 
this site are the water encroaching against abutments as a result of span opening being shorter then watercourse 
width (this situation may lead to unstable substructure in case of high volume water – flooding), road constriction, 
absence of a pedestrian access, absence of traffic barrier, progressive undermining of the northwest retaining wall, 
severe failure of the northwest embankment, partial failure of northeast embankment, improper signage, severe 
corrosion of the bearing plates, isolated severe corrosion of the bottom chords at the ends and west end verticals, 
partial poor condition and progressive deterioration of the bearing seats and progressive deterioration of the masonry 
retaining walls.’ 



13 

PREFERRED SOLUTION SELECTION 
2013 Bridge Condition Inspection and Assessment 
In the 2013 City Bridge Assessment and Bridge Inspection report noted the following severe defects:  
• The north foundation consisting of 11.5 square metres of compacted fill exhibits 20% severe 

erosion and requires reinstallation.  The estimated remaining service life is 1 year. 
• The East and West Abutments each consisting of 46 tonnes of masonry exhibits 20% to 30% severe  

deterioration.  The estimated remaining service life is 2 years for both abutments. 
• Water is encroaching against and under both abutments. 
• The bridge foundation is showing considerable defects.  The north foundation consisting of 

11.5 square metres of compacted fill is showing severe erosion.  An estimated 20% of the 
foundation exhibits severe erosion and requires reinstallation.  The remaining service life is 1 year. 

• Progressive undermining of northwest retaining wall. 
• Progressive failure is ongoing of northwest and northeast embankments. 
• The bridge’s steel truss structure is showing severe signs of corrosion. 
• The overall estimated costs for the various bridge options are: 

Bridge Alternatives Estimate 

Repair Bridge and Maintain $1,300,000 

Close Bridge to Vehicular Traffic and Maintain $1,000,000 

Remove Bridge $500,000 

New Single Lane Bridge $2,200,000 

New Two Lane Bridge $2,500,000 



14 

PREFERRED SOLUTION SELECTION 
Ontario Bridge Code Recommendations: 
• The Bridge Code refers to the Geometric Design Standards for Ontario Highways in terms of 

establishing bridge cross section criteria. 
• The Geometric manual says that the number and width of lanes on a bridge should be the same 

as the approaches, so presumably, if the road is one lane, the bridge should be also. 
• The geometric manual says that the minimum bridge cross section should be 8.5 m for two lanes 

and 5.0 m for one lane, and refers to the Exceptions to the Bridge code provided Table D7-1 of the 
Ministry of Transportation (MTO) Structural Manual. 

• The exceptions to the Bridge Code set out in the Structure Manual are for low volume roads. 
• Low volume roads are those in which the traffic volumes are less than 400 vehicles per day (vpd). 
• Even in this case, once you get up close to 400 vpd, the suggestion is that two lanes are required. 
• The bridge code section 1.5.1 indicates and recognizes that widening of bridges later is a more 

costly exercise than to build wider from the start and indicates that bridges should be designed for 
future reasonable road widening where practical and planned. 
 

Niska Road is a Bailey bridge, which is also considered a single load path type truss bridge.   
In Ontario, the Bridge Code recommended against the use single load path structures.    

 



15 

PREFERRED SOLUTION SELECTION 
Road and Community Safety Concerns 
• Current bridge not supportive of safe pedestrian or cycle crossing. 
• Traffic safety an issue due to accidents. Several fatalities have occurred at the Bridge. 
• Indecision of drivers crossing the bridge the root cause of many “near misses.” 
• Currently the one lane bridge is not deterring traffic as much as the community would 

like, therefore noise, safety and general community is a continued concern for residents. 
• Bridge does not allow for safe wildlife crossing. 
• Over-weight trucks continue to pass over the bridge despite posted weight restriction. 
• Continued deterioration of bridge may lead to sedimentation in river. 
• Continued erosion of the embankment around the bridge and abutment structure. 
• Bridge and road deficiencies cannot be fully addressed through  
      repair/rehabilitation. 
• Ongoing impacts will affect residents and traffic using the  
      road and bridge, including limiting emergency services. 
• Currently no sidewalks, no bike path, no formal parking and 
      no formal access to Speed river. 
• Currently no Bridge lighting. 



16 

PREFERRED SOLUTION SELECTION 
Two Lane Bridge Solution Supports the Following: 
• Supports Niska Road’s designation as a collector road.  
• Positive impacts on the road network through increased functional use by surrounding 

community.  
• Conformity to City of Guelph Official Plan and obligations as per previous EAs. 
• Compatibility with very long term surrounding land uses. 
• Meets current obligation of the City’s OP and other Transportation Class EA’s completed 

within the past 5 years. 
• Provides an opportunity to construct safety and recreational features as part of the 

bridge such as, sidewalks, traffic calming features, canoe launch, on street parking, etc. 
• Hanlon Parkway Class EA identified Niska Road as a fully functioning collector road as 

part of the analysis and decision making process when analyzing location of ramps and 
traffic routing. Analysis included the anticipation of a two lane bridge.  This option 
meets these obligations. 
 



17 

EXISTING ROAD CONCERNS  
Why  Reconstruct the Road? 
The road base and surface pavement is at the end of its end of its operational life, the 
shoulder and storm drainage ditches are either deficient or failing and the road corridor 
between the bridge and Ptarmigan Drive do not support safe pedestrian access.   
Niska Road is currently classified as a collector road in the City of Guelph Official Plan.  
• Niska Road is currently averaging  between 2200 and 2400 vehicles per day 
       and between  110 and 120 cyclist per day. 
 
Traffic control on Niska Road is characterized by: 
• All way stop at Ptarmigan Drive and Niska Road. 
• 50 km/h speed limit. 
• Opportunity to introduce traffic  control measures to encourage  slower speeds and 

discourage ‘short cut’ traffic. 
 
Pavement on Niska Road between the Niska Bridge and Ptarmigan Drive is approximately 6.0  
to 6.5  meters wide, with a failing rural cross section. This section of road: 
• Has severely cracked pavement throughout the road corridor and requires pavement 

reconstruction; 
• Has eroding ditches creating sedimentation in  
        surrounding natural environment; 
• Is without sidewalks or bike path; 
• Has gravel shoulders that are almost completely  
        eroded way; and 
• Has inadequate parking for access to Speed River. 



18 

EVALUATION OF ALTERNATIVES FOR ROAD 

B. Socio-Economic 
• Residents 
• Community and 

Region  
• Heritage Resources 
• Local Economy 
• Pedestrian and 

Cyclist Accessibility 
and Safety 

• Lifestyle and Culture 
• Use/Access to 

Recreational Areas 

Criteria Sections 
Do Nothing/Repair  

and Maintain 
Repave Reconstruct Road 

A: Natural Environment 

B: Social 

Economic/Cultural 

Environment *  

C: Financial Factors 

D: Technical Factors 

E: Problem Statement 

Total Average 

Recommendation Not Carried Forward Not Carried Forward Preferred Solution  

Understanding the Rating System: 
Least Preferred to Most Preferred  

 

* Includes consideration of 
community input  



19 

EVALUATION OF ALTERNATIVES FOR BRIDGE 

Criteria Sections 
Do Nothing/Repair 

and Maintain 

Close Bridge to Vehicular 

Traffic and Maintain 

Remove Bridge / Do 

Not Replace Bailey 

Bridge 

Replace the Existing Bailey 

Bridge With a New One 

Lane Structure and Provide 

Operational Improvements 

to Niska Road 

Replace the Existing Bridge 

With a New Two Lane 

Structure and Provide 

Operational Improvements 

to Niska Road 

A: Natural Environment 

B: Social Economic/Cultural 

Environment 

C: Financial Factors 

D: Technical Factors 

E: Problem Statement 

Total Average 

Recommendation  Not Carried Forward Not Carried Forward Not Carried Forward Not Carried Forward Preferred Solution  

Understanding the Rating System: 
Least Preferred to Most Preferred  

 



20 

PREFERRED SOLUTION SELECTION 
(END OF PHASE 2) 

Throughout the Niska Road Environmental Assessment (EA) process, several alternative 
solutions were evaluated and assessed in the Study Area in a holistic manner. 
 
Following the completion of several studies and significant consultation with interested 
stakeholders, the local community, a project focused Community Working Group and 
review Agencies, the following alternatives were selected as the preferred alternative 
solutions for the road, bridge and intersection components of this EA: 
 
• Replace the Existing One Lane Bridge with a Two lane Bridge 
• Reconstruct the Niska Road from the Bailey Bridge to Ptarmigan Drive  
• Reconstruct the Niska Road / Downey Road Intersection  
 



21 

DEVELOPMENT OF DESIGN OPTIONS 
The environmental assessment process  must be conducted in a holistic manner. 
 

As such, the following studies and plans have been completed in conjunction with 
reviewing the design options:  

• archeological,  
• built heritage,  
• natural environmental,  
• tree inventory,  
• tree preservations plan,  
• cultural heritage,  
• wildlife,  
• terrestrial and aquatic habitat, 
• viewscape review,  
• traffic assessment and vehicle counts,  
• accident counts and trip destination review.  

 



22 

DEVELOPMENT OF DESIGN OPTIONS 
(START OF PHASE 3) 

Once the ‘Preferred Solution’ is selected the ‘Design Options’ are developed in order to implement 
the preferred solution. The design options being considered are as follows: 
 

For Bridge Reconstruction 
Three separate bridge types were evaluated and examined: 
• Covered Steel Through Truss Bridge; 
• Concrete Slab on Steel Girder Bridge; and  
• Pony Truss Bridge. 

 

For Road Reconstruction 
Three separate road cross-section types were evaluated and examined: 
• Urban cross-section; 
• Rural cross-section; and 
• Semi-Urban cross-section. 
 

For Intersection Reconstruction 
Two separate intersection types were evaluated and examined: 
• Signalized Intersection 
• Round-about (Turning Circle) 



23 

NATURAL HERITAGE SYSTEM  
(WETLAND DELINEATION) 

• Through consultation with the Grand River Conservation Authority, it was determined that in 
order to accurately calculate the potential effects of the Niska Road Improvements and Bridge 
Replacement the wetland boundaries were marked (i.e. staked) on-site with GRCA and the Study 
Team.   

• These boundaries were then surveyed for inclusion in the design drawings so that effects and 
potential  impacts could be determined and quantified. 

• The proposed road design cross-section was evaluated against the proximity and impacts to the 
wetland boundary. This evaluation assisted in guiding the selection of the preferred alternative 
design option. 

• The wetland communities were identified and delineated on July 21, 2015 using the methodology 
found in the Ontario Wetland Evaluation System for Southern Ontario (OWES) which is a Ministry 
of Natural Resources and Forestry (MNNRF) guideline. 

• Only the edges of plant species communities which meet the criteria for wetland designation 
(plant species distribution, soil type and texture, soil moisture and habitat features) where the 
wetland features had the potential to be impacted by the project activities (e.g. adjacent to the 
road ROW) were flagged. 

• These flagged edges were then legally surveyed and mapped to provide an accurate boundary 
that could be used as part of the design drawings and to aid in impact analysis. 



24 

NATURAL HERITAGE SYSTEM - WETLANDS 



25 

ECOLOGICAL LAND CLASSIFICATION – WETLAND BOUNDARY 

The pink lines shown in the 
oval denote the boundaries 
of the wetland within the 
study area at the bridge. 

For wetland 
features we looked 
at direct loss of 
wetland vegetation 
and changes to the 
water balance.  
Wetland features 
currently extend 
out to the road 
right-of-way and 
reflect edge effects 
associated with 
road disturbance, 
including salt 
damage, 
deposition of 
sediment and non-
native and invasive 
species growth.   
 



26 

NATURAL HERITAGE SYSTEMS 
(WILDLIFE CROSSING) 

Road mortality of wildlife was also a consideration when choosing design alternatives.  A 
road with a narrower footprint is easier to cross for wildlife and acts as a visual traffic 
calming mechanism.  Added to this will be a variety of paint and physical mechanisms to 
further reduce traffic speeds and increase reaction time. 
  
Enhanced signage, including additional signs for deer crossing, a warning of the distance 
for which the concerns exist, and seasonally appropriate hazard lights will further focus 
driver attention on potential risks within the corridor.  Specifics will be included in the final 
detailed design plans. 
 
An eco-passage for small mammals and herpetofauna is proposed between the significant 
woodland/PSW features on the north and south sides of the road in the hope of further 
reducing the risk of road mortality.  The lack of formal ditches and roadside boulevards will 
act as a deterrent to wildlife on the “shoulders” of the road in the rural option. However 
the curb design may also act as a deterrent to small species in the urban option. 

 



27 

NATURAL HERITAGE SYSTEM - WILDLIFE 



28 

AQUATIC ASSESSMENT 

• Sections of the Speed River Complex and Hanlon Creek are located within the 
project area.  
 

• Areas directly surrounding these watercourses are designated as Significant 
Natural Areas within the City of Guelph Official Plan. 
 

• Aquatic assessments completed in 2013 and 2014 indicate potential fish 
spawning habitat for darter/cyprinid species within the Speed River. 
 

• The Bailey Bridge abutments have created conditions ideal for fish habitat, 
as such, they are to remain intact. 
 

• Amphibian assessments at 2 sites within project area completed in 2013 and 
2014 indicated low potential for Species at Risk habitat. 

 
 
 

 



29 

DESIGN ALTERNATIVES  

Design Alternatives were evaluated  and compared based on social, cultural, 
operational, technical, financial and environmental impacts. The Bridge, Road and 
Intersection design alternatives were all evaluated in this manner.  

 

The evaluation criteria used included:  

 

• Transportation Management 

• Natural Environment 

• Socio-Economic Environment  

• Cultural Environment 

• Land Use Planning 

• Implementation/Construction 

• Technical Considerations  

• Economic Environment  
 

 

 

 

 



30 

BRIDGE DESIGN  
ALTERNATIVES 



31 

BRIDGE DESIGN ALTERNATIVES 
Covered Steel Through Truss 

• A truss bridge is a bridge whose load-bearing superstructure is composed of a truss, a 
structure of connected elements forming triangular units. The connected elements 
(typically straight) may be stressed from tension, compression, or sometimes both in 
response to dynamic loads. Truss bridges are one of the oldest types of modern 
bridges.  A truss bridge is economical to construct because it uses materials efficiently. 
 

 

 

http://www.google.ca/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CAcQjRxqFQoTCJKZ8ZXNoccCFVF_kgodiwoB_A&url=http://www.ousewashes.info/crossings/bridges-and-causeways.htm&ei=UzfKVdKjONH-yQSLlYTgDw&bvm=bv.99804247,d.aWw&psig=AFQjCNEMYLFS-Dh0tUyAT2tHAV4aag6qLg&ust=1439401927094895


32 

COVERED STEEL THROUGH TRUSS BRIDGE  

http://www.google.ca/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CAcQjRxqFQoTCNz56MrNoccCFYtekgodB4EAMQ&url=http://www.shutterstock.com/video/clip-7701451-stock-footage-driving-across-a-truss-bridge-that-crosses-the-pic-river-footbridge-on-right-and-bridge-under.html&ei=wjfKVdyQOYu9yQSHgoKIAw&bvm=bv.99804247,d.aWw&psig=AFQjCNFzr-LBG1JkeOYdCiZ57dPCnqYLtw&ust=1439402280518857


33 

BOWSTRING TRUSS BRIDGE 
 

http://www.google.ca/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CAcQjRxqFQoTCL6h2YbQoccCFU0XkgodYPEBGA&url=http://www.stevebaarda.com/london.php?North-London-Blackfriars-24&ei=WTrKVf6QF82uyATg4ofAAQ&psig=AFQjCNFj8Td-EtLaBjUWuJE3yAkaWUPbYA&ust=1439402948255591


34 

BRIDGE DESIGN ALTERNATIVES 
Concrete Slab on Steel Girder Bridge 

• A girder bridge is a bridge that utilizes girders as the means of supporting the deck.  A 
bridge consists of three parts: the foundation (abutments and piers), the 
superstructure (girder or truss), and the deck. A girder bridge is very likely the most 
commonly built and utilized bridge in the world. Its basic design, in the most 
simplified form, can be compared to a log ranging from one side to the other across a 
river or creek.  

 

http://www.google.ca/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CAcQjRxqFQoTCJWK7prToccCFRURkgodbwkDKw&url=http://historicbridges.org/bridges/browser/?bridgebrowser%3Dconcrete/augusta/&ei=qD3KVZWWO5WiyATvkozYAg&psig=AFQjCNHovDfVP187eZXFUwPvBH6PT4eToQ&ust=1439403381240317
http://www.google.ca/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CAcQjRxqFQoTCN3r19DWoccCFct-kgodQA8NLw&url=http://www.tallbridgeguy.com/2009/07/27/abc-bridges-on-3d-google-sketchup-warehouse/&ei=P0HKVZ3QCcv9yQTAnrT4Ag&psig=AFQjCNEMGanQl3goxihtmMlx1iFjjH1oPA&ust=1439404667565079


35 

CONCRETE SLAB ON STEEL GIRDER BRIDGE  
 



36 

BRIDGE DESIGN ALTERNATIVES 

Pony Truss Bridge 

• A pony truss is a truss bridge which allows traffic through the truss, but the 
top of the bridge is not joined together with cross braces 

http://www.google.ca/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CAcQjRxqFQoTCLnh_dCZpMcCFYtZkgodOOkJGg&url=http://www.dot.state.oh.us/Divisions/Planning/Environment/Cultural_Resources/BRIDGE_STATUS/REUSABLE_BRIDGES/Pages/default.aspx&ei=8JPLVbmpGouzyQS40qfQAQ&bvm=bv.99804247,d.aWw&psig=AFQjCNGrM6MVb12R2adKGnTebG3CFcFmKA&ust=1439491219844571
http://www.google.ca/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CAcQjRxqFQoTCMyQsIGZpMcCFdEakgodbvgPvg&url=http://www.bridgemapper.com/bridge_detail.php?ID%3D1685&ei=SZPLVYzIHdG1yATu8L_wCw&bvm=bv.99804247,d.aWw&psig=AFQjCNGrM6MVb12R2adKGnTebG3CFcFmKA&ust=1439491219844571


37 

BUILT HERITAGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL HERITAGE 
PRESERVATION OPPORTUNITY 

• Operational or weather related loss of the Bailey Bridge will result in complete loss in 
local heritage aesthetics. 

• A monument or heritage feature can be placed in the area that displays information on 
the ‘former’ bridge. Parts of the Bailey Bridge and the abutments can be re-purposed. 

• There is an educational opportunity to provide information locally regarding this area as 
a historical crossing of the Speed River. The current Bailey Bridge is only one of a 
number of bridges at this crossing location. 

• The steel truss and deck of the bridge can be reused at another river crossing as a 
pedestrian and cycle bridge. Preference would be given to finding a crossing in the City 
of Guelph and on the Speed River. 

• New bridge can be designed with segments of the steel truss and the abutments 
embedded in the new structure. 

• New wildlife crossings can be introduced and constructed on each side of the bridge. 
 
 



38 

VIEWSCAPE HERITAGE FEATURE 



39 

VIEWSCAPE HERITAGE PRESERVATION 

The suggested CHL boundary crosses political boundaries, the 
Township of Puslinch and City of Guelph components are 
shown. The easterly road allowance of Pioneer Trail forms the 
boundary south of Niska Road and the open field/woodland 
interface, the boundary on the north side.  



40 

BUILT HERITAGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL HERITAGE 
PRESERVATION 

• The two lane bridge can be designed with segments of the abutments stones embedded into the 
new structure. 

• A new bridge structure can be designed to reflect heritage and physical design characteristics from 
the original structure such as using stones from the abutments embedded into the new structure, 
incorporating the steel lattice style of the railing system and using foundation stones as part of a 
monument. 

• The abutments will no longer serve the function of supporting the bridge structure.   
• Retention and conservation of this identified cultural heritage landscape can be further preserved 

through the placement of a monument at the bridge site with an interpretive plaque detailing the 
history of the Niska Road Bridge.  
 

http://www.google.ca/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CAcQjRxqFQoTCICapoqmz8cCFYxtPgodP08BYg&url=http://www.polishheritage.ca/news_detail.aspx?cat_id%3D16%26page_id%3D31%26news_id%3D286&ei=WiziVYCFJYzb-QG_noWQBg&psig=AFQjCNHj6R8Ll5wQJdAU2E7e1pPWkgsbvg&ust=1440972176641891


41 

OTHER BRIDGE DESIGN ELEMENTS 

Wildlife crossing can be designed behind the existing 
abutments. Currently there are no designated deer or 
wildlife crossing.  A crossing will help deduce wildlife 
collisions and provide additional crossing opportunities.  

A formal canoe or kayak launch can 
constructed on the northwest side of the 
bridge. 

http://www.google.ca/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CAcQjRxqFQoTCObz1eCF5scCFYlckgodkOAHaw&url=http://www.clubkayak.com/greenwave/tripreport.asp?trip%3D201&bvm=bv.102022582,d.aWw&psig=AFQjCNHMWnuhASnO6PdA3VLp6vfwFXg_1g&ust=1441753772829653
https://www.google.ca/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0CAcQjRxqFQoTCKW06NmF5scCFQVLkgodimgBow&url=https://www.scgov.net/naturallands/pages/currycreek.aspx&bvm=bv.102022582,d.aWw&psig=AFQjCNHMWnuhASnO6PdA3VLp6vfwFXg_1g&ust=1441753772829653


42 

OTHER BRIDGE DESIGN CONSIDERATIONS 

Limiting Clearance Arches can be 
strategically placed on both sides of the 
bridge to prevent large trucks from using 
bridge. 

A deterrent for large trucks can be built into 
the a truss bridge.  



43 

EVALUATION OF BRIDGE 
DESIGN OPTIONS 

C. Socio-Economic 
• Residents 
• Community and 

Region 
• Heritage Resources 
• Pedestrian and 

Cyclist Accessibility 
and Safety 

• Lifestyle and Culture 

Criteria Sections 
Steel Through Truss 

Bridge 

Concrete Slab on Steel 

Girder Bridge 
Pony Truss Bridge 

A: Transportation 

Management 

B: Natural Environment 

C: Social Economic 

 

D: Cultural Environment 

E: Land Use Planning 

F: Implementation 

G: Technical 

Consideration 

H: Economical 

Environment 

Recommendation TBD TBD TBD 

Understanding the Rating System: 
Least Preferred to Most Preferred  

 



44 

ROAD DESIGN  
ALTERNATIVES 



45 

ROAD DESIGN EVALUATION 
Three separate road cross-section types were examined: 
 
• Urban cross-section 
• Rural cross-section 
• Semi-Urban cross-section 

 
The key goal of assessing and comparing the design alternatives was to create a safe 
environment for all travelling users while respecting the existing viewscape, streetscape 
and the current environmental condition.  

 
The road design has been evaluated using a two stage approach.  First, Urban vs. Rural vs. 
Semi-urban were evaluated considering both the City Standard cross sections and 
Modified cross-section.  
 
Second, variations of the best cross-section type with the least  overall impact were 
evaluated. In this case, the Urban cross-section had least  overall impact.  
 

 

 

 

 



46 

ROAD DESIGN EVALUATION 
To ensure concerns of the community were incorporated, the following were strongly 
considered in evaluations: 
 

• Public Safety 
• Safe Public Access (sidewalks and shared vehicle lanes) 
• Traffic Calming Measures 
• Minimization of Tree Loss (focus on maintaining overall tree canopy) 
• Maintenance of overall viewscape for Ptarmigan Drive West Bound 
• Creation of an environment which reduces speed 
• Creation an environment which discourages ‘short-cut’ travel 
• Creation of  on-street Community Parking 
• Improved Stormwater management 
 

To prevent erosion, water quality degradation and flooding, several considerations must 
be made when establishing rural or urban road designs.  
 

It is important to note that the width of the bridge will correspond to the final road 
designs; however, all bridge designs will include a sidewalk on both sides. 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 



47 

DRAINAGE CONSIDERATIONS 
Rural Road Cross-Section  
 
• Roadside ditches allow natural velocity attenuation and 

infiltration but may be prone to erosion.  Ditch design must 
consider flow velocities and provide appropriate erosion 
protection (Ex. rock check dams spaced according to ditch 
slope, natural vegetation,  and grade controls such as 
terracing).  
 

• Ditches and culverts must be designed to capacitate and 
convey flooding from storm events. 
 

• The Storm Management Facility at the intersection of Niska 
Road and Ptarmigan Drive discharges to the roadside ditch 
which increases the volume of runoff in the ditch and 
associated erosion. This discharge must be accounted for in 
the ditch design to prevent ongoing maintenance.  
 

• Consideration should be given to the quality of runoff 
entering Speed River and whether additional treatment is 
required. Grasses in ditches in a rural cross-section provide 
treatment and increase the quality of runoff. If required, 
additional treatment may be provided by ponding or bio-
filtration and these options should be explored. 

 

 

Urban Road Cross-Section 

• Urban cross-sections are generally more efficient in conveying 
stormwater through the use of curb and gutter systems and 
stormsewers. Erosion is largely abated though efficiency can often result 
in erosion or flooding at the outlet due to the velocity of the discharge.  

• Consideration should be given to outletting the stormsewer a distance 
from the Speed River to allow mitigation prior to discharging to the 
river. If not possible, installation of a low dissipation structure may be 
used alternatively to reduce erosion and promote infiltration.  

• Drainage patterns should be maintained if possible to maintain runoff 
volume and velocity (Ex. maintenance of ditch which veers from 
roadside and empties into adjacent wetland). Consideration must be 
given to property ownership as stormwater should not be directed onto 
private property. 

• Inlets into the stormsewer will be required to accommodate discharges 
from the Stormwater Management Facility. 

• Measures to consider for water quality treatment include: bio-filters, 
infiltration galleries, impoundments (small ponding areas to promote 
sediment deposition), and oil/grit separators. 

• A partial rural cross-section upstream of the bridge with outlet to the 
stormsewer into the ditch should be considered. This rural ditch could 
increase response time and velocity prior to discharging to the river. 

 



48 

Existing Natural Environment 

 

• The study area is located within lands that have been identified in the City of Guelph OP as part of 
the Natural Heritage System, containing Significant Wetlands, Significant Natural Areas, Significant 
Wildlife Habitat and Crossings, Significant Valleylands and Significant Woodlands. 

• The road corridor may provide wildlife habitat for: raccoon, skunk, squirrel and beaver. These species 
are all tolerant to disturbance and are often found in residential areas.  

• Lands surrounding the study area including GRCA owned land north and south of Niska Road, contain 
potential habitat for coyote, frogs, turtles and a variety of breeding birds.  

• White-tailed deer wintering and movement habitat has been identified by Ministry of Natural 
Resources and Forests (MNNRF) on the north and south sides of Niska Road. The road design will 
consider impacts to wildlife movement. 

• Salamander road mortality survey completed on April 8, 2014 concluded that Niska Road is not being 
used as migratory path for breeding amphibians. 

• Several vegetation community types have been mapped in the study area, including: Mineral and 
Organic Mixed Swamps, Mixed Forests, Deciduous Forests, Cultural Meadows and Meadow Marshes.  

 

 

EVALUATION FACTORS CONSIDERED 



49 

ROAD CROSS SECTION – CITY STANDARD 
 

In-order to minimize overall impacts the City Standard Cross-section was not applied along 
Niska Road. The above cross-section is a typical road design most frequently used for green 
field subdivision design. These standard road designs were screen out as they would cause 
significant disruption through this environmentally mature road corridor. 
 

Examples of these standard City cross-sections are provided on the next two display boards. 



50 

URBAN ROAD CROSS-SECTION 
(CITY STANDARD) 

4.0 m 

3.0 m 

3.5 m 



51 

RURAL ROAD CROSS-SECTION 
(CITY STANDARD) 

2.5 m 

2.5 m 

3.75 m 

1.5m 



52 

ROAD CROSS SECTION – CITY STANDARD 
 

These three modified cross-sections 
were evaluated  



53 

TREE IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 An evaluation of the number of trees that would be directly impacted as a result of the 

design options, including removal and direct effects within the drip-line,  grading and 
excavation for relocated ditches was conducted.  
 
It was determined that although the existing cross-section is rural (with degraded gravel 
shoulders and ditching) once the road is reconstructed the Urban cross-section will create 
a narrower footprint throughout this road corridor.  
 
The urbanized curb and gutter in conjunction with a storm sewer allows for the most 
narrow configuration when considering the placement of sidewalks and bike paths.  
 
The shoulder and ditches require complete reconstruction. Once the gravel or partially 
pave shoulder and ditched are reinstated there would be considerable tree loss. 
 

The following two boards illustrate the amount of tree-loss  that may occur when  
comparing Urban vs. Rural cross-section configuration 

 

 

 

 

 



54 

TREE ASSESSMENT USING RURAL CROSS-SECTION DESIGN 

      Illustrates the 
number of trees 
that will be greatly 
impacted and/or 
removed using a 
Rural Cross-section 
design 



55 

TREE ASSESSMENT USING URBAN CROSS-SECTION DESIGN 

      Illustrates the 
number of trees that 
will be greatly 
impacted and/or 
removed using a 
Urban Cross-section 
design. 



56 

EVALUATION OF ROAD 
DESIGN OPTIONS 

B. Natural Environment 
• Impacts to designated sites (provincially 

significant wetlands, areas of natural and 
scientific interest 

• Required mitigation for trees 
• Number of trees impacted  

• Terrestrial environment impacts 
• Impacts to wildlife / wildlife habitat / 

wildlife corridors 
• Impacts to Natural Heritage Features (deer 

wintering, wildlife crossing and 
overwintering)  

• Impact to existing vegetation 
• Impacts to fish/aquatic habitat 
• Impacts to adjacent GRCA lands 
• Impacts to GRCA regulated floodplain lands  
• Stormwater Management 

• Protection due to run-off 
• Treatment types 

• Overall Corridor Foot print 
• Gravel Shoulder and Ditch, Curb 

and Cutter, Engineered Slope 

Criteria Sections Urban Cross-Section Rural Cross-Section 
Semi-Urban 

Cross-Section 

A: Transportation 

Management 

B: Natural Environment 

C: Social Economic 

 

D: Cultural Environment 

E: Land Use Planning 

F: Implementation 

G: Technical 

Consideration 

H: Economical 

Environment 

Recommendation 
Preliminary Preferred 

Design Concept 
Still Being Considered Not Carried Forward 

Understanding the Rating System: 
Least Preferred to Most Preferred  

 



57 

VARIOUS REDUCED ROAD CROSS SECTION WIDTHS 



58 

URBAN ROAD CROSS-SECTION 
(CITY STANDARD) 

• Highest % tree loss 
and vegetation 
impact 

• Sidewalks and Bike 
path 

• Parking 
• Largest width of 

shared use lane 
• Widest Boulevard 
• Highest overall width 

of disturbance 



59 

URBAN ROAD CROSS-SECTION – OPTION #1 
(SIDEWALK ON NORTH SIDE ONLY. SIDEWALK LOCATED O.5 METRES BEHIND CURB)  

• 75% Lower tree impact 
when compared to the 
standard road design 

• Sidewalk and Bike path 
included 

• On Street Parking 
provided 

• Largest width of shared 
use lane 

• Narrow boulevard 
• The areas to remain 

undisturbed is much 
greater than when 
using the City standard 

• 2nd highest overall 
width of disturbance 



60 

URBAN ROAD CROSS-SECTION – OPTION #2 
(REDUCED PAVEMENT, BIKE PATH, SIDEWALK ON NORTHSIDE ONLY BEHIND CURB ) 

• 70-75% lower tree and 
vegetation impact 

• Sidewalks and Bike Lane 
included 

• On street parking is 
included 

• Width of shared use 
lane has been narrowed 

• Smaller boulevard 
however greater areas 
can remain undisturbed 

• 3nd highest overall width 
of disturbance 



61 

URBAN ROAD CROSS-SECTION – OPTION #3 
(REDUCED PAVEMENT, NO BIKE PATH, SIDEWALK ON NORTH SIDE ONLY BEHIND CURB ) 

• Very low level of tree 
and vegetation impact 

• Sidewalk included on 
north side 

• No bike path 
• No on street parking 
• Driving lane only 
• Smaller boulevard 

however greater areas 
can remain undisturbed 

• Lowest overall width of 
disturbance 



62 

RURAL ROAD CROSS-SECTION – OPTION 4 
(REDUCED PAVEMENT, NO BIKE PATH, NO SIDEWALK) 

• Highest level of tree and 
vegetation impact 

• Sidewalk included on 
north side 

• No bike path 
• No on street parking 
• Driving lane only 
• Smaller boulevard 

however greater areas 
can remain undisturbed 

• Greatest overall width 
of disturbance 



63 

URBAN CROSS SECTION OPTION COMPARISON  
Option 1 Option 2 Option 3 Option 4 

Sidewalk North North North No Sidewalk 

Tree Loss Reduction 
Compared to Standard 

Bike Facility and Shared 
Use Lane 

Yes Yes No Yes 

Areas Not Disturbed 

Parking Yes Yes Yes No 

Width of Travel Lane 4.0 m 3.75 m 3.50 m 3.5 m 

0.5 m Maintenance Strip Yes No No 1.0 m Paved Shoulder 

Boulevard - North Side 1.0 m 1.0 m 1.0 none 

Boulevard - South Side 3.0 m 1.0 m 1.0 none 

Width of Undisturbed 
Area North Side 

2.6 m 3.35 m 3.6 m 1.5 m 

Width of Undisturbed 
Area South Side 

2.6 m 4.85 m 5.1 m 1.5 m 



64 

CURRENT ROAD CONDITION 
 

3.0 m 

3.25m - 3.5 m 

Location : Just west of Ptarmigan Drive 
• 7.5 meters width supports urban cross-

section options 1 to 3  with minimal 
disturbance to existing trees 



65 

CURRENT ROAD CONDITION 
 

3.5 m 

4.0 m 

Location : Just west of Pioneer Trail 
• 7.5 meters width supports urban cross-

section options 1 to 3  with minimal 
disturbance to existing trees 



66 

CURRENT ROAD CONDITION 
 

Parking Area to Access 
Speed River 

Niska Road Bridge 
and Speed River 



67 

TRAFFIC CALMING MEASURES 
(SEE LONG ENGINEERING DRAWINGS FOR MORE DETAILS) 

 
Entering 
Kortright Hills 
Community 
Sign 

Oversized 
Stop Signs 

Raised 
Intersection 

Tiger Teeth  Pavement 
markings 

Painted Cross-walks 

Designated 
Bike Lanes 

Raised 
Intersection 

Proposed New 
Sidewalks 



68 

TRAFFIC CALMING MEASURES 
RAISED INTERSECTION EXAMPLE 

 
 
 



69 

INTERSECTION DESIGN  
ALTERNATIVES 



70 

INTERSECTION EVALUATION 

• Two separate intersection cross-section types were examined: 
• Signalized Intersection 
• Roundabout Intersection 

• The key goal of assessing and comparing the design alternatives,  was to create a safe 
environment for all travelling users while respecting the existing viewscape, streetscape 
and the current environmental condition.  

• It is unlikely that either of the options will result in the direct loss of trees.   
• Vegetation in the potential area of impact is limited to common and culturally 

influenced “old field” herbaceous plants.   
• The site slopes from the tableland area on the north side of the roundabout, where a 

dense boarder of both buckthorn and cedar provides a buffer to the wetland at the toe 
of the slope, adjacent to Hanlon Creek.  Mitigation measures will minimize the 
potential for indirect effects.   

• Vegetation removal may provide the opportunity for management of non-native and/or 
invasive species. 

 

 

 

 



71 

ECOLOGICAL LAND CLASSIFICATION – WETLAND 
BOUNDARY For wetland 

features direct loss 
of wetland 
vegetation and 
changes to the 
water balance were 
assessed.  Wetland 
features currently 
extend out to the 
road right-of-way 
and reflect edge 
effects associated 
with road 
disturbance, 
including salt 
damage, deposition 
of sediment and 
non-native and 
invasive species 
growth.   

 

The pink lines shown in the 
oval denote the boundaries 
of the wetland within the 
intersection area. 



72 

EXISTING INTERSECTION 
(STOP SIGN CONTROL) 



73 

SIGNALIZED INTERSECTION 



74 

ROUNDABOUT OPTION #2 
 (NO DESIGNATED RIGHT TURN  LANE) 



75 

ROUNDABOUT OPTION #3 
 (REDUCED RADII CIRCLE WITH DESIGNATED RIGHT TURN  LANE) 



76 

INTERSECTION COMPARISONS 
Signalization 
• Good level of service 

• Improved safety for vehicular and pedestrian movements. (crossing 
intersection and turning from Niska Road to Downey Road).  

•  Accessible pedestrian signals improve safety for visually impaired. 

• The addition of a traffic signal does not involve any additional 
encroachment into natural heritage features or loss of 
vegetation/trees (direct impacts) or indirect impacts through changes 
in surface water flow. 

• This alternative is preferred as it presents the lowest potential for 
adverse effects. It is unlikely that either of the options will result in the 
direct loss of trees. 

• Provides safer environment for all road users than current stop sign. 

• No property acquisition required. 

• No impact on emergency access. 

• No change in current noise or air quality impacts associated with stop-
start and idling at stop sign. 

•  No impact to aquatics anticipated 

•  Minimal construction complexity and shorter construction timeframe.  

•  Minimal or no utility relocation required. 

•  Temporary noise and air quality impacts during construction. 

•  Limited traffic disruption during construction. 

• No cost of property acquisition. 

• Lower cost of construction. 

 

 

 

Roundabout 
• Typically increased safety through decrease in number and severity 

of collisions compared with stop control or traffic signals 

•  Lower average delay per vehicle 

•  Excellent level of service through decrease in traffic delay and 
traffic congestion at intersection.  

•  Eliminates existing sightline and unsafe turning conditions from 
Niska Road to Downey Road.  

•  Reduced speeds through the intersection.  

•  Pedestrian crossings at roundabout can be challenging for the 
visually impaired. 

• The roundabout has the potential for direct effects including 
vegetation removal and grading within the natural areas.  The 
amount of encroachment will be dependent upon the location of 
the circle (option selection). 

• It is unlikely that either of the options will result in the direct loss of 
trees. Aesthetic value, but landscaping would require maintenance.  

• Provides safe environment for pedestrians and cyclists, but does not 
provide accessible crossings for the visually impaired.  

• Property acquisition required.  

• May increase emergency vehicle response times.  

• May attract more through traffic on Niska Road since delay to Niska 
Road traffic would be very minor.  

• Reduced noise and air quality impacts from decrease in idling and 
stop-start at stop sign.   

• Potential to decrease speed at which vehicles enter Niska Road 
through forced slowing of vehicles to enter roundabout.  

• Utility relocations required.  

 

 

 



77 

Evaluation of Intersection 
Design Options 

A. Transportation   
     Management 
• Transportation safety  
• Speed management and 

elimination  
• Traffic management 
• Impacts to vehicular level 

of service 
• Intersection efficiency 

• Volume 
management 

• Traffic delay 
• Traffic Queue 
• Eliminate traffic 

congestion 
 

Criteria Sections Signalized Intersection Roundabout 

A: Transportation 

Management 

B: Natural Environment 

C: Social Economic 

 

D: Cultural Environment 

E: Land Use Planning 

F: Implementation 

G: Technical 

Consideration 

H: Economical 

Environment 

Recommendation 
Preliminary Preferred 

Design Concept 
Still Being Considered 

Understanding the Rating System: 
Least Preferred to Most Preferred  

 



78 

Class EA Recommendations 
 

In Conclusion: 
 
Following the completion of many studies, assessments and significant 
consultation with interested stakeholders, the local community, a project 
focused Community Working Group and review Agencies, the following 
alternatives were selected as the preferred alternative solutions for the road, 
bridge and intersection components of this EA: 
 
• Replace the Existing One Lane Bridge with a Two lane Pony Truss Bridge 
• Reconstruct the Niska Road from the Bailey Bridge to Ptarmigan Drive with 

a 4 meter wide shared use lane with sidewalks on he north side. 
• Reconstruct the Niska Road / Downey Road Intersection as a fully 

signalized intersection. 
 



79 

Class EA Recommendations 
 

Thank You 

 

Questions 

 



Niska Road Cultural Heritage Landscape Addendum
to:

Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report with Photographic Documentation
Niska Road Bridge, Municipal Site No. 00001, (Lot 12, Concessions 5 & 6 Geographic Township

of Puslinch), Class Environmental Assessment Study, Niska Road Improvements
City of Guelph, Ontario

Unterman McPhail Associates, April 2014

CHC Limited
87 Liverpool Street, Guelph, ON N1H 2L2

(519) 824-3210
email oscott87@rogers.com

February 5, 2015

mailto:landplan@thelandplan.com


Cultural Heritage Landscape Addendum Niska Road, City of Guelph
to April 2014 Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report

Table of Contents

1.0 BACKGROUND - CULTURAL HERITAGE LANDSCAPE ADDENDUM. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

2.0 THE CULTURAL HERITAGE LANDSCAPE ADDENDUM REPORT. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3

2.1 Historical Research. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3

2.2 Physical Characteristics and Spatial Configuration of the Landscape. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9

2.3 Rationale for Boundaries of the Cultural Heritage Landscape. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 25

2.4 Forms of Recognition and/or Protection. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 27

2.5 Cultural Heritage Landscape Evaluation. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 28

3.0 HERITAGE IMPACT ASSESSMENT.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 29

3.1 Description of the Proposed Undertaking and Potential Impact of the Proposal on the Resource.. . . . 29

4.0 RECOMMENDATIONS and MITIGATING MEASURES. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 29

References. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 31

Appendix 1 Qualifications of the author

photographs by Owen R. Scott of CHC Limited, January 12, 2015 unless otherwise noted.

CHC Limited February 5, 2015



Cultural Heritage Landscape Addendum Niska Road, City of Guelph
to April 2014 Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report 1

1.0 BACKGROUND - CULTURAL HERITAGE LANDSCAPE ADDENDUM

The City of Guelph has undertaken a Class Environmental Assessment (EA) study to investigate opportunities for

improvements to Niska Road from the City limits to Downey Road.  According to information circulated for the

first Public Information Centre (held November 27, 2014), both the road and bridge are in poor condition and

require improvements.1

The April 2014 Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report (CHER) concluded that the Niska Road Bridge is of local

cultural heritage value or interest, being ... the only example of a Bailey bridge identified within the City of Guelph,

one of only two examples within the Grand River watershed, and a rare example of a Bailey Bridge remaining in

road use within Southern Ontario.2

The ‘Preliminary Preferred Option’ from the EA is to the replace the bridge with a new, wider structure as well

as implement road improvements, including provision for pedestrians and cyclists. ... the City of Guelph is

considering the replacement of the existing (Niska Road) one-lane bridge with a new two-lane structure at the

same site as part of the planned improvements to Niska Road from the City limits to Downey Road 3,

An invitation to submit a proposal to prepare this report was issued by the City of Guelph on December 4, 2014.4 

The report is a cultural heritage landscape addendum to the Unterman McPhail Associates April 2014 Cultural

Heritage Evaluation Report with Photographic Documentation, Niska Road Bridge, Municipal Site No. 00001,

(Lot 12, Concessions 5 & 6 Geographic Township of Puslinch), Class Environmental Assessment Study Niska

Road Improvements City of Guelph, Ontario.

The above noted CHER recommendations are limited to the Niska Road bridge itself and it is the objective of this

Cultural Heritage Landscape (CHL) Addendum to evaluate an enhanced EA study area using Ontario Regulation

9/06 and make a recommendation as to whether any portion of the EA study area should be considered a cultural

1 from invitation to submit a proposal to prepare an addendum to the CHER, Stephen Robinson, Senior Heritage
Planner, City of Guelph, December 4, 2014

2 Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report with Photographic Documentation, Niska Road Bridge, Municipal Site No.
00001, (Lot 12, Concessions 5 & 6 Geographic Township of Puslinch), Class Environmental Assessment Study
Niska Road Improvements City of Guelph, Ontario. Unterman McPhail Associates April 2014, pp. 22 & 24

3 Ibid, p 23. 

4 Ibid - “The City of Guelph requires a qualified heritage consultant to provide an addendum to the CHER that
evaluates the EA study area using Ontario Regulation 9/06 and makes a recommendation as to whether any
portion of the EA study area should be considered a cultural heritage landscape as defined in the City of Guelph
Official Plan.  If the Niska Road area is found to contain a cultural heritage landscape, the heritage consultant
would provide advice as to how the proposed improvement options for Niska Road and its bridge may impact
the heritage attributes of a confirmed cultural heritage landscape and would also suggest reasonable measures
to mitigate any negative impacts.” from invitation to submit a proposal to prepare an addendum to the CHER,
Stephen Robinson, Senior Heritage Planner, City of Guelph, December 4, 2014

CHC Limited February 5, 2015



Cultural Heritage Landscape Addendum Niska Road, City of Guelph
to April 2014 Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report 2

Figure 1 EA and Addendum Study Areas - Grand River Conservation Authority (GRCA) mapping

heritage landscape as defined in the City of Guelph Official Plan5; and if so, provide advice as to how the proposed

improvement options for Niska Road and its bridge as outlined in the EA may impact the heritage attributes of a

confirmed cultural heritage landscape and suggest reasonable measures to mitigate any negative impacts.  The

Unterman McPhail CHER contains a chapter entitled “Cultural Heritage Landscape Description” that describes

the environs of the Niska Road bridge.  CHL boundaries are not indicated; no listing of the heritage attributes of

the landscape is provided, no significance is attributed to the CHL, and no mitigation recommendations respecting

the CHL are noted.  This addendum investigates the lands (addendum study area) that traverse three political

boundaries as shown in figure 1.

5 “Cultural Heritage Landscape Resource means groups of features made by people.  The arrangement of
features illustrates noteworthy relationships between people and their surrounding environment. They can
provide the contextual and spatial information necessary to preserve, interpret or reinforce the understanding
of important historical settings and changes to past patterns of land use. Cultural heritage landscapes include
such groups of features as neighbourhoods, townscapes and farmscapes.” City of Guelph Official Plan 2001
September 2014 Consolidation p. 234

CHC Limited February 5, 2015



Cultural Heritage Landscape Addendum Niska Road, City of Guelph
to April 2014 Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report 3

Figure 2 pre 1966 political boundaries - EA and Addendum Study Areas - GRCA mapping

2.0 THE CULTURAL HERITAGE LANDSCAPE ADDENDUM REPORT

2.1 Historical Research

As can be seen in figure 1, there are three political jurisdictions in the addendum study area.  The boundaries until

1966 differed from the current scenario (figure 2) when the City of Guelph annexed lands (figure 3) from both

Guelph and Puslinch Townships, and before the amalgamation of Guelph and Eramosa Townships.

CHC Limited February 5, 2015



Cultural Heritage Landscape Addendum Niska Road, City of Guelph
to April 2014 Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report 4

Figure 3 Annexations, City of Guelph 1840 to 1966 - adapted from: Community by Design:
Making Choices for Guelph Future, Opening Remarks – Mayor Karen Farbridge, February 24, 2007

The North Side of Niska Road

The 1861 Leslie and Wheelock Map of the county of Wellington, Canada West (figure 4) shows the road

allowance between Puslinch Township Concessions 5 and 6 being open at that time .  Unterman McPhail (April

CHC Limited February 5, 2015



Cultural Heritage Landscape Addendum Niska Road, City of Guelph
to April 2014 Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report 5

Figure 4 Addendum Study Area - from: Leslie and Wheelock Map 1861 Township of Puslinch website

2014, p. 5) suggest it may have been opened prior to 1849.

In 1827, Felix Hanlon arrived with John Galt as one of his axe men, coming from County Monaghan,

Ireland.  On February 5, 1833 he purchased Lots 12, 13, 14, 15, and 16 on the Sixth Concession of Puslinch

(north side of Niska Road).  Lots 12 and 13 were sold in the early sixties to Mr. Ramsey for the purpose of

establishing a saw mill, which operated here for several years.6 

The 1861 Leslie and Wheelock map (figure 4) shows a saw mill on the G. J. Grange property, Lot 13.  There is

no record at this time of a Ramsey owning the property.  On the 1877 County Atlas7 the property continues in the

ownership of G. J. Grange.  There is a building shown on the Hanlon Creek which might be the saw mill

referenced in the Annals of Puslinch.  The 1906 County Atlas8 shows the property being owned by John C. Crane,

6 Annals of Puslinch 1850-1950, http://www.clarksoftomfad.ca/AnnalsofPuslinch1850-1950.htm, 1950

7 Historical Atlas of Waterloo & Wellington Counties, Ontario, Illustrated, 1881 - 1877, H. Parsell & Co., Walker
& Miles, Toronto edited by Ross Cumming, Port Elgin, ON July 1972.

8 Historical Atlas of Wellington County, Historical Atlas Publishing Co., Toronto, 1906, re-print 1972.

CHC Limited February 5, 2015

http://www.clarksoftomfad.ca/AnnalsofPuslinch1850-1950.htm,


Cultural Heritage Landscape Addendum Niska Road, City of Guelph
to April 2014 Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report 6

the same owner referred to in the next paragraph.  No building is shown on this map, although there is reference

to a shanty on the property in the Annals of Puslinch in next paragraph.  The lands south of present day Niska Road

are in the ownership of Thomas Saunders, and the lands north and in Guelph Township, in the name of Ben

Budgeon. 

In the North-west corner of the Township of Puslinch with only a fence separating it from Guelph Township,

lies the Downey School Section.  The Town Line, running East and West between Puslinch and Guelph

Townships, stops at the County Road.  At one time this Town line was marked out for some distance but

several years ago the Township sold it to the late John C. Crane; now, no trace of a road remains. Some

of our older residents remember a shanty here in which Miss Johanna Lynch lived for several years.9

 

Figures 5 and 6 combine the 1877 historical atlas maps and the 1906 historical atlas maps of Guelph and Puslinch

Townships respectively.  Reference to the settlement pattern of both townships in the vicinity of the Addendum

Study Area is made in the Annals of Puslinch ...

It is apparent that this section was settled from the North as well as the South.  Many who made their way

up from Hamilton settled in the Southern portion, while a few, who came with John Galt to Guelph, settled

in the extreme North.  The names available of those who came with John Galt are the Fosters, Hewitts,

Hanlons and McQuillans, who settled in Guelph Township.  On account of the year of their arrival, they

were known as “The ‘27 Boys”.10

The South Side of Niska Road

Robert Buchanan was born in Paisley, Scotland in 1819.  He came with his father to Upper Canada in 1849 and

purchased 190 acres, Lots 11, 12 and 13, Concession 5 of Puslinch.  His property on the banks of the Speed River

was known as the Buchanan Homestead.11  The Buchanan name is not depicted on the Leslie and Wheelock Map

(1861).  Both the Puslinch Township map in the 1877 Historical Atlas of the County of Wellington (figure 5) and

the corresponding map in the 1906 Atlas (figure 6) show all the lands within the Addendum Study Area south of

present day Niska Road in the possession of the Buchanan family and by 1906, the former Budgeon farm in

adjacent Guelph Township is also in Buchanan family hands.  The Buchanan residence is shown to the west of

the Speed River on Lot 11, Concession 5 within the Addendum Study Area on both maps.

Robert Buchanan ... was a man far above the ordinary and soon made himself felt in the community, where he

became one of the most prosperous and influential citizens. ... ... He was one of the promoters and was President

of the Puslinch Farmers’ Club for many years.  This was the initial Farmers’ Institute in Ontario from which all

of the others have taken pattern. His son, Walter W. followed in his footsteps, being ... President of the Puslinch

Agricultural Society ... ... and has been a Director and Secretary and Treasurer of the Puslinch Farmers’ Club

and Co. Wellington Farmers’ Institute ... .12

9 Annals of Puslinch 1850-1950, http://www.clarksoftomfad.ca/AnnalsofPuslinch1850-1950.htm, 1950 

10 Ibid

11 Annals of Puslinch 1850-1950, http://www.clarksoftomfad.ca/AnnalsofPuslinch1850-1950.htm, 1950 

12 Historical Atlas of the County of Wellington, Ontario Historical Atlas Publishing Co., Toronto 1906. Reprint

by the Corporation of the County of Wellington, 1972, p. 17.

CHC Limited February 5, 2015

http://www.clarksoftomfad.ca/AnnalsofPuslinch1850-1950.htm,
http://www.clarksoftomfad.ca/AnnalsofPuslinch1850-1950.htm,


Cultural Heritage Landscape Addendum Niska Road, City of Guelph
to April 2014 Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report 7

Figure 5 Addendum Study Areas - Guelph & Puslinch Townships 1877,
Historical Atlas of Waterloo & Wellington Counties, Ontario, Illustrated, 1881 - 1877

Figure 6 Addendum Study Area Guelph & Puslinch Townships, 1906
Historical Atlas of Wellington County, 1906

CHC Limited February 5, 2015



Cultural Heritage Landscape Addendum Niska Road, City of Guelph
to April 2014 Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report 8

At the easterly end of the Addendum Study Area on Lot 13, Concession 5, the 1861 Leslie and Wheelock map

(figure 4) shows the property belonging to Wm. Anderson.  No buildings are shown, nor are any indicated on the

1877 map.  By 1906, a house is indicated on the farm, then in the possession of Jas. Anderson13.

The 20th century 

In 1948, Horace G. Mack bought Lots 12 and 13, Concession 6, and developed the Niska Game Farm along

Niska Road.  After Mack’s death in 1959, the Ontario Waterfowl Research Foundation bought the site and

it became known as the Kortright Waterfowl Park.  The Niska Wildlife Foundation, a charitable non-profit

organization formed by interested citizens, took over the Ontario Waterfowl Research Foundation Park in

1976.  The Foundation was responsible for the operation of Kortright Waterfowl Park (305 Niska Road),

as well as developing park policy and raising the necessary funds for its operation.  Public nature trails and

parking were located on the north and south sides of Niska Road to the east of the Speed River.  At the same

time the Foundation took over the Kortright Waterfowl Park, the Grand River Conservation Authority

acquired the lands along the Speed River.  The Foundation operated the park until it was closed in June

of 2005.14

With the termination of the lease to the Foundation in 2014, the GRCA ... intends to develop a master plan for the

long-term use of the property, with input from the community and from the City of Guelph.15

The road allowance between former Puslinch Township Concessions 5 and 6 was known as Kortright Road in the

mid 20th century after the waterfowl park, and re-named Niska Road in 198616, likely derived from the adjacent

Niska Game Farm.  Niska is the Cree word for Canada Goose.  There have been a number of bridges over the

Speed River at this location from the mid 19th century on.  A one-span steel pony truss bridge pre-dated the current

one-span, double truss Bailey bridge that was installed in 1974 after the previous bridge collapsed.

Appendix A of the April 2014 Unterman McPhail CHER provides topographic maps from 1935, 1973 and 2000 

which depict the growth of the City of Guelph adjacent to the Addendum Study Area, the most recent being the

development of Ptarmigan Drive in 1992.  At the western end of the Study Area, modern homes have recently been

built on the south side.

13 “James Anderson, known as the Laird of Puslinch, was an early resident of this Township.  He sold the property
about 1900 to Mr. E. S. Baker who now operates River Bend Camp on the premises.” Annals of Puslinch

1850-1950, http://www.clarksoftomfad.ca/AnnalsofPuslinch1850-1950.htm, 1950 

14 Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report with Photographic Documentation, Niska Road Bridge, Municipal Site No.
00001, (Lot 12, Concessions 5 & 6 Geographic Township of Puslinch), Class Environmental Assessment Study
Niska Road Improvements City of Guelph, Ontario. Unterman McPhail Associates April 2014, p. 4

15 Lovell, Jessica, “Kortright park no longer for the birds” , Guelph Tribune, Tuesday, April, 29, 2014

16 Guelph, Origin of Street Names 1827 - 1997, Ross W. Irwin, President Guelph Historical Society, January 1998,
Guelph, ON, p. 47

CHC Limited February 5, 2015

http://www.clarksoftomfad.ca/AnnalsofPuslinch1850-1950.htm,


Cultural Heritage Landscape Addendum Niska Road, City of Guelph
to April 2014 Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report 9

Figure 7 Landscape features - Addendum Study Area - GRCA mapping

2.2 Physical Characteristics and 

Spatial Configuration of the Landscape

Figure 7 illustrates the existing landscape features of the

Addendum Study Area.  Niska Road traverses the Speed

River valley with the river being crossed by a one-lane 

Bailey bridge.  On the north and south sides of the road,

from east to west, the Study Area is bordered by single

family homes fronting on Ptarmigan Drive (figures 26 -

27).  Niska Road descends into the Speed River valley in

a series of terraces as can be seen via the one metre

contours on Figure 7.  The Ptarmigan Drive intersection

with Niska Road is at the bottom of the first terrace

(figures 28 - 29).  Behind the houses are relatively flat,

open, cultivated crop lands, actively farmed in 2014

(figures 30 - 31).  Sparse hedge rows line both sides of

Niska Road.  In summer, views of the fields from the

road would be partially limited, whereas in winter,

relatively open views are afforded.

Pioneer Trail T’s at Niska road at the bottom of the

second terrace.  South of the cultivated field just across

the Puslinch Township line is the historic

Steele/Anderson house (figures 10 - 11) and River Bend

Park, a mobile home park in the flood plain of the Speed. 

Progressing westward on either side of the road,

immature, mixed deciduous/coniferous woodlands with

numerous open spaces are the remnant of the former

Kortright Waterfowl Park (KWP) (figures 32 - 34), and

before that, farmland.  Buildings, animal pens,

boardwalks and trails on the north side are associated

with that former land use.  Chain link fences line both

sides of the road adjacent these lands (figure 35).  Views

from the road are short, limited by the vegetation on

either side.  As much of it is coniferous, winter and

summer views are both relatively short.

The river crossing affords views upstream and down and

usually rewards the viewer with scenes of waterfowl on

the river (figures 36 - 37).  Views from an automobile

are fleeting as the crossing is short and careful attention

is required to negotiate the one-lane bridge while looking

out for on-coming traffic.  Pedestrian access is very

dangerous as there is no accommodation for pedestrians 

CHC Limited February 5, 2015



Cultural Heritage Landscape Addendum Niska Road, City of Guelph
to April 2014 Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report 10

or cyclists on the narrow bridge (figure 38).

The westerly climb out of the valley is much less steep and without the terracing of the east bank.  Dense, mature

mixed deciduous/coniferous woodlands flank both sides, limiting views to a few metres (figure 39).

Near the top of the slope the road turns to the left at about a 45 degree angle, finding its way on to the former

Puslinch Township/Guelph Township Town Line (figure 40).  This section of road is flanked by open cultivated

fields, fairly well screened by mature trees and shrubs along the roads allowance.  Summer views from the road

would be very limited, while winter views are heavily filtered by the vegetation. 

South of the road is the historic Buchanan homestead with its polychrome brick house and large bank barn (figures

13 - 17).  Modern residences are located at the junction of Whitelaw Road and Niska Road.  The junction is one

of the few vantage points from which long views of the landscape can be had (figures 41 - 43).

Built heritage features in the Addendum Study Area include the Niska Road Bridge, subject of the April 2014

Unterman McPhail CHER; the Steele/Anderson house at Lot 13, Concession 5, Puslinch Township, on the

Township’s Inventory of Plaqued Sites; and the Buchanan homestead in Puslinch Township, Lot 11, Concession

5.

Cultural heritage landscape features include the remnant Puslinch/Guelph Town Line; the paths, boardwalks,

bridges, etc. of the former Niska Waterfowl Park; the fence rows/hedge rows that line portions of the road and

separate fields from one another; and the Speed River Trail.

Niska Road Bridge

The Niska Road Bridge is not municipally designated under the Ontario Heritage Act (OHA).  It is not included

on a local heritage inventory of cultural heritage resources or a municipal heritage register adopted under the OHA. 

It is included in the publication, Arch, Truss & Beam: The Grand River Watershed Heritage Bridge Inventory

(March 2013).

The April 2014 Unterman McPhail CHER provides the following “Statement of Cultural Heritage Value or

Interest”.  The Niska Road Bridge is the only example of a Bailey bridge identified within the City of Guelph, one

of only two examples within the Grand River watershed, and a rare example of a Bailey Bridge remaining in road

use within Southern Ontario.  Developed during the Second World War for military applications, the Bailey bridge

was later adapted to peacetime use.  The double truss Bailey bridge structure on Niska Road has undergone some

modifications but retains its dominant form and design character.  Through its limestone abutments, concrete

rubble retaining walls and Bailey bridge superstructure, the structure conveys aspects of bridge building activities

at the site through the 19th and 20th centuries.  Bridges play a critical role in the settlement of a community and

the Niska Road Bridge site relates to the opening up of Puslinch Township for agricultural development in the

mid 1800s.  The bridge continues to provide critical linkages between the City of Guelph to the east and the City

of Cambridge to the west.  The one-lane bridge with wood deck is a well-known and familiar structure and is

important in maintaining the rural character of the area.  The Niska Road Bridge spans the Speed River that forms

part of the Grand River’s Canadian Heritage River designation.17

17 Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report with Photographic Documentation, Niska Road Bridge, Municipal Site No.
00001, (Lot 12, Concessions 5 & 6 Geographic Township of Puslinch), Class Environmental Assessment Study
Niska Road Improvements City of Guelph, Ontario. Unterman McPhail Associates April 2014, pp. 22 & 23

CHC Limited February 5, 2015



Cultural Heritage Landscape Addendum Niska Road, City of Guelph
to April 2014 Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report 11

Figure 8 Niska Road bridge looking southwest Figure 9 south elevation, Niska Road bridge
Unterman McPhail 2014, p. 16

Figure 10 Lot 13, Con 5 Puslinch, Steele/Anderson House
Gordon Couling 1973 - 00239 Wellington County Museum 

Figure 11 Lot 13, Con 5 Puslinch, Steele/Anderson House
Owen Scott 2015

Steele/Anderson farmhouse

This late 19th century white brick, Italianate farmhouse is not designated under the OHA as far as the author can

determine.  It is listed by the Township of Puslinch in their “Inventory of Plaqued Sites”.  With respect to plaqued

sites, the Township’s Heritage Committee’s mandate is to: record sites of heritage significance within the

Township, award heritage plaques to those recognized as worthy of preservation, and record others for historical

information only; encourage owners of plaqued sites to maintain these properties so that preservation continues

to be realistic; comment on any zoning changes or demolition permits that apply to plaqued sites.18  The house

was associated in the 19th century with James Anderson.19 

The house is situated at the top of a hill with a commanding view of the Speed River valley

Figure 10 is a 1973 photograph taken by Gordon Couling.  To the right is a January 2015 photograph (figure 11). 

Figure 12 is an Anderson family photograph taken on the property circa 1890s.

18 Township of Puslinch website. http://www.puslinch.ca/en/our-government/Heritage-Committee.asp

19 Annals of Puslinch 1850-1950, http://www.clarksoftomfad.ca/AnnalsofPuslinch1850-1950.htm, 1950 

CHC Limited February 5, 2015

http://www.puslinch.ca/en/our-government/Heritage-Committee.asp
http://www.clarksoftomfad.ca/AnnalsofPuslinch1850-1950.htm,


Cultural Heritage Landscape Addendum Niska Road, City of Guelph
to April 2014 Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report 12

Figure 13 Buchanan farmhouse, January 2015

Figure 12: James Anderson, first President of the South

Wellington Agricultural Society and known as the “Laird of

Puslinch”, his wife Felicia Howitt, daughter of John Howitt,

their son Andrew Anderson, and daughter Grace Anderson.20

Buchanan homestead

Located in Puslinch Township, Lot 11, Concession 5, this late 19th century farmstead is not designated under the

OHA, nor is it listed by the Township of Puslinch in its “Inventory of Plaqued Sites”.  The farmstead consists of

a 2-storey polychrome brick house, a large bank barn with an unusual interior silo and typical farmstead plantings. 

It is heavily screened from the road, being almost invisible in summer because of the vegetation (figures 13 - 17).

20 R. A. M. Stewart fonds, Guelph Public Library Archives. http://www.archeion.ca/james-anderson-2

CHC Limited February 5, 2015

http://www.archeion.ca/james-anderson-2


Cultural Heritage Landscape Addendum Niska Road, City of Guelph
to April 2014 Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report 13

Figure 14 Buchanan farmhouse
Unterman McPhail 2014, appendix B

Figure 15 Buchanan barn with interior silo

CHC Limited February 5, 2015



Cultural Heritage Landscape Addendum Niska Road, City of Guelph
to April 2014 Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report 14

Figure 16 Buchanan farmstead from Niska Road, looking south

Remnant Puslinch/Guelph Town Line

The Town Line, running East and West between Puslinch and Guelph Townships, stops at the County Road. 

At one time this Town line was marked out for some distance but several years ago the Township sold it to

the late John C. Crane; now, no trace of a road remains.21 

On figure 17, the original Town Line which was marked out, but never opened as a travelled road is still visible

in this 2010 airphoto.

21 Annals of Puslinch 1850-1950, http://www.clarksoftomfad.ca/AnnalsofPuslinch1850-1950.htm, 1950 

CHC Limited February 5, 2015

http://www.clarksoftomfad.ca/AnnalsofPuslinch1850-1950.htm,


Cultural Heritage Landscape Addendum Niska Road, City of Guelph
to April 2014 Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report 15

Figure 17 Town Line between Puslinch and former Guelph Township still visible in 2010 GRCA airphoto

Figure 18 Gordon Couling 1973

Former Kortright Waterfowl Park

Portions of the former Grange/Crane farm on the north side

of Niska Road and Buchanan farm on the south side of the

road were the Kortright Waterfowl Park, with waterfowl

related activities dating from 1948 as the Niska Game Farm. 

These formerly cultivated lands have been allowed to

naturally reforest with additional plantings of both exotic and

native species.  The east side of the River has a distinctly

different character from the west, being more of a cultural

landscape than a natural one.  This can be clearly seen in

figure 7.

Fence rows/hedge rows

The Buchanan farmstead has a number of treed fence rows/hedge rows of different eras, running perpendicular

to Niska Road.  As well, Niska Road is lined on both sides with Sugar Maples, some planted in the 19th century,

and numerous volunteer trees and shrubs along the Buchanan frontage and the north side of the original Town Line

(figures 19 - 20).

CHC Limited February 5, 2015



Cultural Heritage Landscape Addendum Niska Road, City of Guelph
to April 2014 Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report 16

Figure 20 tree-lined Town Line and treed fence rows on Buchanan homestead

Figure 19 original Town Line from Whitelaw Road looking east

CHC Limited February 5, 2015



Cultural Heritage Landscape Addendum Niska Road, City of Guelph
to April 2014 Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report 17

Figure 21 Pioneer Trail looking south from Niska Road

At the eastern end of the Addendum Study Area, the Niska Road right-of-way is sparsely treed, the mature trees

of the 19th and early 20th centuries having succumbed to road reconstruction.  Pioneer Trail, on the other hand,

retains some of its mature Sugar Maples and sports numerous volunteers (Figures 21 - 22).

Figure 22 Eastern end of Study Area - roadway and fence row trees

CHC Limited February 5, 2015



Cultural Heritage Landscape Addendum Niska Road, City of Guelph
to April 2014 Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report 18

Figure 23 map - Speed River Trail from Wellington Street to Niska Road - http://www.guelphhiking.com/maps.html

Speed River Trail

The Speed River Trail starts at Wellington Street and is 17 km long from Guelph to Cambridge along the Speed

River.  It is maintained by the Guelph Hiking Trail Club (GHTC) which is a non-profit, charitable, volunteer

organization founded in 1970.

Figures 24 and 25:

Speed River Trail access at Niska Road

west of the bridge and trail sign

CHC Limited February 5, 2015

http://www.guelphhiking.com/maps.html


Cultural Heritage Landscape Addendum Niska Road, City of Guelph
to April 2014 Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report 19

Figure 26 Ptarmigan Drive north from Niska Road Figure 27 Ptarmigan Drive south from Niska Road

Figure 30 agricultural field north of Niska Road (east) Figure 31 agricultural field south of Niska Road (east)

Figure 29 Niska Road west from PtarmiganFigure 28 Niska Road east from Ptarmigan at 1st terrace

Views and vistas

The following photographs illustrate views and vistas from and to Niska Road within the Addendum Study Area.

Some are referenced earlier in this report.

CHC Limited February 5, 2015



Cultural Heritage Landscape Addendum Niska Road, City of Guelph
to April 2014 Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report 20

Figure 32 entrance to former Kortright Waterfowl Park

Figure 34 entrance to former Niska Game Farm / Kortright Waterfowl Park, now vehicle turnaround

Figure 33 former parking area - KWP, at Pioneer & Niska

CHC Limited February 5, 2015



Cultural Heritage Landscape Addendum Niska Road, City of Guelph
to April 2014 Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report 21

Figure 35 Niska Road through former Kortright Waterfowl Park

Figure 36 Speed River upstream from Niska Road bridge

CHC Limited February 5, 2015



Cultural Heritage Landscape Addendum Niska Road, City of Guelph
to April 2014 Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report 22

Figure 37 Speed River downstream from Niska Road bridge

Figure 38 narrow one-lane bridge and busy road

- unsafe for pedestrians and cyclists

CHC Limited February 5, 2015



Cultural Heritage Landscape Addendum Niska Road, City of Guelph
to April 2014 Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report 23

Figure 39 dense woodland on either side of Niska Road west of bridge

Figure 40 bend in Niska Road to align with original Town Line Road

CHC Limited February 5, 2015



Cultural Heritage Landscape Addendum Niska Road, City of Guelph
to April 2014 Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report 24

Figure 41  5th Con. Puslinch and Town Line to City of Guelph - Gordon Couling, 1961, Wellington County Museum

Figure 42  5th Con. Puslinch and Town Line to City of Guelph - Gordon Couling, 1973, Wellington County Museum

CHC Limited February 5, 2015



Cultural Heritage Landscape Addendum Niska Road, City of Guelph
to April 2014 Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report 25

Figure 43  5th Con. Puslinch and Town Line to City of Guelph - Owen Scott, 2015

2.3 Rationale for Boundaries of the Cultural Heritage Landscape

Although the landscape of the Addendum Study Area is relatively complex, this is mainly a result of topography, 

vegetation and political boundaries.  There is a consistency that binds the various physical components and that

is the 19th century settlement pattern and history, and the road that divides the landscape in two.  Remnants of the

19th century remain in the form of fence rows, tree plantings, farm buildings, roads, etc.

Cultural heritage landscape: means a defined geographical area that may have been modified by human activity

and is identified as having cultural heritage value or interest by a community, including an Aboriginal community.

The area may involve features such as structures, spaces, archaeological sites or natural elements that are valued

together for their interrelationship, meaning or association. Examples may include, but are not limited to, heritage

conservation districts designated under the Ontario Heritage Act; villages, parks, gardens, battlefields,

mainstreets and neighbourhoods, cemeteries, trailways, viewsheds, natural areas and industrial complexes of

heritage significance; and areas recognized by federal or international designation authorities (e.g. a National

Historic Site or District designation, or a UNESCO World Heritage Site).22

The Niska cultural heritage landscape is defined naturally by the Speed River, its valley and adjacent upland,  and

culturally by the settlement pattern and settlers who cleared the land and farmed it.  The survey pattern is

somewhat unusual in that two 19th century township surveys meet at peculiar angles, creating triangular and other

odd-shaped parcels.  Figure 44 suggests a boundary for the Niska cultural heritage landscape.

22 Provincial Policy Statement (PPS) 2014, p.40

CHC Limited February 5, 2015



Cultural Heritage Landscape Addendum Niska Road, City of Guelph
to April 2014 Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report 26

Figure 44:

Suggested boundary-Cultural Heritage Landscape

The suggested boundary is partially based on the

19th century settlement pattern (1877).  Within the

boundary are two landowners from 1877:

Buchanan and Grange (later Crane).  The adjacent

Anderson farm is also noted (all outlined in green

on figure 44).  Two farmsteads remain from the

1870s, Buchanan and Anderson.  There is no

evidence of the Grange / Crane farmstead, these

lands being occupied in the 20th century by the

Niska Game Farm and later the Kortright

Waterfowl Park.  Political boundaries have

changed in the interim; Guelph Township has

amalgamated with Eramosa Township to become

Guelph-Eramosa Township.  The City of Guelph

has annexed portions of Puslinch Township as

indicated on figure 44.  Because the suggested

CHL boundary crosses political boundaries, the

Township of Puslinch and City of Guelph

components are shown.  The easterly road

allowance of Pioneer Trail forms the boundary

south of Niska Road and the open field/woodland

interface, the boundary on the north side.   The

original Guelph Township/Puslinch Township

boundary is the northerly edge, while the westerly

hedgerow of the Buchanan farmstead forms the

west boundary south of Niska Road.  The

southerly boundary is the City of Guelph/Puslinch

Township boundary or the lot line between the

1877 Buchanan and Anderson farms.  The farm

fields to the east and west of the river and

woodlands that retain no evidence (other than the

Niska Road bridge) of early settlement in the form

of buildings, fence rows, etc. are not included for

that reason. Similarly, the historically and

architecturally significant Steele/Anderson

farmhouse is not included as it would be an

outlier. 

CHC Limited February 5, 2015



Cultural Heritage Landscape Addendum Niska Road, City of Guelph
to April 2014 Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report 27

Figure 45 Regulated areas and the suggested CHL boundary - GRCA, City of Guelph and County of Wellington mapping

2.4 Forms of Recognition and/or Protection

The lands within the suggested CHL boundary are currently protected by a number of policies, not for their

heritage attributes, but rather for their natural resource attributes.  Figure 45 is an overlay of the regulated areas

in the Addendum Study Area.  Almost entirely coincident with the suggested CHL boundary within the City of

Guelph is the GRCA regulated area.  Within that area are the Speed River and Hanlon Creek flood plains which

are part of the City of Guelph Natural Heritage System.  In this case, the System is a “One Zone Flood Plain”23

prohibiting development.  The System also carries further designations of “Significant Natural Area”, “Significant

Wildlife Area”, “Significant Valleyland”, “Significant Woodland”, Provincially Significant Wetland”, and “Deer

Crossing Area”.  This landscape is well-protected from any form of development.  Lands within the suggested

CHL boundary on the Puslinch side are similarly protected by the GRCA regulated area and the County of

Wellington Official Plan which designates the flood plain as “Core Greenlands” and prohibits development therein. 

The remaining wooded GRCA regulated area is designated “Greenlands” where no development will be approved

unless the County is satisfied that the Greenland policies are met.

23 “The One Zone flood plain areas of the City are located within the ‘Significant Natural Areas’ land use
designation.   No development is permitted within the One Zone flood plain areas of the City.” City of Guelph
Official Plan

CHC Limited February 5, 2015



Cultural Heritage Landscape Addendum Niska Road, City of Guelph
to April 2014 Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report 28

The only City of Guelph portion of the CHL not protected by the GRCA Regulated Area or City Significant

Natural Area is the Pioneer Trail right-of-way (figure 21).  The hedgerow in this right-of-way would be considered

for retention/ integration of the hedgerow through a development application process (should one be made) from

a Urban Forest/Tree protection perspective regardless of whether or not it has cultural heritage value.  This

consideration would occur through the Environmental Impact Study (EIS) and the Tree Inventory and Preservation

Plan that would be prepared as part of a development application.24

2.5 Cultural Heritage Landscape Evaluation

The criteria outlined in Ontario Regulation 9/06 are used in this evaluation

Criterion 1 - design value or physical value - to satisfy this criterion the property should:

• illustrate or exemplify a constructed landscape that is typical of a particular group, time or place;

• be unique or rare (the only one of its kind or a prototype, or one of a few in number today due to subsequent

loss);

• be representative (serving as a portrayal or symbol);  and/or

• be an early example (in the context of time and place).

Much of the constructed landscape consists of farmsteads and croplands that are consistent with the 19th century

landscape, whereas some of the landscape has been allowed to revert to nature and is in the process of reforesting

itself.  The landscape is unique in that part of it is the only remnant of a waterfowl park in the area.  It is a

representative and early example of a settlement in Puslinch Township that has endured.  This criterion is satisfied. 

Criterion 2 - historic or associative value - to satisfy this criterion the property must meet two tests, namely: 

• the association is direct - the property should exemplify or have strong evidence of its connection to a theme,

event, belief, person, activity, organization or institution; and

• it is significant to the community – because a theme, event, belief, person, activity, organization or institution

has made a strong, noticeable or influential contribution to the evolution or pattern of settlement and

development in the community. To be significant it should offer new knowledge or a greater understanding

of particular aspect of the community’s history or the history of the culture, or contribute to a comparative

analysis of similar properties.

The landscape has a direct association with persons and organizations who were important to the community. 

Robert Buchanan was one of the promoters and President of the Puslinch Farmers’ Club, the initial Farmers’

Institute in Ontario.  His son, Walter W. was President of the Puslinch Agricultural Society and a Director and

Secretary and Treasurer of the Puslinch Farmers’ Club and County of Wellington Farmers’ Institute.  The

Kortright Waterfowl Park and Niska Research Centre once held the largest population of captive waterfowl

anywhere in North America, and welcomed 45,000 paying visitors each year.  The facility’s research and breeding

program raised about 1,000 ducklings, goslings, and cygnets annually, birds sold to repopulate stock in private

24 pers. com., April Nix, Environmental Planner, City of Guelph, February 4, 2015

CHC Limited February 5, 2015



Cultural Heritage Landscape Addendum Niska Road, City of Guelph
to April 2014 Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report 29

and public areas.  It was named in honour of conservationist and author Dr. Francis Kortright.25 26  Adjacent lands

include those of James Anderson, first President of the South Wellington Agricultural Society, known as the “Laird

of Puslinch”. 

This criterion is satisfied.

Criterion 3 - contextual value - to satisfy this criterion the property:

• needs to be in an area that has a unique or definable character and it is desirable to maintain that character

and consideration should be given as to what would happen to the character of the area if the property was

considerably altered or lost;

• needs to have a relationship to its broader context (physical, functional, visual, historical) that is important

to understand the meaning of the property and/or its context.

The character of the area is definable, and if the physical characteristics that assist in understanding the meaning

of the properties it were not maintained, the character would be lost.  This criterion is satisfied.

The cultural heritage landscape identified in this report meets the criteria of Ontario Regulation 9/06; thus it is a

significant cultural heritage landscape.

3.0 HERITAGE IMPACT ASSESSMENT

3.1 Description of the Proposed Undertaking and Potential Impact of the Proposal on the Resource

This heritage impact assessment is part of the planning and design process for a municipal roads project subject

to a Class Environmental Assessment.  A preferred alternative undertaking has yet to be determined as of the date

of this Addendum report; however, should it be decided that road improvements and/or a replacement bridge are

preferred, the following recommendations and mitigating measures are put forth.

4.0 RECOMMENDATIONS and MITIGATING MEASURES

The cultural heritage landscape meets the criteria of Ontario Regulation 9/06 and is a significant cultural heritage

landscape.  It is located in two adjacent municipalities.  No evidence, other than the Niska Road bridge, of early

settlement in the form of buildings, fence rows, etc. is extant in the City of Guelph portion of the CHL.  Adequate

protection of the existing landscape within the suggested CHL boundary is afforded by numerous Provincial,

Conservation Authority, City and County of Wellington policies.  It is therefore recommended that the CHL need

not be designated under the Ontario Heritage Act in order to conserve its integrity.  Rather, the existing policies

25 O’Flanagan, Rob “Police supervise work at Guelph waterfowl park”, Guelph Mercury, September 22, 2014

26 Dr. Francis H. Kortright (1887–1972), was an engineer, businessman, author and dedicated conservationist.  He
was the author of The Ducks, Geese and Swans of North America and Scientific Descriptions, Identifications,
and Life Stories of Ducks, Geese and Swans in North America and Europe.  As President of the Toronto
Sportsmen’s Association, Dr. Kortright, with the help of TSA members, founded the Canadian National
Sportsmen’s Show in 1948.  The Show has raised over 29 million dollars for conservation, wildlife restoration,
outdoor education, and special projects in Canada.  The Toronto Region Conservation Authority’s Kortright
Centre is also named in his honour as is the Kortright Reading Room in McLaughlin Library at the University

of Guelph. 

CHC Limited February 5, 2015



Cultural Heritage Landscape Addendum Niska Road, City of Guelph
to April 2014 Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report 30

will suffice with the addition of the following caveats / recommendations.

Should Niska Road be improved within the City boundaries from Ptarmigan Drive to and across the Speed River,

the following recommendations / mitigating measures are provided.

1. From a visual perspective, the road cross section from Pioneer Trail to the River should remain a rural cross

section, i.e. roadside ditches or swales with no curb or gutter; however, because the road is perched higher than

the natural landscape on either side, constructing a rural cross-section to current road design standards would

require a greater intrusion into the landscape than a curb and gutter profile.  Therefore, a curb and gutter design

may be a better fit.

2. Should development be approved for the farm fields north and south of Niska Road west of Ptarmigan, views

from Niska Road of the CHL should be carefully considered.

3. Native tree plantings in the Niska Road right-of-way that direct views from the Ptarmigan-Niska intersection

to the valley should be provided.

4. Should Pioneer Trail be improved in the future to provide access to development in the farm field adjacent,

its rural cross section and the vegetation in the east side of the right-of-way should be retained / conserved. 

The view from and to Niska Road is one of the attributes of the CHL (see figures 21 and 33).

5. If the Niska Road bridge is to be replaced, because it has been determined that it is of local cultural heritage

value or interest; because it is in relatively good condition; and because it is a Bailey Bridge, every effort

should be made to find a suitable relocation site, preferably in the City or adjacent townships.

6. Provision should be made for pedestrians and cyclists in the road improvement and bridge plans, preferably

off-road and on one side only to limit intrusion into the CHL and natural landscape.  Currently, the exceptional

views of the river and its waterfowl are unattainable at peak traffic flow times because there are no shoulders

and the bridge cannot accommodate a vehicle and pedestrians or cyclists at the same time.  Views from an

automobile are fleeting at best because of the attention required of drivers negotiating the narrow one-lane

bridge, especially with oncoming traffic.

7. The information in this report should be shared with the public through the City’s website, the Guelph Public

Library, Puslinch Township Library and Wellington County Library.  It should also be shared with the

Puslinch Heritage Committee.

8. Further research should be conducted on the GRCA / former Kortright Waterfowl Park lands when it is safe

to do so to determine if there may be remnants of  historical features or structures on the property such as the

“Ramsey” saw mill of the 1860s.

CHC Limited February 5, 2015



Cultural Heritage Landscape Addendum Niska Road, City of Guelph
to April 2014 Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report 31

REFERENCES

Annals of Puslinch 1850-1950, http://www.clarksoftomfad.ca/AnnalsofPuslinch1850-1950.htm, 1950

City of Guelph Official Plan 2001 September 2014 Consolidation

Community by Design: Making Choices for Guelph Future, Opening Remarks – Mayor Karen Farbridge, February

24, 2007

County of Wellington Official Plan, May 6, 1999 (Last Revision December 5, 2014)

Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report with Photographic Documentation, Niska Road Bridge, Municipal Site No.

00001, (Lot 12, Concessions 5 & 6 Geographic Township of Puslinch), Class Environmental Assessment Study

Niska Road Improvements City of Guelph, Ontario. Unterman McPhail Associates April 2014

Gordon Couling Collection [architectural history], 1960-1982, Wellington County Museum

Guelph Hiking Trail Club website, http://www.guelphhiking.com/maps.html

Guelph, Origin of Street Names 1827 - 1997, Ross W. Irwin, President Guelph Historical Society, January 1998,

Guelph, ON

Historical Atlas of Waterloo & Wellington Counties, Ontario, Illustrated, 1881 - 1877, H. Parsell & Co., Walker

& Miles, Toronto edited by Ross Cumming, Port Elgin, ON July 1972.

Historical Atlas of Wellington County, Historical Atlas Publishing Co., Toronto, 1906, re-print 1972.

Lovell, Jessica, “Kortright park no longer for the birds” , Guelph Tribune, Tuesday, April, 29, 2014

O’Flanagan, Rob “Police supervise work at Guelph waterfowl park”, Guelph Mercury, September 22, 2014

Province of Ontario, Ontario Heritage Act and Ontario Regulation 9/06.

Province of Ontario, Environmental Assessment Act.

Provincial Policy Statement (PPS) 2014, Province of Ontario

R. A. M. Stewart fonds, Guelph Public Library Archives. http://www.archeion.ca/james-anderson-2

Township of Puslinch website. http://www.puslinch.ca/en/our-government/Heritage-Committee.asp

CHC Limited February 5, 2015

http://www.clarksoftomfad.ca/AnnalsofPuslinch1850-1950.htm,
http://www.guelphhiking.com/maps.html
http://www.archeion.ca/james-anderson-2
http://www.puslinch.ca/en/our-government/Heritage-Committee.asp


Cultural Heritage Landscape Addendum Niska Road, City of Guelph
to April 2014 Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report 32

APPENDIX 1 - Report Author’s Qualifications

OWEN R. SCOTT,   OALA, FCSLA, CAHP

Education:

Master of Landscape Architecture (M.L.A.)  University of Michigan, 1967

Bachelor of Science in Agriculture (Landscape Horticulture), (B.S.A.)  University of Guelph, 1965

Professional Experience:

1965 - present President, CHC Limited, Guelph, Ontario

1977 - present President, The Landplan Collaborative Ltd., Guelph, Ontario

1977 - 1985 Director, The Pacific Landplan Collaborative Ltd., Vancouver and Nanaimo, BC

1975 - 1981 Editor and Publisher, Landscape Architecture Canada, Ariss, Ontario

1969 - 1981 Associate Professor, School of Landscape Architecture, University of Guelph

1975 - 1979 Director and Founding Principal, Ecological Services for Planning Limited, Guelph, Ontario

1964 - 1969 Landscape Architect, Project Planning Associates Limited, Toronto, Ontario

Historical Research, Heritage Landscape Planning and Restoration Experience and Expertise

Current Professional and Professional Heritage Associations Affiliations:

Member:Alliance for Historic Landscape Preservation (AHLP)

Member:Canadian Association of Heritage Professionals (CAHP)

Member:Ontario Association of Landscape Architects (OALA)

Fellow: Canadian Society of Landscape Architects (FCSLA)

Community and Professional Society Service (Heritage):

Director:Canadian Association of Heritage Professionals (CAHP),  2002 - 2003

Member:Advisory Board, Architectural Conservancy of Ontario, 1980 - 2002

Member:City of Guelph Local Architectural Conservation Advisory Committee (LACAC), 1987 - 2000 (Chair 1988 - 1990)

Member:Advisory Council, Centre for Canadian Historical Horticultural Studies,  1985 - 1988

Personal and Professional Honours and Awards (Heritage):

Mike Wagner Award 2013 Heritage Award - Breithaupt Block, Kitchener, ON

People’s Choice Award 2012 Brampton Urban Design Awards, Peel Art Gallery, Museum and Archives, Brampton, ON

Award of Excellence 2012 Brampton Urban Design Awards, Peel Art Gallery, Museum and Archives, Brampton, ON

 National Award 2009 Heritage Canada Foundation National Achievement, Alton Mill, Alton, ON 

Award of Merit 2009 Canadian Association of Heritage Professionals Awards, Alton Mill, Alton, ON

Award 2007 Excellence in Urban Design Awards, Heritage, Old Quebec Street, City of Guelph, ON

Award 2001 Ontario Heritage Foundation Certificate of Achievement

Award 1998 Province of Ontario, Volunteer Award (10 year award)

Award 1994 Province of Ontario, Volunteer Award (5 year award)

Regional Merit 1990 Canadian Society of Landscape Architects (CSLA), Britannia School Farm Master Plan

National Honour 1990 CSLA Awards, Confederation Boulevard, Ottawa

Citation 1989 City of Mississauga Urban Design Awards, Britannia School Farm Master Plan

Honour Award 1987 Canadian Architect, Langdon Hall Landscape Restoration, Cambridge, ON

Citation 1986 Progressive Architecture, The Ceremonial Routes (Confederation Boulevard), Ottawa,

National Citation 1985 CSLA Awards, Tipperary Creek Heritage Conservation Area Master Plan, Saskatoon, SK

National Merit 1984 CSLA Awards, St. James Park Victorian Garden, Toronto, ON

Award 1982 Ontario Ministry of Municipal Affairs Ontario Renews Awards, Millside, Guelph, ON



Cultural Heritage Landscape Addendum Niska Road, City of Guelph
to April 2014 Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report 33

Selected Heritage Publications:

Scott, Owen R., The Southern Ontario “Grid”, ACORN Vol XXVI-3, Summer 2001.  The Journal of the Architectural

Conservancy of Ontario.

Scott, Owen R. 19th Century Gardens for the 20 th and 21 st Centuries. Proceedings of “Conserving Ontario’s Landscapes”

conference of the ACO, (April 1997). Architectural Conservancy of Ontario Inc., Toronto, 1998. 

Scott, Owen R. Landscapes of Memories, A Guide for Conserving Historic Cemeteries. (19 of 30 chapters) compiled and

edited by Tamara Anson-Cartright, Ontario Ministry of Citizenship, Culture and Recreation, 1997.

Scott, Owen R. Cemeteries: A Historical Perspective, Newsletter, The Memorial Society of Guelph, September 1993.

Scott, Owen R. The Sound of the Double-bladed Axe, Guelph and its Spring Festival. edited by Gloria Dent and Leonard

Conolly, The Edward Johnson Music Foundation, Guelph, 1992. 2 pp.

Scott, Owen R. Woolwich Street Corridor, Guelph, ACORN Vol XVI-2, Fall 1991. Newsletter of the  Architectural

Conservancy of Ontario Inc. (ACO)

Scott, Owen R. guest editor,  ACORN, Vol. XIV-2, Summer 1989. Cultural Landscape Issue, Newsletter of the ACO.

Scott, Owen R. Cultivars, pavers and the historic landscape, Historic Sites Supplies Handbook. Ontario Museum Association,

Toronto, 1989. 9 pp.

Scott, Owen R. Landscape preservation - What is it?  Newsletter, American Society of Landscape Architects - Ontario

Chapter, vol. 4 no.3, 1987.

Scott, Owen R. Tipperary Creek Conservation Area, Wanuskewin Heritage Park.  Landscape Architectural Review, May 1986.

pp. 5-9.

Scott, Owen R. Victorian Landscape Gardening. Ontario Bicentennial History Conference, McMaster University, 1984.

Scott, Owen R. Canada West Landscapes.  Fifth Annual Proceedings Niagara Peninsula History Conference (1983).  1983.

22 pp.

Scott, Owen R. Utilizing History to Establish Cultural and Physical Identity in the Rural Landscape. Landscape Planning,

Elsevier Scientific Press, Amsterdam, 1979.  Vol. 6, No. 2, pp. 179-203.

Scott, Owen R. Changing Rural Landscape in Southern Ontario.  Third Annual Proceedings Agricultural History of Ontario

Seminar (1978).  June 1979.  20 pp.

Scott, Owen R.,  P. Grimwood, M. Watson.  George Laing - Landscape Gardener, Hamilton, Canada West 1808-187l.  Bulletin,

The Association for Preservation Technology, Vol. IX, No. 3, 1977, 13 pp. (also published in Landscape Architecture

Canada, Vol. 4, No. 1, 1978).

Scott, Owen R. The Evaluation of the Upper Canadian Landscape.  Department of Landscape Architecture, University of

Manitoba. 1978. (Colour videotape).

Following is a representative listing of some of the many heritage consultations undertaken by Owen R. Scott in his

capacity as a landscape architect with Project Planning Associates Ltd., as principal of Owen R. Scott & Associates Limited,

as principal of The Landplan Collaborative Ltd., and principal of CHC Limited.

N Alton Mill Landscape, Caledon, ON

N Belvedere Terrace - Peer Review, Assessment of Proposals for Heritage Property, Parry Sound, ON

N Black Creek Pioneer Village Master Plan, Toronto, ON

N Britannia School Farm Master Plan,  Peel Board of Education/Mississauga, ON

N Confederation Boulevard (Sussex Drive) Urban Design, Site Plans, NCC/Ottawa, ON

N Swift Current CPR Station Gardens condition report and feasibility study for rehabilitation/reuse, Swift Current, SK

N Cruickston Park Farm - Cultural Heritage Resources Study, Cambridge, ON

N Doon Heritage Crossroads Master Plan and Site Plans,  Region of Waterloo/Kitchener, ON

N Downtown Guelph Private Realm Improvements Manual, City of Guelph, ON

N Downtown Guelph Public Realm Plan,  City of Guelph, ON

N Dundurn Castle Landscape Restoration Feasibility Study, City of Hamilton, ON

N Elam Martin Heritage Farmstead Master Plan, City of Waterloo, ON

N Exhibition Park Master Plan, City of Guelph, ON

N Feasibility Study for a Heritage Resource Centre, Regional Municipality of Waterloo, ON

N George Brown House Landscape Restoration,  Toronto, ON

N Government of Ontario Light Rail Transit Route Selection, Cultural and Natural Resources Inventory for Environmental

Assessment,  Hamilton/Burlington, ON

N Grand River Corridor Conservation Plan,  GRCA/Regional Municipality of Waterloo, ON



Cultural Heritage Landscape Addendum Niska Road, City of Guelph
to April 2014 Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report 34

N Hespeler West Secondary Plan - Heritage Resources Assessment,  City of Cambridge, ON

N John Galt Park,  City of Guelph, ON

N Judy LaMarsh Memorial Park Master Plan, NCC/Ottawa, ON

N Lakewood Golf Course Cultural Landscape Assessment, Tecumseh, ON

N Landfill Site Selection, Cultural Heritage Inventory for Environmental Assessment,  Region of Halton, ON

N Langdon Hall Gardens Restoration and Site Plans, Cambridge, ON

N MacGregor/Albert Heritage Conservation District Study and Plan, City of Waterloo, ON

N Museum of Natural Science/Magnet School 59/ Landscape Restoration and Site Plans, City of Buffalo, NY

N Muskoka Pioneer Village Master Plan, MNR/Huntsville, ON

N Peel Heritage Centre Adaptive Re-use, Landscape Design, Brampton, ON

N Phyllis Rawlinson Park Master Plan (winning design competition), Town of Richmond Hill, ON

N Prime Ministerial Precinct and Rideau Hall Master Plan, NCC/Ottawa, ON

N Queen/Picton Streets Streetscape Plans, Town of Niagara-on-the-Lake, ON

N Regional Heritage Centre Feasibility Study and Site Selection, Region of Waterloo, ON

N Rockway Gardens Master Plan, Kitchener Horticultural Society/City of Kitchener, ON

N South Kitchener Transportation Study, Heritage Resources Assessment, Region of Waterloo, ON

N St. George’s Square, City of Guelph, ON

N St. James Park Victorian Garden, City of Toronto, ON

N Tipperary Creek (Wanuskewin) Heritage Conservation Area Master Plan, Meewasin Valley Authority, Saskatoon, SK

N University of Toronto Heritage Conservation District Study, City of Toronto, ON

N Waterloo Valleylands Study, Heritage and Recreational Resources mapping and policies, Region of Waterloo

N Woodside National Historic Park Landscape Restoration, Parks Canada/Kitchener, ON

N 255 Geddes Street, Elora, ON, heritage opinion evidence - Ontario Superior Court of Justice

Heritage Impact Assessments (HIA), Heritage Impact Statements (HIS), Cultural Heritage Resource Impact Assessments

(CHRIA), Cultural Heritage Evaluation Reports (CHER), and Heritage Conservation Plans:

N Acton Quarry Cultural Heritage Landscape & Built Heritage Study & Assessment Peer Review, Acton, ON

N 33 Arkell Road Heritage Impact Assessment, Guelph, ON

N Barra Castle Heritage Impact Assessment, Kitchener, ON

N Biltmore Hat Factory Heritage Impact Assessment, Guelph, ON

N 140 Blue Heron Ridge Heritage Impact Assessment, Cambridge, ON

N 25 Breithaupt Street Heritage Impact Assessment, Kitchener, ON

N 51 Breithaupt Street Heritage Impact Assessment, Kitchener, ON

N 51 Breithaupt Street Heritage Conservation Plan, Kitchener, ON

N Bridge #20 Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report & Heritage Impact Assessment, Blandford-Blenheim Township, ON

N Bridge #25 Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report & Heritage Impact Assessment, Blandford-Blenheim Township, ON

N 215 Broadway Street Heritage Impact Statement, Mississauga, ON

N Cambridge Retirement Complex on the former Tiger Brand Lands, Heritage Impact Assessment, Cambridge, ON

N 27-31 Cambridge Street, Heritage Impact Assessment, Cambridge, ON

N 3075 Cawthra Road Heritage Impact Statement, Mississauga, ON

N City Centre Heritage Impact Assessment, Kitchener, ON

N 175 Cityview Drive Heritage Impact Assessment, Guelph, ON

N Cordingly House Heritage Impact Statement, Mississauga, ON

N 264 Crawley Road Heritage Impact Assessment,  Guelph, ON

N 31-43 David Street (25 Joseph Street) Heritage Impact Assessment, Kitchener, ON

N 35 David Street (Phase II) Heritage Impact Assessment, Kitchener, ON

N 24, 26, 28 and 32 Dundas Street East Heritage Impact Statement, Mississauga, (Cooksville), ON

N 1261 Dundas Street South Heritage Impact Assessment, Cambridge, ON

N 172 - 178 Elizabeth Street Heritage Impact Assessment, Guelph, ON

N 3 - 7 Gordon Street Heritage Impact Assessment, Guelph, ON

N Grey Silo Golf Course/Elam Martin Farmstead Heritage Impact Assessment,  City of Waterloo, ON

N GRCA Lands, 748 Zeller Drive Heritage Impact Assessment Addendum, Kitchener, ON

N Hamilton Psychiatric Hospital Conservation Plan, for Infrastructure Ontario, Hamilton, ON

N Hancock Woodlands Cultural Heritage Assessment and Heritage Impact Statement, City of Mississauga, ON



Cultural Heritage Landscape Addendum Niska Road, City of Guelph
to April 2014 Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report 35

N Harrop Barn Heritage Conservation Plan, Milton, ON

N Hart Farm Heritage Impact Assessment, Guelph, ON

N Irvine Street (Watt) Bridge Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report, Township of Centre Wellington, ON

N 9675, 9687, 9697 Keele Street Heritage Impact Assessment, City of Vaughan (Maple) ON 

N Kip Co. Lands Developments Ltd. Cultural Heritage Resource Impact Assessment - Woodbridge Heritage Conservation

District, City of Vaughan (Woodbridge) ON

N 117 Liverpool Street Heritage Impact Assessment,  Guelph, ON

N 30 - 40 Margaret Avenue Heritage Impact Assessment, Kitchener, ONN

N 2610, 2620 and 2630 Mississauga Road, Cultural Landscape Heritage Impact Statement, Mississauga, ON

N 4067 Mississauga Road, Cultural Landscape Heritage Impact Statement, Mississauga, ON

N 1245 Mona Road, Heritage Impact Statement, Mississauga, ON

N 15 Mont Street, Heritage Impact Assessment, Guelph, ON

N Proposed Region of Waterloo Multimodal Hub at 16 Victoria Street North, 50 & 60 Victoria Street North, and 520 & 510

King Street West, Heritage Study and Heritage Impact Assessment, Kitchener, ON

N 6671 Ninth Line Heritage Impact Statement, Cordingley House Restoration & Renovation, Mississauga, ON

N 324 Old Huron Road Heritage Impact Assessment, Kitchener, ON

N 40 Queen Street South Heritage Impact Statement, Mississauga, (Streetsville), ON

N Rockway Holdings Limited Lands north of Fairway Road Extension Heritage Impact Assessment, Kitchener, ON

N 53 Surrey Street East and 41, 43, 45 Wyndham Street South Cultural Heritage Assessment, Guelph, ON

N Thorny-Brae Heritage Impact Statement, Mississauga, ON

N University of Guelph, Trent Institute Cultural Heritage Resource Assessment, Guelph, ON

N University of Guelph, 1 and 10 Trent Lane Cultural Heritage Resource Assessments, Guelph, ON

N University of Guelph, Gordon Street Houses, Heritage Impact Assessment, Guelph, ON

N Uno Park Road Bridge, Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report and Heritage Impact Assessment, Harley Township, ON

N Victoria Park Proposed Washroom Cultural Heritage Impact Assessment, Kitchener, ON

N 927 Victoria Road South Heritage Impact Assessment,  Guelph, ON

N Winzen Developments Heritage Impact Assessment, Cambridge, ON

N 1123 York Road Heritage Impact Assessment, Guelph, ON

Expert Witness Experience:

Owen R. Scott has been called as an expert witness at a number of hearings and trials.  These include Ontario Municipal Board

Hearings, Conservation Review Board Hearings, Environmental Assessment Board and Environmental Protection Act

Board Hearings, and civil and criminal trials.



Heritage Guelph – April 13, 2015 

 

“THAT Heritage Guelph receive the report titled “Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report 
with Photographic Documentation, Niska Road Bridge, Municipal Site No.00001 (Lot 12, 
Concessions 5 & 6 Geographic Township of Puslinch), Class Environmental Assessment 
Study, Niska Road Improvements, City of Guelph, Ontario” (Unterman & McPhail 
Associates April 2014), and the report titled “Niska Road Cultural Heritage Landscape 
Addendum” (CHC Limited, February 5, 2015) as submitted to the City of Guelph for a 
Class Environmental Assessment (EA) investigating opportunities for improvements to 
Niska Road from the city limits to Downey Road.” 

 

 CARRIED 

 

“THAT Heritage Guelph supports the conclusions of both reports, specifically the 
identification of the current Niska Road bridge as a structure of local cultural heritage 
value and the identification of the defined area around the Niska Road crossing at the 
Speed River as a significant cultural heritage landscape” 

 

 CARRIED 

 

 

 



Heritage Guelph – April 13, 2015 

 

“THAT Heritage Guelph recommends from a cultural heritage conservation perspective, 
the ideal outcome of the environmental assessment process would involve the retention 
and conservation of the identified heritage attributes of the Niska Road bridge in situ and 
the portion of the cultural heritage landscape identified on Niska Road (between Pioneer 
Trail and the bridge) within the city limits.” 

 

 CARRIED 
 

“THAT Heritage Guelph conditionally supports the preliminary preferred alternative for 
the Niska Road Environmental Assessment subject to the following conditions: 

 

THAT should the bridge be approved for replacement that Heritage Guelph 
recommends that staff be directed to investigate practical options for the relocation 
of the superstructure of the Niska Road bridge to a suitable location within the city 
(or Puslinch Township/Guelph Eramosa) for rehabilitation as a pedestrian/cycling 
bridge; and 



Heritage Guelph – April 13, 2015 

(CONTINUED CONDITIONS OF RESOLUTION) 

“THAT Heritage Guelph conditionally supports the preliminary preferred alternative for 
the Niska Road Environmental Assessment subject to the following conditions: 

 

THAT staff be directed to bring a report to Council recommending that the Niska 
Road cultural heritage landscape identified within the city limits be listed on the City 
of Guelph’s Municipal Register of Cultural Heritage Properties under Section 27 of 
the Ontario Heritage Act; and, 

 

THAT Heritage Guelph recommends that the Niska Road cultural heritage landscape 
identified within the city limits within the CHC report, be designated under Section 
IV of the Ontario Heritage Act; and, 

 

THAT Heritage Guelph recommends that the consultant team provides copies of the 
Cultural Heritage Evaluation Report and the Niska Road Cultural Heritage Landscape 
Addendum to the Township of Puslinch and the Township of Guelph/Eramosa; and 
that the City of Guelph provide Heritage Guelph minutes from March 9, 2015 and 
April 13, 2015. 

 

 

 



Heritage Guelph – April 13, 2015 

(CONTINUED CONDITIONS OF RESOLUTION) 

“THAT Heritage Guelph conditionally supports the preliminary preferred alternative for 
the Niska Road Environmental Assessment subject to the following conditions: 

 

THAT the extant stone abutments of the bridge be retained and conserved in situ to 
stand as a monument to previous bridges and construction methods at this crossing; 
and, 

 

THAT the City provide interpretive signage explaining the history of the Niska Road 
crossing and its associated cultural heritage landscape; and,     

 

THAT if development is considered on lands adjacent to the identified Niska Road 
cultural heritage landscape that the views west and south from the intersection of 
Niska Road and Pioneer Trail be considered carefully in order to conserve the 
heritage attributes of the identified cultural heritage landscape; and, 

 

THAT when development is proposed on adjacent lands, the viewshed be studied to 
the north and east with consideration of its impact on the cultural heritage 
landscape; and, 



Heritage Guelph – April 13, 2015 
(CONTINUED CONDITIONS OF RESOLUTION) 

“THAT Heritage Guelph conditionally supports the preliminary preferred alternative for 
the Niska Road Environmental Assessment subject to the following conditions: 

 

THAT Heritage Guelph is circulated the alternative design concepts for the 
preferred solution and be provided the opportunity to review and assess 
potential impacts of the proposed improvements and recommended 
mitigation plans on the cultural heritage landscape; and, 

 

THAT the replacement bridge be designed in such a way that is compatible 
with the cultural heritage landscape and with the current views from the 
bridge (upstream and downstream) not impeded for vehicular, bicycle or 
pedestrian traffic; and,  

 

THAT the City’s EA study team return to update Heritage Guelph and provide 
opportunities for further input regarding the environmental assessment 
following the EA’s second Public Information Centre and prior to the filing of 
the EA document.” 

  CARRIED 

 

 



River Systems Advisory Committee – February 18, 2015 

      

“THAT the River System Advisory Committee conditionally support the preliminary preferred 
alternative for the Niska Rd EA subject to the following conditions:  

 

THAT traffic calming and volume reduction, safe pedestrian and cycling access, maintenance 
of cultural aesthetics, safe wildlife passage and vehicle size restrictions be included.  

 

THAT the River System Advisory Committee are circulated and be provided the opportunity 
to review the alternative design concepts for the preferred solution; the assessment of 
potential environmental effects of the proposed improvements and recommended mitigation 
/ monitoring plans proposed to address any potential adverse impacts.  

 

THAT the City’s study team return to update the River System Advisory Committee and 
provide opportunities for further input regarding the EA at the first meeting available 
following the Second PIC.” 

 

 Motion Carried 

 Unanimous  

 



Puslinch Fire and Rescue Service 
Monthly Report 
September 2015 

 
 

 

 

 

Don’t Become a Driving Statistic! 

It seems like an odd title coming from 
Puslinch Fire & Rescue Services, however 
most months we are involved more with 
Motor Vehicle Collisions than we are with 
fires. A great deal of our time is spent with 
“Rescue Services” involving vehicle 
collisions both on local roads and along 
Highway 401. 
Here is a handy checklist to prepare for the 
coming season. 
 

• Inspect your vehicles mechanical 
condition, tires, windshield wipers, 
and battery  before the snow falls 

• Carry an emergency kit in case of a 
breakdown on a cold night. It gets 
cold very quickly in a stalled car so 
consider packing blankets, a hat and 
gloves. You may have to spend the 
night outside therefore energy bars 
or a high calorie snack.   Water 
cannot be carried in the kit during 
cold weather, however, you could 
always leave with a bottle in hand 
prior to driving.    

• Carry a cell phone so you are always 
in contact with help. Make a list of  

 
 
 
 

•  
 
 
useful telephone numbers and keep 
it in your glove compartment 

• Always have at least a half a tank of 
gas. When you fuel up your car 
remember to top off your wiper 
fluid 

• If possible make a trip during 
daylight hours as it is much safer. 
Your visibility will most likely be 
better and temperatures warmer. 
Should you break down on a quiet 
Township road there is a greater 
chance another driver will come 
along. 

 

At any time of the year, three activities 
account for most accidents, according to 
the National Safety Council. They are 
alcohol, speeding and distracted driving. 
Distracted driving encompasses not just 
texting but also talking on the phone and 
even grooming.  

Don't assume that rural areas are safer 
because of their lower traffic volume. While 
less than a fifth of the population lives in 
rural areas, more than half of crash deaths 
occur there, according to the Insurance 
Institute for Highway Safety. The most 
common crashes there are head-on and 
single-vehicle off-road accidents. 

Significant Events/ Incidents/Trends 

 



 

 
. 

 

 

 

Building Fire 3% 

Vehicle Fire 5% 

MVC 
40% 

Medical 23% 

Burning 
Complaints 4%  

Mutual Aid 4% 

CO/Alarms 16% 

Other 3% 

2015 YTD Emergency Calls 

REPORT MONTH: 2015 September  

  Sept 
Monthly 

Total 

Sept  
2015   
YTD 

Sept 
2014 
YTD 

Sept 
2013 
YTD 

Sept 
 $ Loss 

Monthly 

Sept  2015             
$ Loss YTD 

FIRE: Structure 2 8 7 8 $0 $230,200 
Vehicular 2 13 16 17 $0 $18,000 
Grass and 
Bush 

0 7 3 4 $0 $0 

Other 0 2 6 9 0  
  Monthly 2015 YTD 2014 

YTD 
2013 
YTD 

   

Motor Vehicle Collisions  15 108 130 79    
Medical Assist  13 62 44 41    
Mutual Aid  0 8 5 2    
Carbon Monoxide  2 12 6 5    
Automatic Alarm  1 32 28 25    
Burning Complaints  1 11 14 7    
Incorrect Page  0 1 4 2    
Other  2 9 15 13    

TOTALS:  Monthly 2015 YTD 2014 
YTD 

2013 
YTD 

   

 38 273 278 212    
Estimated Total Dollar Loss 
Due to Fire 

 $0 $371,200 $505,000 $775,000    

Grass Fire 3% 



 

 

Professional Development 

Activity     Month   Day 

Auto Extrication    Oct   6, 7, 13 & 14 

Medical     Oct   20 &21

Pre-planning     Oct       27 & 28 

 

 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70 Puslinch Fire Calls - 2009-2015 

Calls/Mth
12 per. Mov. Avg. (Calls/Mth)

Prevention & Public Education 2015 September 
Activity:  Monthly Total 2015 YTD 

Inspections 3 22 
Water Tank Inspection 28 61 
Investigations 1 8 
Emergency Planning 1 12 
Public Education Volunteer 2 8 
Public Education Paid 1 4 
Meeting 3 23 
Home Safe Home Campaign 0 0 



Rope Rescue Training 

 

Large Shop Fire – Side Road 10 North 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Aberfoyle Fall Fair 

 

 



 

Roof Rescue – Nicholas Beaver Road 
 



Financial Report ‐ September 2015 ‐ Summary

Bank Balance 3,743,664

General Acct. Interest Earned to Date 46,702
 

2015 Taxes Levied to Date Interim 1st Installment 5,480,282
Interim 2nd Installment 5,478,864
Final 1st Installment 5,731,469
Final 2nd Installment
capping
Total Taxes Levied 16,690,615

Taxes Written Off to Date 23,355

Supplemental Billings to Date 66,439
  

Summary of Tax Arrears
2015 Outstanding Taxes 143,866
2015 Outstanding Interest 21,311

Outstanding Taxes and Interest (Prior years)

- 2014 Taxes & Interest 255,477

- 2013 Taxes & Interest 113,842
 

- 2012 & Prior & Interest 81,470

Total Outstanding Taxes & Interest - Prior Years 450,789



2015.06.30 8.0 9759 Township of Puslinch 13/10/2015 2:43PM

Accounts Payable

ChequeCheque

TD Canada Trust Cheque Register By Date

thru 30/09/2015

PayeeNumber Cheque AmountDate

01/09/2015

018866 04/09/2015 001992 1,661.24SCHOCH, JEAN-PIERRE

018876 11/09/2015 000259 500.00COUNTY OF WELLINGTON

018877 11/09/2015 000446 40,336.00GRAND RIVER CONSERVATION AUTH

018878 11/09/2015 000473 12,000.00HAMILTON CONSERVATION AUTH.

018879 11/09/2015 000514 1,770.85HYDRO ONE NETWORKS INC

018880 11/09/2015 000661 14,259.01MANULIFE FINANCIAL

018881 11/09/2015 001945 2,575.27ONSERVE

018882 11/09/2015 001068 289.28PROGRESSIVE WASTE SOLUTIONS CDA

018883 11/09/2015 000934 529.97SGS CANADA INC

018884 11/09/2015 001733 57.57SHRED-IT INTERNATIONAL ULC

018885 11/09/2015 001039 170.25UNION GAS LIMITED

018886 11/09/2015 001774 318.55UNISTITCH INC.

018887 14/09/2015 000969 1,269.80FCDQ

018888 24/09/2015 000025 565.00ASSOC. OF MUNICIPALITIES OF ON

018889 24/09/2015 000119 1,208.79BELL CANADA

018890 24/09/2015 001762 145.00DAVID GUNSON

018891 24/09/2015 001434 371.76DENNIS LEVER

018892 24/09/2015 000769 791.00ONT. BUILDING OFFICIALS ASSOC.

018893 24/09/2015 001993 831.43PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH IN CANADA

018894 24/09/2015 001210 313.29ROGERS

018895 28/09/2015 000998 7,806.16TD VISA

018896 30/09/2015 000021 1,078.36A.F. POLLUTION ABATEMENT SYSTE

018897 30/09/2015 000023 71.56A.J. STONE CO. LTD.

018898 30/09/2015 000030 375.82ABELL PEST CONTROL INC.

018899 30/09/2015 001991 2,960.60ABOUD & ASSOCIATES INC.

018900 30/09/2015 001847 1,492.17AIRD & BERLIS LLP

018901 30/09/2015 000128 62.72BENSON TIRE INC.

018902 30/09/2015 000148 6,746.63BOUCHER & JONES INC.

018903 30/09/2015 000182 113.90CAMPUS HARDWARE LIMITED

018904 30/09/2015 000219 15.82CEDAR SIGNS

018905 30/09/2015 000175 600.00CITY OF CAMBRIDGE

018906 30/09/2015 000259 440.70COUNTY OF WELLINGTON

018907 30/09/2015 001994 359.84CREAMER, PAUL

018908 30/09/2015 000285 197.35DARCH FIRE

018909 30/09/2015 001323 5,321.17DILLON CONSULTING

018910 30/09/2015 001819 678.00ESOLUTIONS GROUP

018911 30/09/2015 000380 32.53FIRE SAFETY CANADA

018912 30/09/2015 001824 55.00FRENCH, ADAM

018913 30/09/2015 000621 402.91GLENN LEACHMAN

018914 30/09/2015 000414 14,137.33GM BLUEPLAN ENGINEERING LIMITED

018915 30/09/2015 001460 44.00GRAHAM ROSS

018916 30/09/2015 000448 722.62GREAT-WEST LIFE ASSURANCE CO.

018917 30/09/2015 000400 659.40GUELPH BUSINESS MACHINES

018918 30/09/2015 000476 791.00HARDEN ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

018919 30/09/2015 000484 405.44HAWS OVERHEAD DOORS LTD.

018920 30/09/2015 000486 456.52HAYDEN'S PROPERTY MTCE.

018921 30/09/2015 000565 299.29JOHN UPTEGROVE

018922 30/09/2015 000572 12,667.30K.D.N. PAVEMENT MARKINGS

018923 30/09/2015 000650 1,428.30M & L SUPPLY

018924 30/09/2015 001529 158.19MICHAEL FOWLER

018925 30/09/2015 000734 4,236.80MRC SYSTEMS INC.

018926 30/09/2015 000761 97.20NORTHERN ICE CO. INC.

018927 30/09/2015 001947 1,415.59OLDFIELD, LORI

Page 1



2015.06.30 8.0 9759 Township of Puslinch 13/10/2015 2:43PM

Accounts Payable

ChequeCheque

TD Canada Trust Cheque Register By Date

thru 30/09/2015

PayeeNumber Cheque AmountDate

01/09/2015

018928 30/09/2015 001516 248.60PARTRIDGE FREELANCE TITLESEARCHING

018929 30/09/2015 000830 126.75PUROLATOR COURIER LTD.

018930 30/09/2015 000836 280.24PUSLINCH PIONEER

018931 30/09/2015 000861 1,375.78REYNER ELECTRIC CONSTRUCTION INC.

018932 30/09/2015 000687 337.01ROBERT MCFARLANE

018933 30/09/2015 000900 18.08ROYAL CITY AUTOMOTIVE

018934 30/09/2015 000905 5,046.84ROYAL SS TANK & TRUCK LTD

018935 30/09/2015 000915 22,449.62SAFEDESIGN APPAREL LTD.

018936 30/09/2015 000932 348.01SENTEX COMMUNICATIONS

018937 30/09/2015 000934 331.09SGS CANADA INC

018938 30/09/2015 000939 1,413.35SHOOTER ELECTRIC INC.

018939 30/09/2015 001733 57.57SHRED-IT INTERNATIONAL ULC

018940 30/09/2015 001987 1,554.88SIGN ART CENTRE

018941 30/09/2015 001852 43.00SPEARMAN, PAUL

018942 30/09/2015 000970 301.26STEAMATIC

018943 30/09/2015 000977 518.50STEVEN GOODE

018944 30/09/2015 000374 113.50SUSAN FIELDING

018945 30/09/2015 000988 280.34SWAN DUST CONTROL LTD

018946 30/09/2015 001076 1,385.37THE WELLINGTON ADVERTISER

018947 30/09/2015 001963 1,400.00THRIVE LANDSCAPES

018948 30/09/2015 001016 132.11TOPECO COFFEE & TEA COMPANY

018949 30/09/2015 001995 45.20URBAN, WALTER

018950 30/09/2015 000980 47.00WAYNE STOKLEY

018951 30/09/2015 001430 399.86WELMAR RECREATIONAL PRODUCTS

018952 30/09/2015 001107 146.75WILSON FIRE SECURITY

018953 30/09/2015 000514 7,600.61HYDRO ONE NETWORKS INC

018954 30/09/2015 000717 2,381.21MINISTER OF FINANCE

018955 30/09/2015 000764 24,107.60O.M.E.R.S.

018956 30/09/2015 000856 276.54RECEIVER GENERAL

018957 30/09/2015 001147 49,163.09RECEIVER GENERAL

018958 30/09/2015 001113 4,100.02WORKPLACE SAFETY & INSURANCE

018959 30/09/2015 001434 127.50DENNIS LEVER

Cheque Register Total - 272,451.56

Page 2



 Corporate Financial Report ‐ September 2015

REVENUES

Account  Description

 Curr Mnth 

Actual 

 Curr Mnth 

Budget   YTD Actual  

 YTD 

Budget 

 $ Budget 

Remaining 

 Total 2015 

Budget 

% Budget 

Remaining

01‐0017‐7710 Sale of Flags ‐                 8                   22                 75             78                 100              78%
01‐0017‐7770 Other Revenues 50                   58                 538               525           162              700              23%
01‐0017‐2310 Mun Tax Assistance ‐                 1,307           ‐                11,760     15,680         15,680         100%
01‐0017‐2320 Host Kilmer (Service Ontario) ‐                 1,856           ‐                16,703     22,270         22,270         100%
01‐0017‐2330 Ontario Hydro ‐                 1,012           ‐                9,110        12,147         12,147         100%
01‐0017‐2340 Greater Toronto Transit ‐                 580              ‐                5,217        6,956           6,956           100%
01‐0017‐2350 Public Works Canada ‐                 166              ‐                1,498        1,997           1,997           100%
01‐0017‐2360 Hydro One ‐                 ‐               ‐                ‐            ‐               ‐               #DIV/0!
01‐0017‐2400 Grant Guelph Junction Railway ‐                 444              5,330            3,998        0‐                   5,330           0%
01‐0017‐2500 Puslinch Landfill ‐                 284              3,351            2,558        60                 3,411           2%
01‐0017‐2600 City of Guelph ‐                 2,072           24,417         18,644     442              24,859         2%
01‐0017‐2700 University of Guelph ‐                 107              1,292            967           3‐                   1,289           0%
01‐0017‐2800 CN Railway ‐                 95                 1,135            851           0‐                   1,135           0%
01‐0017‐2900 CP Railway ‐                 655              7,854            5,891        0                   7,854           0%
01‐0017‐5110 OMPF ‐                 33,717         303,450       303,450   101,150       404,600       25%
01‐0015‐5310 Provincial Aggregate Levy  215,182        17,847         215,182       160,623   1,019‐           214,164       0%
01‐0017‐7510 Current Taxes 11,371           6,714           51,922         60,422     28,641         80,563         36%
01‐0017‐7520 Tax Arrears 5,176             8,983           76,284         80,844     31,508         107,793       29%
01‐0014‐1220 Supplemental Billings 11,461           4,167           66,439         37,500     16,439‐         50,000         ‐33%
01‐0017‐7672 Interest on General  2,803             4,546           46,702         40,913     7,848           54,550         14%
01‐0017‐7675 Interest on Grading 178                127              1,914            1,140        394‐              1,520           ‐26%
01‐0017‐7676 Int. Education/County DC's 4                     14                 79                 127           90                 169              53%

Totals 246,226        84,757         805,911       762,815   211,175       1,017,086   21%

EXPENDITURES

Account  Description

 Curr Mnth 

Actual 

 Curr Mnth 

Budget   YTD Actual 

 YTD 

Budget 

 $ Budget 

Remaining 

 Total 2015 

Budget 

% Budget 

Remaining

01‐0010‐4501 Taxes written off (Twp share only) 4,969             17,832         23,355         160,488   190,629       213,984       89%
01‐0010‐4700 Conservation Authorities Levy Payment 52,336           12,856         133,008       115,700   21,258         154,266       14%

Totals 57,305           30,688         156,363       276,188   211,887       368,250       58%



 Administration Financial Report ‐ September 2015

REVENUES

Account  Description

 Curr Mnth 

Actual 

 Curr Mnth 

Budget 

 YTD 

Actual 

 YTD 

Budget 

 $ Budget 

Remaining 

 Total 2015 

Budget 

 % Budget 

Remaining 

01‐0015‐1110 Signature of Commissioner and FOI Requests 60                 13                 440           120           280‐              160              ‐175%
01‐0015‐1120 Investigator Fees ‐               ‐               ‐            ‐            ‐               ‐               0%
01‐0015‐1130 Engineering and Environmental Fees  ‐               167              16,992     1,500        14,992‐         2,000           ‐750%
01‐0015‐1140 Legal Fees Recovered ‐               ‐               ‐            ‐            ‐               ‐               0%
01‐0015‐1150 Recoveries from Staff Events ‐               79                 ‐            713           950              950              100%
01‐0015‐3738 Other recoveries ‐               ‐               ‐            ‐            ‐               ‐               0%

Totals 60                 259              17,431     2,333       14,321‐         3,110           ‐460%

CONTRIBUTION FROM WORKING RESERVES
Account  Description  Curr Mnth 

Actual 

 Curr Mnth 

Budget 

 YTD 

Actual 

 YTD 

Budget 

 $ Budget 

Remaining 

 Total 2015 

Budget 

 % Budget 

Remaining 

01‐0013‐3185
Contribution from Legal Contingency Working 
Reserve ‐               1,166.67     204           10,500     13,796         14,000        0%

01‐0013‐3195
Contribution from Insurance Contingency 
Working Reserve ‐               833              ‐            7,500        10,000         10,000        0%

01‐0013‐3100
Contribution from Operating Carryforward 
Working Reserve ‐               11,639         ‐            104,747   139,662       139,662      0%
Totals ‐               13,639         204           122,747   163,458       163,662      0%

EXPENDITURES

Account  Description

 Curr Mnth 

Actual 

 Curr Mnth 

Budget 

 YTD 

Actual 

 YTD 

Budget 

 $ Budget 

Remaining 

 Total 2015 

Budget 

 % Budget 

Remaining 

01‐0010‐4000 FT Wages 20,424         17,699         160,985   159,295   51,408         212,393      24%
01‐0010‐4001 PT Wages  2,456           3,037           24,652     27,330     11,788         36,440        32%
01‐0010‐4002 OT Wages  ‐               ‐               ‐            ‐            ‐               ‐               0%
01‐0010‐4100 FT Benefits  2,807           3,009           29,421     27,077     6,681           36,103        19%
01‐0010‐4101 PT Benefits  167              267              1,677        2,400        1,522           3,199           48%
01‐0010‐4102 Manulife Benefits  1,782           1,765           16,042     15,886     5,139           21,181        24%
01‐0010‐4103 WSIB 163              481              4,773        4,333        1,005           5,777           17%



 Administration Financial Report ‐ September 2015

EXPENDITURES

Account  Description

 Curr Mnth 

Actual 

 Curr Mnth 

Budget 

 YTD 

Actual 

 YTD 

Budget 

 $ Budget 

Remaining 

 Total 2015 

Budget 

 % Budget 

Remaining 

01‐0010‐4200 Office Supplies & Equipment 144              177              695           1,592        1,428           2,123           67%
01‐0010‐4204 Water Protection 9                   10                 99             90             21                 120              18%
01‐0010‐4302 Communication (phone, fax, intern) 37                 55                 26‐             491           681              655              104%
01‐0010‐4303 Professional Fees ‐ Legal 230              2,383           6,660        21,450     21,940         28,600        77%

01‐0010‐4305
Professional Fees ‐ Engineering & 
Environmental ‐               2,250           14,031     20,250     12,968         27,000        48%

01‐0010‐4307 Events and Other ‐               583              309           5,250        6,691           7,000           96%
01‐0010‐4308 Mileage ‐               42                 467           375           33                 500              7%
01‐0010‐4309 Professional Development ‐               1,571           9,395        14,138     9,455           18,850        50%
01‐0010‐4311 Membership and Subscription Fees ‐               709              8,490        6,383        20                 8,510           0%
01‐0010‐4312 Employee Travel ‐ Meals ‐               33                 110           300           290              400              73%
01‐0010‐4313 Employee Travel ‐ Accom/Parking 249              83                 1,079        750           79‐                 1,000           ‐8%
01‐0010‐4314 Employee Travel ‐ Airfare ‐               42                 374           375           126              500              25%
01‐0010‐4315 Insurance ‐               3,478           18,152     31,304     23,587         41,739        57%
01‐0010‐4316 Advertising 681              238              1,482        2,138        1,368           2,850           48%
01‐0010‐4317 Water Monitoring ‐               417              3,697        3,750        1,303           5,000           26%
01‐0010‐4320 Contract Services ‐               42                 ‐            375           500              500              100%
01‐0013‐3185 Legal Contingency Working Reserve ‐               417              5,000        3,750        ‐               5,000           0%
01‐0013‐3195 Insurance Contingency Working Reserve ‐               417              5,000        3,750        ‐               5,000           0%

Totals 29,149         39,203         312,566   352,831   157,875       470,441      34%



 Council Financial Report ‐ September 2015

EXPENDITURES

Account  Description

 Curr Mnth 

Actual 

 Curr Mnth 

Budget   YTD Actual 

 YTD 

Budget 

 $ Budget 

Remaining 

 Total 2015 

Budget 

 % Budget 

Remaining 

01‐0180‐4001 PT Wages  7,040           7,040           63,357         63,357   21,119         84,476        25%
01‐0180‐4101 PT Benefits  84                 486              924               4,372     4,905           5,829           84%
01‐0180‐4102 Manulife Benefits  1,701           1,701           15,698         15,312   4,717           20,415        23%
01‐0180‐4200 Office Supplies & Equipment ‐               6                   122               56           47‐                 75                ‐62%
01‐0180‐4308 Mileage 446              250              3,096            2,250     96‐                 3,000           ‐3%
01‐0180‐4309 Professional Development ‐               384              4,117            3,457     493              4,610           11%
01‐0180‐4311 Membership and Subscription Fees ‐               ‐               91                 ‐          91‐                 ‐               #DIV/0!
01‐0180‐4312 Employee Travel ‐ Meals 74                 33                 308               300         92                 400              23%
01‐0180‐4313 Employee Travel ‐ Accom/Parking 157              417              4,533            3,750     466              5,000           9%
01‐0180‐4314 Employee Travel ‐ Air Fare ‐               42                 ‐                375         500              500              100%

Totals 9,502           10,359         92,246         93,229   32,059         124,305      26%



 Elections Financial Report ‐ September 2015

Account  Description  Curr Mnth 

Actual 

 Curr Mnth 

Budget 

 YTD 

Actual 

 YTD 

Budget 

 $ Budget 

Remaining 

 Total 2015 

Budget 

 % Budget 

Remaining 

01‐0120‐4304 Professional Fees ‐ Audit ‐               125              ‐          1,125     1,500           1,500          100%
01‐0120‐4320 Contract Services ‐               ‐               1,208     ‐          1,208‐           #DIV/0!
01‐0013‐3115 Contibution to Elections WR ‐               1,167           14,000   10,500   ‐               14,000        0%

Totals ‐               1,292           15,208   11,625   292              15,500        2%

EXPENDITURES



 Finance Financial Report ‐ September 2015

REVENUES

Account  Description

 Curr Mnth 

Actual 

 Curr Mnth 

Budget 

 YTD 

Actual 

 YTD 

Budget 

 $ Budget 

Remaining 

 Total 2015 

Budget 

% Budget 

Remaining

01‐0015‐3120  Tax Certificates  720               450               5,280        4,050        120              5,400            2%
01‐0015‐1170  NSF Fees  40                 67                 440            600            360              800               45%
01‐0015‐1180  Invoice Administration Fee  ‐                250               725            2,250        2,275           3,000            76%
01‐0015‐1160  Advertising, Legal, and Realtax Fees  ‐                167               5,861        1,500        3,861‐           2,000            ‐193%
01‐0015‐3739       Other Recoveries  ‐                167               ‐             1,500        2,000           2,000            100%
01‐0017‐7780  Garbage bags  872               917               7,395        8,250        3,605           11,000         33%

 Totals  1,632           2,017           19,702      18,150      4,498           24,200         19%

EXPENDITURES

Account  Description

 Curr Mnth 

Actual 

 Curr Mnth 

Budget 

 YTD 

Actual 

 YTD 

Budget 

 $ Budget 

Remaining 

 Total 2015 

Budget 

% Budget 

Remaining

01‐0100‐4000  FT Wages  30,143         18,434         180,427    165,910    40,787         221,214       18%
01‐0100‐4001  PT Wages   ‐                ‐                ‐             ‐             ‐               ‐                #DIV/0!
01‐0100‐4002  OT Wages   ‐                42                 ‐             375            500              500               100%
01‐0100‐4100  FT Benefits   5,289           3,194           33,885      28,750      4,448           38,333         12%
01‐0100‐4102  Manulife Benefits   2,042           2,020           18,374      18,183      5,871           24,244         24%
01‐0100‐4103  WSIB Benefits  873               502               5,261        4,514        758              6,019            13%

01‐0100‐4199

 Computer Software & Hardware 
Operational Upgrades/Support from IT 
Consultant  ‐                250               5,693        2,250        2,693‐           3,000            ‐90%

01‐0100‐4200  Office Supplies   443               667               7,585        6,000        415              8,000            5%
01‐0100‐4201  Hydro  553               436               4,218        3,922        1,012           5,230            19%
01‐0100‐4202  Heat  17                 188               1,538        1,695        722              2,260            32%

01‐0100‐4215
 Cleaning, Maintenance, Building 
Supplies  47                 373               2,663        3,360        1,817           4,480            41%

01‐0100‐4216  Kitchen Supplies and Equipment  89                 256               1,458        2,302        1,612           3,070            52%
01‐0100‐4222  Outdoor Maintenance of Building  ‐                125               741            1,125        759              1,500            51%
01‐0100‐4301  Postage  ‐                806               5,003        7,256        4,672           9,675            48%

01‐0100‐4302  Communication (phone, fax, intern)  398               383               3,495        3,450        1,105           4,600            24%



 Finance Financial Report ‐ September 2015

EXPENDITURES

Account  Description

 Curr Mnth 

Actual 

 Curr Mnth 

Budget 

 YTD 

Actual 

 YTD 

Budget 

 $ Budget 

Remaining 

 Total 2015 

Budget 

% Budget 

Remaining

01‐0100‐4304  Professional Fees ‐ Audit  ‐                1,167           12,537      10,500      1,463           14,000         10%
01‐0100‐4308  Mileage  128               57                 139            510            541              680               80%
01‐0100‐4309  Professional Development  342               415               3,583        3,735        1,397           4,980            28%

01‐0100‐4311  Membership and Subscription Fees  ‐                173               1,956        1,553        114              2,070            5%
01‐0100‐4312  Employee Travel ‐ Meals  ‐                17                 25              150            175              200               88%
01‐0100‐4313  Employee Travel ‐ Accomodations   1,181           33                 1,186        300            786‐              400               ‐196%
01‐0100‐4316  Advertising  116               667               7,798        6,000        202              8,000            3%
01‐0100‐4320  Contract Services  1,462           4,302           23,960      38,715      27,660         51,620         54%
01‐0100‐4322  Emergency Management  183               160               1,438        1,440        482              1,920            25%

01‐0100‐4323  Environmental Service ‐ Garbage Bags  ‐                917               3,322        8,250        7,678           11,000         70%
01‐0100‐4500  Bank Service Charges  135               219               1,418        1,969        1,207           2,625            46%
01‐0100‐4503  Debt Interest Repayment  ‐                1,617           10,948      14,554      8,457           19,405         44%
01‐0100‐4600  Grants  ‐                2,715           32,625      24,431      50‐                 32,575         0%
01‐0012‐1200  Principle Repayment  ‐                8,833           106,000    79,500      ‐               106,000       0%

 Totals  43,440         48,967         477,273    440,700    110,328       587,601       19%



 Building Financial Report ‐ September 2015

REVENUES
Account  Description  Curr Mnth 

Actual 

 Curr Mnth 

Budget 

 YTD 

Actual 

 YTD 

Budget 

 $ Budget 

Remaining 

 Total 2015 

Budget 

 % Budget 

Remaining 

01‐0015‐3742 Building ‐ Other Recoveries ‐               ‐               3,000        ‐            3,000‐           #DIV/0!
01‐0015‐1192 Reproduction of Drawings Fees 50                21                100           188           150              250              60%

Residential Building Permits 32,682        16,667        236,248   150,000   36,248‐        200,000      ‐18%
Institutional, Commercial & Industrial Building 
Permits 15,900        4,167           21,840     37,500     28,160        50,000        56%
Farm Building Permits ‐               200              416           1,800        1,984           2,400          83%
Demolition Permit  300              50                1,110        450           510‐              600              ‐85%
Septic System Permit 6,600           1,667           22,500     15,000     2,500‐           20,000        ‐13%
Designated Structures Permit ‐               67                1,500        600           700‐              800              ‐88%
Tent or Marquee Permit ‐               75                1,200        675           300‐              900              ‐33%
Deferral of Revocation of Permit ‐               25                300           225           ‐               300              0%
Reactivate Abandoned Permit ‐               13                ‐            113           150              150              100%
Transfer of Permit ‐               ‐               ‐            ‐            ‐               ‐               #DIV/0!

Revision to a Permit 1,200           250              4,050        2,250        1,050‐           3,000          ‐35%
Alternate Solution Application ‐               58                ‐            525           700              700              100%
Conditional Permits ‐               ‐               ‐            ‐            ‐               ‐               #DIV/0!

01‐0017‐7290 Special Inspection Fee ‐               25                900           225           600‐              300              ‐200%
Totals 56,732        23,283        293,164   209,550   13,764‐        279,400      ‐5%

CONTRIBUTION FROM WORKING RESERVES
01‐0013‐3150 Contribution from Building Reserve Fund ‐               7,021           ‐            49,145     84,248        84,248        100%

Totals ‐               7,021           ‐            49,145     84,248        84,248        100%

EXPENDITURES

Account  Description

 Curr Mnth 

Actual 

 Curr Mnth 

Budget 

 YTD 

Actual 

 YTD 

Budget 

 $ Budget 

Remaining 

 Total 2015 

Budget 

% Budget 

Remaining

01‐0020‐4000 FT Wages 17,588        15,244        138,600   137,199   44,332        182,932      24%
01‐0020‐4001 PT Wages  128              183              1,174        1,650        1,026           2,200          47%
01‐0020‐4002 OT Wages  240              100              240           900           960              1,200          80%
01‐0020‐4100 FT Benefits  2,817           2,668           25,769     24,014     6,249           32,018        20%
01‐0020‐4101 PT Benefits  7                   16                65             145           129              193              67%

01‐0017‐7250

01‐0017‐7210

01‐0017‐7240



 Building Financial Report ‐ September 2015

EXPENDITURES

Account  Description

 Curr Mnth 

Actual 

 Curr Mnth 

Budget 

 YTD 

Actual 

 YTD 

Budget 

 $ Budget 

Remaining 

 Total 2015 

Budget 

% Budget 

Remaining

01‐0020‐4102 Manulife Benefits 1,807           1,755           16,266     15,799     4,799           21,065        23%
01‐0020‐4103 WSIB 561              447              4,396        4,025        970              5,366          18%
01‐0020‐4199 Computer Software & Hardware  ‐               83                1,505        750           505‐              1,000          ‐51%
01‐0020‐4200 Office Supplies 1,335           565              5,619        5,086        1,162           6,781          17%
01‐0020‐4201 Hydro 280              185              1,841        1,661        374              2,215          17%
01‐0020‐4202 Heat 17                117              1,158        1,057        252              1,410          18%
01‐0020‐4203 Fuel ‐               680              ‐            6,116        8,155           8,155          100%
01‐0020‐4204 Water Protection 4                   4                   52             36             4‐                   48                ‐8%
01‐0020‐4208 Signage ‐               8                   ‐            75             100              100              100%
01‐0020‐4215 Cleaning, Maint & supplies for Bldg 20                155              1,393        1,395        468              1,860          25%
01‐0020‐4216 Kitchen Supplies and Equipment 40                157              678           1,417        1,212           1,890          64%
01‐0020‐4220 Vehicle Maintenance ‐               158              3,544        1,425        1,644‐           1,900          ‐87%
01‐0020‐4222 Outdoor Maintenance of Building ‐               25                317           225           17‐                300              ‐6%
01‐0020‐4301 Postage ‐               346              2,146        3,113        2,005           4,150          48%
01‐0020‐4302 Communication(phone, fax, intern) 193              342              2,066        3,075        2,034           4,100          50%
01‐0020‐4303 Professional Fees‐Legal 683              1,742           2,820        15,675     18,080        20,900        87%
01‐0020‐4304 Professional Fees ‐ Audit ‐               500              5,373        4,500        627              6,000          10%
01‐0020‐4305 Professional Fees ‐ Engineering ‐               167              539           1,500        1,461           2,000          73%
01‐0020‐4308 Mileage 50                8                   413           75             313‐              100              ‐313%
01‐0020‐4309 Professional Development 1,658           661              6,441        5,951        1,494           7,935          19%
01‐0020‐4311 Membership and Subscription Fees ‐               255              2,470        2,295        590              3,060          19%
01‐0020‐4312 Employee Travel ‐ Meals ‐               42                620           375           120‐              500              ‐24%
01‐0020‐4313 Employee Travel ‐ Accomodations  204              242              1,334        2,175        1,566           2,900          54%
01‐0020‐4315 Insurance ‐               1,337           9,616        12,034     6,429           16,045        40%
01‐0020‐4316 Advertising 50                63                130           563           620              750              83%
01‐0020‐4318 Vehicle Plates ‐               24                ‐            212           283              283              100%
01‐0020‐4320 Contract Services 925              1,843           13,022     16,590     9,098           22,120        41%
01‐0020‐4321 Clothing, Safety Allowance 287              58                422           525           278              700              40%
01‐0020‐4322 Emergency Management 78                68                616           611           199              815              24%
01‐0020‐4500 Service Charges 58                55                443           491           212              655              32%

Totals 29,028        30,304        251,089   272,736   112,560      363,648      31%



 Source Water Protection Financial Report ‐ September 2015

REVENUES
Account  Description  Curr Mnth 

Actual 

 Curr Mnth 

Budget   YTD Actual   YTD Budget 

 $ Budget 

Remaining 

 Total 2015 

Budget 

 % Budget 

Remaining 

01‐0015‐5270
Source Protection Municipal 
Implementation Fund ‐               1,250           15,000         11,250           ‐                  15,000        0%
Totals ‐               1,250           15,000         11,250           ‐                  15,000        0%

CONTRIBUTION FROM WORKING RESERVES
Account  Description  Curr Mnth 

Actual 

 Curr Mnth 

Budget   YTD Actual   YTD Budget 

 $ Budget 

Remaining 

 Total 2015 

Budget 

 % Budget 

Remaining 

01‐0013‐3100
Contibution from Operating 
Carryforward Working Reserve ‐               2,018           ‐                14,125           24,215           24,215        100%
Totals ‐               2,018           ‐                14,125           24,215           24,215        100%

EXPENDITURES
Account  Description  Curr Mnth 

Actual 

 Curr Mnth 

Budget   YTD Actual   YTD Budget 

 $ Budget 

Remaining 

 Total 2015 

Budget 

 % Budget 

Remaining 

01‐0160‐4000
FT Wages/Benefits Source Water 
Protection               ‐               1,017           ‐                9,152             12,202           12,202        100%

01‐0160‐4207 Public Education Costs ‐               773              2,587            6,954             6,686              9,272           72%
01‐0160‐4305 Professional Fees ‐               1,478           ‐                13,305           17,740           17,740        100%

Totals ‐               3,268           2,587            29,411           36,628           39,215        93%



 Planning Financial Report ‐ September 2015

REVENUES
Account  Description  Curr Mnth 

Actual 

 Curr Mnth 

Budget 

 YTD 

Actual 

 YTD 

Budget 

 $ Budget 

Remaining 

 Total 2015 

Budget 

 % Budget 

Remaining 

01‐0015‐1190 Engineering, Environmental, and Legal Fees 
Recovered 420              3,083           32,885     27,750   4,115           37,000         11%

01‐0015‐1191 Advertising Fees Recovered ‐               250              292           2,250     2,708           3,000           90%
01‐0015‐3240 Zoning Compliance Letter 300              167              1,500        1,500     500              2,000           25%
01‐0015‐1200 Minor Variance Application 1,300           458              6,500        4,125     1,000‐           5,500           ‐18%
01‐0015‐1205 Agreements ‐               ‐               ‐            ‐          ‐               ‐               100%
01‐0015‐1210 Part Lot Control Exemption By‐law ‐               ‐               ‐            ‐          ‐               ‐               #DIV/0!
01‐0015‐1220 Site Plan Control  4,000           500              8,000        4,500     2,000‐           6,000           ‐33%
01‐0015‐1230 Zoning By‐law Amendment ‐               833              12,000     7,500     2,000‐           10,000         ‐20%
01‐0017‐7760 Zoning By‐law #19/85 ‐               ‐               ‐            ‐          ‐               ‐               #DIV/0!
01‐0015‐1240 Zoning By‐law Amendment ‐ Aggregate 

Applications 7,500           ‐               7,500        ‐          7,500‐           ‐               #DIV/0!
01‐0015‐4100 Business Retention and Expansion Municipal 

Implementation Fund ‐               1,042           35,000     9,375     22,500‐         12,500         ‐180%
Totals 13,520         6,333           103,677   57,000   27,677‐         76,000         ‐36%

EXPENDITURES
Account  Description  Curr Mnth 

Actual 

 Curr Mnth 

Budget 

 YTD 

Actual 

 YTD 

Budget 

 $ Budget 

Remaining 

 Total 2015 

Budget 

 % Budget 

Remaining 

01‐0130‐4000 FT Wages  4,673           4,050           36,667     36,454   11,938         48,605         25%
01‐0130‐4002 OT Wages  721              50                721           450         121‐              600              ‐20%
01‐0130‐4100 FT Benefits 931              708              7,012        6,373     1,486           8,498           17%
01‐0130‐4102 Manulife Benefits  488              480              4,347        4,322     1,416           5,763           25%
01‐00130‐4103 WSIB ‐               118              ‐            1,063     1,417           1,417           100%
01‐0130‐4200 Office Supplies 147              21                176           188         74                 250              30%
01‐0130‐4208 Signage ‐               21                21             188         229              250              92%

01‐0130‐4215 Cleaning, Maintenance & Supplies for Building ‐               ‐               ‐            ‐          ‐               ‐               #DIV/0!
01‐0130‐4302 Communication (phone, fax, Internet) 84                 2                   130           19           105‐              25                 ‐420%
01‐0130‐4303 Professional Fees ‐ Legal ‐               417              7,983        3,750     2,983‐           5,000           ‐60%



 Planning Financial Report ‐ September 2015

EXPENDITURES
Account  Description  Curr Mnth 

Actual 

 Curr Mnth 

Budget 

 YTD 

Actual 

 YTD 

Budget 

 $ Budget 

Remaining 

 Total 2015 

Budget 

 % Budget 

Remaining 

01‐0130‐4305 Professional Fees ‐ Engineering & 
Environmental 3,478           3,750           37,294     33,750   7,706           45,000         17%

01‐0130‐4308 Mileage ‐               21                302           188         52‐                 250              ‐21%
01‐0130‐4309 Professional Development ‐               250              2,912        2,250     88                 3,000           3%
01‐0130‐4311 Membership and Subscription Fees ‐               38                ‐            338         450              450              100%
01‐0130‐4312 Employee Travel ‐ Meals ‐               8                   ‐            75           100              100              100%
01‐0130‐4313 Employee Travel ‐ Accomodations  ‐               29                ‐            263         350              350              100%
01‐0130‐4316 Advertising 416              333              4,069        3,000     69‐                 4,000           ‐2%
01‐0130‐4317 Professional Fees ‐ Water Monitoring ‐               184              336           1,654     1,870           2,205           85%
01‐0130‐4320 Contract Services ‐               292              570           2,625     2,930           3,500           84%

Totals 10,937         10,772        102,541   96,948   26,722         129,264       21%



 By‐law Financial Report ‐ September 2015

REVENUES

Account  Description

 Curr Mnth 

Actual 

 Curr Mnth 

Budget   YTD Actual   YTD Budget 

 $ Budget 

Remaining 

 Total 2015 

Budget 

 % Budget 

Remaining 

01‐0015‐1000 Lottery Licences 30                17                476               150                 276‐              200              ‐138%

01‐0017‐7220 Dog Tags and Kennel Licences 50                1,000           11,400         9,000             600              12,000        5%
01‐0015‐1260 Fence Viewer's Application ‐               ‐               ‐                ‐                  ‐               ‐               #DIV/0!
01‐0017‐7270 Septic Compliance Letter 75                83                525               750                 475              1,000          48%

Special Occasion Permit Letters ‐               13                100               113                 50                150              33%
Pool Enclosure Permit 700              233              4,200            2,100             1,400‐           2,800          ‐50%
Inspection Permit ‐ LCBO ‐               17                ‐                150                 200              200              100%

01‐0017‐7230 Municipal addressing signs 180              67                1,120            600                 320‐              800              ‐40%

01‐0015‐5240
Ontario Wildlife Damage 
Compensation ‐               125              1,089            1,125             411              1,500          27%

01‐0017‐7410 Guelph Humane Society Fees ‐               150              1,454            1,350             346              1,800          19%
01‐0015‐1250 Mobile Food Service ‐               ‐               ‐                ‐                  ‐               ‐               100%

01‐0015‐1270
Engineering, Environmental and Legal 
Fees Recovered 424              833              7,655            7,500             2,345           10,000        23%

01‐0015‐1280 Site Alteration Agreement ‐               167              3,090            1,500             1,090‐           2,000          ‐55%
01‐0015‐3744 By‐law ‐ Other Recoveries ‐               ‐               275               ‐                  275‐              #DIV/0!

Totals 1,459           2,704           31,384         24,338           1,066           32,450        3%

EXPENDITURES

Account  Description

 Curr Mnth 

Actual 

 Curr Mnth 

Budget   YTD Actual   YTD Budget 

 $ Budget 

Remaining 

 Total 2015 

Budget 

 % Budget 

Remaining 

01‐0140‐4000 FT Wages  2,582           2,238           20,601         20,143           6,256           26,857        23%
01‐0140‐4001 Per Diems ‐               167              1,354            1,500             646              2,000          32%
01‐0140‐4002 OT Wages  ‐               ‐               ‐                ‐                  ‐               ‐               #DIV/0!
01‐0140‐4100 FT Benefits  465              399              3,719            3,592             1,070           4,789          22%
01‐0140‐4102 Manulife Benefits 306              300              2,757            2,696             838              3,595          23%
01‐0140‐4103 WSIB 75                64                602               580                 171              773              22%
01‐0140‐4200 Office Supplies ‐               21                1                   188                 249              250              99%
01‐0140‐4208 Signage  397              108              804               975                 496              1,300          38%
01‐0140‐4303 Professional Fees ‐ Legal 661              1,250           41,363         11,250           26,363‐        15,000        ‐176%

01‐0017‐7280



 By‐law Financial Report ‐ September 2015

EXPENDITURES

Account  Description

 Curr Mnth 

Actual 

 Curr Mnth 

Budget   YTD Actual   YTD Budget 

 $ Budget 

Remaining 

 Total 2015 

Budget 

 % Budget 

Remaining 

01‐0140‐4305
Professional Fees ‐ Engineering & 
Environmental 3,291           1,479           19,609         13,313           1,859‐           17,750        ‐10%

01‐0140‐4308 Mileage ‐               38                315               338                 135              450              30%
01‐0140‐4309 Professional Development ‐               100              ‐                900                 1,200           1,200          100%
01‐0140‐4311 Membership and Subscription Fees ‐               52                180               465                 440              620              71%
01‐0140‐4312 Employee Travel ‐ Meals ‐               4                   ‐                38                   50                50                100%
01‐0140‐4313 Employee Travel ‐ Accomodations  ‐               21                ‐                188                 250              250              100%
01‐0140‐4316 Advertising ‐               83                ‐                750                 1,000           1,000          100%
01‐0140‐4319 Permits ‐               17                207               150                 7‐                   200              ‐4%
01‐0140‐4320 Contract Services ‐               403              3,127            3,630             1,713           4,840          35%
01‐0140‐4324 Livestock Loss  ‐               167              1,059            1,500             941              2,000          47%

Totals 7,777           6,910           95,698         62,194           12,774‐        82,925        ‐15%



 Public Works Financial Report ‐ September 2015

REVENUES
Account  Description  Curr Mnth 

Actual 

 Curr Mnth 

Budget 

 YTD Actual   YTD Budget   $ Budget 

Remaining 
 Total 2015 

Budget 

 % Budget 

Remaining 

01‐0015‐1290 Oversize‐Overweight Load Permits ‐               ‐                  ‐                  ‐                  ‐               ‐               #DIV/0!
01‐0015‐3310 Entrance Permit 225              188                 2,700              1,688              450‐              2,250           ‐20%
01‐0015‐3740 Roads Other Recoveries ‐               65                   999                 585                  219‐              780              ‐28%
01‐0015‐2000 Third Party Cost Recovery ‐               ‐                  ‐                  ‐                  ‐               ‐               #DIV/0!

01‐0015‐2100
Third Party Cost Recovery 
Administration Fee ‐               ‐                  ‐                  ‐                  ‐               ‐               #DIV/0!
Totals 225              253                 3,699              2,273              669‐              3,030           ‐22%

CONTRIBUTION FROM WORKING RESERVES
Account  Description  Curr Mnth 

Actual 

 Curr Mnth 

Budget 

 YTD Actual   YTD Budget   $ Budget 

Remaining 

 Total 2015 

Budget 

 % Budget 

Remaining 

01‐0013‐3170

Public Works Replacement and 
Restoration of Aging Infrastructure 
Working Reserve ‐               7,083              ‐                  49,583            85,000         85,000         100%
Totals ‐               7,083              ‐                  49,583            85,000         85,000         100%

EXPENDITURES
Account  Description  Curr Mnth 

Actual 

 Curr Mnth 

Budget 

 YTD Actual   YTD Budget   $ Budget 

Remaining 
 Total 2015 

Budget 

 % Budget 

Remaining 

01‐0030‐4000 FT Wages  33,486        31,041            268,705         279,369          103,787       372,492       28%
01‐0030‐4001 PT/Seasonal Wages ‐               1,503              31,835            13,531            13,794‐         18,041         ‐76%
01‐0030‐4002 OT Wages ‐               2,725              23,173            24,525            9,527           32,700         29%
01‐0030‐4100 FT Benefits  5,373           5,276              50,715            47,484            12,597         63,312         20%
01‐0030‐4101 PT/Seasonal Benefits  ‐               132                 2,767              1,188              1,183‐           1,584           ‐75%
01‐0030‐4102 Manulife Benefits 3,834           3,800              34,502            34,196            11,092         45,595         24%
01‐0030‐4103 WSIB 982              909                 9,574              8,177              1,329           10,903         12%
01‐0030‐4200 Office Supplies  ‐               42                   156                 375                  344              500              69%
01‐0030‐4201 Hydro 463              467                 5,135              4,200              466              5,600           8%
01‐0030‐4202 Heat ‐               470                 3,619              4,230              2,021           5,640           36%
01‐0030‐4203 Fuel 6,076           7,025              70,325            63,221            13,970         84,295         17%
01‐0030‐4205 Equipment Maintenance & Supplies ‐               171                 445                 1,538              1,606           2,050           78%



 Public Works Financial Report ‐ September 2015

EXPENDITURES
Account  Description  Curr Mnth 

Actual 

 Curr Mnth 

Budget 

 YTD Actual   YTD Budget   $ Budget 

Remaining 
 Total 2015 

Budget 

 % Budget 

Remaining 

01‐0030‐4208 Signage  14                833                 1,550              7,500              8,450           10,000         84%
01‐0030‐4209 Pavement Markings 11,407        2,467              11,407            22,200            18,193         29,600         61%
01‐0030‐4210 Railway Maintenance 1,220           6,667              5,623              60,000            74,377         80,000         93%
01‐0030‐4212 Maintenance Gravel ‐               6,667              69,920            60,000            10,080         80,000         13%
01‐0030‐4213 Calcium ‐               3,675              51,612            33,075            7,512‐           44,100         ‐17%
01‐0030‐4214 Winter Maintenance ‐               15,250            138,686         137,250          44,314         183,000       24%
01‐0030‐4217 Waste Removal ‐               125                 ‐                  1,125              1,500           1,500           100%
01‐0030‐4218 Shop Overhead 365              1,083              4,255              9,750              8,745           13,000         67%
01‐0030‐4219 Road Maintenance supplies ‐               3,117              18,416            28,050            18,984         37,400         51%
01‐0030‐4220 Vehicle Maintenance 4,601           3,833              23,902            34,500            22,098         46,000         48%
01‐0030‐4221 Speed Monitor ‐               42                   ‐                  375                  500              500              100%
01‐0030‐4224 Sidewalk Repairs ‐               417                 ‐                  3,750              5,000           5,000           100%
01‐0030‐4302 Communication(phone, fax, intern) 120              213                 1,471              1,918              1,086           2,557           42%
01‐0030‐4305 Professional Fees ‐ Engineering ‐               167                 1,473              1,500              527              2,000           26%
01‐0030‐4308 Mileage ‐               8                      81                   75                    19                 100              19%
01‐0030‐4309 Professional Development ‐               118                 991                 1,065              429              1,420           30%
01‐0030‐4311 Membership and Subscription Fees ‐               67                   787                 600                  13                 800              2%
01‐0030‐4312 Employee Travel ‐ Meals ‐               8                      85                   75                    15                 100              15%
01‐0030‐4315 Insurance ‐               7,417              9,422              66,755            79,585         89,006         89%
01‐0030‐4316 Advertising 238              63                   238                 563                  512              750              68%
01‐0030‐4318 Vehicle Plates ‐               564                 15                   5,079              6,757           6,772           100%
01‐0030‐4319 Permits ‐               83                   ‐                  750                  1,000           1,000           100%
01‐0030‐4320 Contract Services ‐               3,267              8,600              29,400            30,600         39,200         78%
01‐0030‐4321 Clothing, Safety Allowance 142              63                   285                 563                  465              750              62%
01‐0030‐4326 Bridge Inspections ‐               833                 4,110              7,500              5,890           10,000         59%
01‐0030‐4400 Street Lights: Repairs and Hydro Bills 4,011           3,863              34,775            34,763            11,575         46,350         25%

Totals 72,332        114,468         888,653         1,030,213      484,964       1,373,617   35%



 Parks Financial Report ‐ September 2015

REVENUES

Account  Description

 Curr Mnth 

Actual 

 Curr Mnth 

Budget 

 YTD 

Actual 

 YTD 

Budget 

 $ Budget 

Remaining 
 Total 2015 

Budget 

 % Budget 

Remaining 

01‐0015‐2200 Horse Paddock Rental ‐                ‐               ‐          ‐          ‐               ‐                #DIV/0!
01‐0015‐2300 Picnic Shelter 75                 8                  525         75           425‐              100               ‐425%

01‐0015‐2400
Aberfoyle/Morriston Ball Park/ Morriston 
Meadows ‐                83                1,022     750         22‐                1,000            ‐2%

01‐0015‐2500 Sports Facility User Fees ‐                980              13,195   8,824     1,430‐           11,765         ‐12%
Totals 75                 1,072          14,742   9,649     1,877‐           12,865         ‐15%

EXPENDITURES

Account  Description

 Curr Mnth 

Actual 

 Curr Mnth 

Budget 

 YTD 

Actual 

 YTD 

Budget 

 $ Budget 

Remaining 
 Total 2015 

Budget 

 % Budget 

Remaining 

01‐0110‐4000 FT Wages ‐ Parks ‐                2,083          6,077     18,744   18,915        24,992         76%
01‐0110‐4001 PT Wages ‐ Parks 1,787           510              4,845     4,590     1,275           6,120            21%
01‐0110‐4002 OT Wages ‐ Parks ‐                ‐               ‐          ‐          ‐               ‐                #DIV/0!
01‐0110‐4100 FT Benefits ‐ Parks ‐                198              550         1,784     1,828           2,379            77%
01‐0110‐4101 PT Benefits ‐ Parks 59                 45                189         403         348              537               65%
01‐0110‐4103 WSIB 51                 75                315         672         581              896               65%
01‐0110‐4203 Fuel ‐                183              ‐          1,650     2,200           2,200            100%
01‐0110‐4204 Water Protection ‐                167              65           1,500     1,935           2,000            97%
01‐0110‐4205 Equipment Maintenance and Supplies 39                 375              2,239     3,375     2,262           4,500            50%
01‐0110‐4220 Vehicle Maintenance ‐                42                ‐          375         500              500               100%
01‐0110‐4222 Outdoor Maintenance 568               833              6,137     7,500     3,863           10,000         39%
01‐0110‐4308 Mileage 324               42                324         375         176              500               35%
01‐0110‐4316 Advertising ‐                13                ‐          113         150              150               100%
01‐0110‐4320 Contract Services 1,811           1,725          13,372   15,525   7,328           20,700         35%

Totals 4,639           6,290          34,113   56,606   41,361        75,474         55%



 ORC Financial Report ‐ September 2015

REVENUES

Account  Description

 Curr Mnth 

Actual 

 Curr Mnth 

Budget 

 YTD 

Actual 

 YTD 

Budget 

 $ Budget 

Remaining 

 Total 2015 

Budget 

 % Budget 

Remaining 

01‐0015‐2600 Ice Rental ‐ Prime ‐                 3,167           34,103     28,500     3,897           38,000         10%
01‐0015‐2700 Ice Rental ‐ Non‐Prime ‐                 167              1,613        1,500        387              2,000           19%
01‐0015‐2800 Arena Summer Rentals 1,025             1,833           11,521     16,500     10,479         22,000         48%
01‐0015‐2900 Gymnasium Rental 936                1,000           10,921     9,000        1,079           12,000         9%
01‐0015‐3000 Rink Board and Ball Diamond Advertising ‐                 29                 1,050        263           700‐              350              ‐200%
01‐0015‐3100 ORC Drink Machine  63                   108              773           975           527              1,300           41%
01‐0015‐3735 Other Recoveries                             ‐                 42                 ‐            375           500              500              100%

Totals 2,025             6,346           59,982     57,113     16,168         76,150         21%

EXPENDITURES

Account  Description

 Curr Mnth 

Actual 

 Curr Mnth 

Budget 

 YTD 

Actual 

 YTD 

Budget 

 $ Budget 

Remaining 

 Total 2015 

Budget 

 % Budget 

Remaining 

01‐0080‐4000 FT Wages ‐ ORC 5,408             4,687           42,627     42,183     13,616         56,244         24%
01‐0080‐4001 PT Wages ‐ ORC 2,224             2,126           18,492     19,130     7,015           25,507         28%
01‐0080‐4002 OT Wages ‐ ORC ‐                 100              771           900           429              1,200           36%
01‐0080‐4100 FT Benefits ‐ ORC 985                830              7,890        7,467        2,067           9,956           21%
01‐0080‐4101 PT Benefits ‐ ORC 82                   187              825           1,680        1,415           2,239           63%
01‐0080‐4102 Manulife Benefits 621                612              5,532        5,510        1,814           7,346           25%
01‐0080‐4103 WSIB 221                199              1,818        1,792        571              2,389           24%
01‐0080‐4200 Office Supplies  147                25                 252           225           48                 300              16%
01‐0080‐4201 Hydro ‐                 1,827           18,701     16,447     3,228           21,930         15%
01‐0080‐4202 Heat ‐                 475              4,063        4,279        1,642           5,705           29%
01‐0080‐4203 Fuel ‐                 255              1,546        2,295        1,514           3,060           49%
01‐0080‐4204 Water Protection 15                   67                 261           600           539              800              67%
01‐0080‐4205 Equipment Maintenance & Supplies ‐                 1,083           1,134        9,750        11,866         13,000         91%
01‐0080‐4208 Signage  ‐                 17                 ‐            150           200              200              100%
01‐0080‐4215 Bldg‐Cleaning, Maint,Supplies Interior 759                833              5,475        7,500        4,525           10,000         45%
01‐0080‐4216 Drink Machine Supplies ‐                 42                 533           375           33‐                 500              ‐7%
01‐0080‐4217 Waste Removal 52                   50                 348           450           252              600              42%
01‐0080‐4222 Bldg‐Cleaning, Maint,Supplies Exterior 360                833              2,336        7,500        7,664           10,000         77%
01‐0080‐4302 Communication(phone, fax, intern) 161                195              1,560        1,755        780              2,340           33%



 ORC Financial Report ‐ September 2015

EXPENDITURES

Account  Description

 Curr Mnth 

Actual 

 Curr Mnth 

Budget 

 YTD 

Actual 

 YTD 

Budget 

 $ Budget 

Remaining 

 Total 2015 

Budget 

 % Budget 

Remaining 

01‐0080‐4305 Professional Fees ‐ Engineering ‐                 583              230           5,250        6,770           7,000           97%
01‐0080‐4308 Mileage ‐                 42                 ‐            375           500              500              100%
01‐0080‐4309 Professional Development 145                125              145           1,125        1,355           1,500           90%
01‐0080‐4311 Membership and Subscription Fees ‐                 13                 137           113           13                 150              8%
01‐0080‐4312 Employee Travel ‐ Meals ‐                 13                 ‐            113           150              150              100%
01‐0080‐4315 Insurance ‐                 1,287           7,358        11,584     8,087           15,445         52%
01‐0080‐4316 Advertising ‐                 42                 ‐            375           500              500              100%
01‐0080‐4320 Contract Services ‐                 29                 ‐            263           350              350              100%
01‐0080‐4321 Clothing Safety Allowance ‐                 13                 102           113           48                 150              32%

Totals 11,181           16,588         122,137   149,295   76,924         199,060       39%



 PCC Financial Report ‐ September 2015

REVENUES
Account  Description  Curr Mnth 

Actual 

 Curr Mnth 

Budget 

 YTD 

Actual 

 YTD 

Budget 

 $ Budget 

Remaining 
 Total 2015 

Budget 

 % Budget 

Remaining 

01‐0015‐3110 Archie MacRobbie Hall ‐ Prime 114              1,342           13,880     12,075     2,220           16,100        14%
01‐0015‐3115 Archie MacRobbie Hall ‐ Non‐Prime 207‐              642              8,117        5,775        417‐              7,700           ‐5%
01‐0015‐3130 Alf Hales Room 763‐              358              2,110        3,225        2,190           4,300           51%
01‐0015‐3160 Licensed Events Using Patio ‐               50                 110           450           490              600              82%
01‐0015‐3170 Commercial Rentals ‐               63                 750           563           ‐               750              0%
01‐0015‐3180 Bartenders 490              733              5,287        6,600        3,513           8,800           40%
01‐0015‐3190 Pop, Glasses, & Ice 365              233              1,284        2,100        1,516           2,800           54%
01‐0015‐3200 Kitchen Facilities ‐               283              1,285        2,550        2,115           3,400           62%
01‐0015‐3220 Advertising Sign 126‐              17                 63             150           137              200              69%
01‐0015‐3736 Other Recoveries                             2,152           100              2,551        900           1,351‐           1,200           ‐113%
01‐0015‐5250 Recreation Conditional Grants ‐               431              ‐            3,875        5,167           5,167           100%

Totals 2,026           4,251           35,438     38,263     15,579         51,017        31%

EXPENDITURES
Account  Description  Curr Mnth 

Actual 

 Curr Mnth 

Budget 

 YTD 

Actual 

 YTD 

Budget 

 $ Budget 

Remaining 
 Total 2015 

Budget 

 % Budget 

Remaining 

01‐0070‐4000 FT Wages ‐ Recreation 4,205           4,101           32,979     36,910     16,234         49,213        33%
01‐0070‐4001 PT Wages ‐ Recreation 1,938           2,917           24,404     26,250     10,596         35,000        30%
01‐0070‐4002 OT Wages ‐ Recreation ‐               34                 277           308           133              410              32%
01‐0070‐4100 FT Benefits ‐ Recreation 373              395              2,932        3,557        1,810           4,742           38%
01‐0070‐4101 PT Benefits ‐ Recreation 51                 256              637           2,305        2,436           3,073           79%
01‐0070‐4102 Manulife Benefits ‐ Recreation  903              897              8,126        8,070        2,635           10,761        24%
01‐0070‐4103 WSIB 178              203              1,718        1,828        719              2,437           30%
01‐0070‐4200 Office Supplies ‐               25                 96             225           204              300              68%
01‐0070‐4201 Hydro 2,684           1,843           16,364     16,590     5,756           22,120        26%
01‐0070‐4202 Heat 103              273              2,704        2,453        567              3,270           17%
01‐0070‐4203 Fuel ‐               42                 ‐            375           500              500              100%
01‐0070‐4204 Water Protection 528              425              2,231        3,825        2,869           5,100           56%
01‐0070‐4215 Bldg‐Cleaning, Maint,Supplies Interior 698              1,667           8,282        15,000     11,718         20,000        59%
01‐0070‐4216 Kitchen Supplies and Equipment 97                 417              2,180        3,750        2,820           5,000           56%
01‐0070‐4217 Waste Removal 208              200              1,558        1,800        842              2,400           35%



 PCC Financial Report ‐ September 2015

EXPENDITURES
Account  Description  Curr Mnth 

Actual 

 Curr Mnth 

Budget 

 YTD 

Actual 

 YTD 

Budget 

 $ Budget 

Remaining 
 Total 2015 

Budget 

 % Budget 

Remaining 

01‐0070‐4222 Outdoor Maintenance of Building 1,497           267              2,079        2,400        1,121           3,200           35%
01‐0070‐4302 Communication(phone, fax, intern) 195              250              2,201        2,250        799              3,000           27%
01‐0070‐4308 Mileage ‐               21                 296           188           46‐                 250              ‐18%
01‐0070‐4309 Professional Development ‐               63                 751           563           1‐                   750              0%
01‐0070‐4311 Membership and Subscription Fees ‐               19                 224           169           1                   225              1%
01‐0070‐4312 Employee Travel ‐ Meals ‐               13                 38             113           112              150              74%
01‐0070‐4313 Employee Travel ‐ Accomodations ‐               38                 299           338           151              450              34%
01‐0070‐4315 Insurance ‐               1,439           10,112     12,951     7,156           17,267        41%
01‐0070‐4316 Advertising ‐               292              376           2,625        3,124           3,500           89%
01‐0070‐4320 Contract Services 838              421              1,509        3,788        3,541           5,050           70%

Totals 14,497         16,514         122,373   148,627   75,797         198,169      38%



 Fire and Rescue Financial Report ‐ September 2015

REVENUES

Account  Description

 Curr Mnth 

Actual 

 Curr Mnth 

Budget 

 YTD Actual   YTD 

Budget 

 $ Budget 

Remaining 

 Total 2015 

Budget 

 % Budget 

Remaining 

01‐0015‐3241 Tent or Marquee Permit ‐                58                 ‐                525           700              700              100%
01‐0015‐3230 Open Burning Permit and Inspection 260               625               10,540         5,625        3,040‐           7,500           ‐41%
01‐0015‐3235 Burning Permit Violations ‐                171               3,280            1,538        1,230‐           2,050           ‐60%
01‐0015‐3245 Fire Extinguisher Training ‐                8                   ‐                68             90                 90                100%
01‐0015‐3260 Fireworks Permits ‐                33                 300               300           100              400              25%
01‐0015‐3210 Information/Fire Reports  ‐                38                 75                 338           375              450              83%
01‐0015‐3215 Other Recoveries ‐                208               5,824            1,875        3,324‐           2,500           ‐133%
01‐0015‐3270 Occupancy Load ‐                17                 ‐                150           200              200              100%
01‐0015‐3280 Fire Safety Plan Review ‐                30                 720               270           360‐              360              ‐100%
01‐0015‐3290 Post Fire Watch ‐                34                 ‐                308           410              410              100%
01‐0015‐3300 Boarding up or Barricading ‐                ‐                ‐                ‐            ‐               ‐               #DIV/0!
01‐0015‐3320 Key Boxes ‐                8                   100               75             ‐               100              0%
01‐0015‐3330 Inspections ‐                17                 100               150           100              200              50%
01‐0015‐3340 Motor Vehicle Emergency Responses 2,951            4,783            55,487         43,050     1,913           57,400        3%
01‐0015‐3350 Fire Alarm False Alarm Calls ‐                34                 410               308           ‐               410              0%
01‐0015‐3743 Fire Donations 3,521            ‐                4,221            ‐            4,221‐           #DIV/0!

Totals 6,733            6,064            81,058         54,578     8,288‐           72,770        ‐11%

EXPENDITURES

Account  Description

 Curr Mnth 

Actual 

 Curr Mnth 

Budget 

 YTD Actual   YTD 

Budget 

 $ Budget 

Remaining 

 Total 2015 

Budget 

 % Budget 

Remaining 

01‐0040‐4001 PT Wages ‐ Fire Dept 44,393         29,070         248,686       261,630   100,154       348,840      29%
01‐0040‐4101 PT Benefits ‐ Fire Dept 2,684            2,552            12,539         22,971     18,089         30,628        59%
01‐0040‐4102 Group Benefits 723               1,225            13,713         11,025     987              14,700        7%
01‐0040‐4103 WSIB 838               859               7,545            7,729        2,760           10,306        27%
01‐0040‐4200 Office Supplies  252               392               4,935            3,525        234‐              4,700           ‐5%
01‐0040‐4201 Hydro 648               404               4,812            3,634        33                 4,845           1%
01‐0040‐4202 Heat 17                 80                 1,194            717           239‐              955              ‐25%
01‐0040‐4203 Fuel ‐                922               ‐                8,299        11,065         11,065        100%
01‐0040‐4204 Water Protection 13                 13                 134               120           26                 160              16%
01‐0040‐4205 Equipment Maintenance & Supplies 2,511            1,508            24,075         13,575     5,975‐           18,100        ‐33%



 Fire and Rescue Financial Report ‐ September 2015

Account  Description

 Curr Mnth 

Actual 

 Curr Mnth 

Budget 

 YTD Actual   YTD 

Budget 

 $ Budget 

Remaining 

 Total 2015 

Budget 

 % Budget 

Remaining 

01‐0040‐4206 Oxygen & Medical Supplies ‐                258               3,325            2,325        225‐              3,100           ‐7%
01‐0040‐4207 Public Education ‐                317               3,955            2,850        155‐              3,800           ‐4%
01‐0040‐4215 Cleaning, Maint & supplies for Bldg 173               842               15,900         7,575        5,800‐           10,100        ‐57%
01‐0040‐4216 Kitchen Supplies and Equipment ‐                100               159               900           1,041           1,200           87%
01‐0040‐4217 Waste Removal ‐                33                 183               300           217              400              54%
01‐0040‐4220 Vehicle Maintenance 16                 2,083            19,420         18,750     5,580           25,000        22%
01‐0040‐4302 Communication(phone, fax, intern) 348               1,058            6,980            9,525        5,721           12,700        45%
01‐0040‐4308 Mileage 656               625               4,924            5,625        2,576           7,500           34%
01‐0040‐4309 Professional Development 826               1,583            13,697         14,250     5,303           19,000        28%
01‐0040‐4311 Membership and Subscription Fees ‐                230               2,795            2,067        39‐                 2,756           ‐1%
01‐0040‐4312 Employee Travel ‐ Meals ‐                58                 389               525           311              700              44%
01‐0040‐4313 Employee Travel ‐ Accomodations  90                 200               2,529            1,800        129‐              2,400           ‐5%
01‐0040‐4315 Insurance ‐                1,084            18,366         9,757        5,356‐           13,010        ‐41%
01‐0040‐4316 Advertising ‐                104               ‐                938           1,250           1,250           100%
01‐0040‐4319 Permits ‐                44                 471               394           54                 525              10%
01‐0040‐4320 Contract Services 696               2,133            17,088         19,200     8,512           25,600        33%
01‐0040‐4321 Clothing, Safety Allowance 20,488         2,562            31,071         23,055     331‐              30,740        ‐1%

Totals 75,373         50,340         458,884       453,061   145,196       604,081      24%



 Library Financial Report ‐ September 2015

REVENUES
Account  Description  Curr Mnth 

Actual 

 Curr Mnth 

Budget 

 YTD Actual   YTD 

Budget 

 $ Budget 

Remaining 
 Total 2015 

Budget 

 % Budget 

Remaining 

01‐0010‐4224 Library Costs Recovered from County ‐                172              ‐               1,545       2,060          2,060          100%
Totals ‐                172              ‐               1,545       2,060          2,060          100%

EXPENDITURES
Account  Description  Curr Mnth 

Actual 

 Curr Mnth 

Budget 

 YTD Actual   YTD 

Budget 

 $ Budget 

Remaining 
 Total 2015 

Budget 

 % Budget 

Remaining 

01‐0010‐4221 Library Rent for Historical society ‐                376              2,423           3,383       2,087          4,510          46%
01‐0010‐4223 Library Water Monitoring 207               146              1,256           1,313       494             1,750          28%

Totals 207               522              3,678           4,695       2,582          6,260          41%



 Badenoch Financial Report ‐ September 2015

REVENUES
Account  Description  Curr Mnth 

Actual 

 Curr Mnth 

Budget 

 YTD Actual   YTD 

Budget 

 $ Budget 

Remaining 

 Total 2015 

Budget 

 % Budget 

Remaining 

01‐0015‐3741 Badenoch Rental Revenue ‐                1                     10                   8               ‐                10                0%

Totals ‐                1                     10                   8               ‐                10                0%

EXPENDITURES
Account  Description  Curr Mnth 

Actual 

 Curr Mnth 

Budget 

 YTD Actual   YTD 

Budget 

 $ Budget 

Remaining 

 Total 2015 

Budget 

 % Budget 

Remaining 

01‐0150‐4200 Interior Maintenance Costs ‐                438                ‐                 3,938       5,250           5,250          100%
01‐0150‐4204 Water Protection ‐                5                     31                   49             34                 65                53%
01‐0150‐4320 Contract Services ‐                13                   ‐                 113           150               150              100%
01‐0150‐4325 Badenoch Comm Ctr Grant ‐                83                   1,000             750           ‐                1,000          0%

Totals ‐                539                1,031             4,849       5,434           6,465          84%



 Committees Financial Report ‐ September 2015

Recreation Committee

Account  Description  Curr Mnth 

Actual 

 Curr Mnth 

Budget 

 YTD Actual   YTD 

Budget 

 $ Budget 

Remaining 

 Total 2015 

Budget 

 % Budget 

Remaining 

01‐0075‐4001 Per Diems ‐                 348              1,567           3,135        2,613             4,180              63%
01‐0075‐4309 Professional Development ‐                 83                ‐               750            1,000             1,000              100%

Totals ‐                 432              1,567           3,885        3,613             5,180              70%

Heritage Committee

01‐0050‐4001 Per Diems ‐                 149              ‐               1,343        1,790             1,790              100%
01‐0050‐4200 Office Supplies & Equipment ‐                 21                33                188            217                250                 87%
01‐0050‐4308 Mileage ‐                 4                   ‐               38              50                  50                   100%
01‐0050‐4309 Professional Development ‐                 83                ‐               750            1,000             1,000              100%

Totals ‐                 258              33                2,318        3,057             3,090              99%

Planning and Development Advisory Committee

01‐0060‐4001 Per Diems ‐                 348              ‐               3,135        4,180             4,180              100%
01‐0060‐4308 Mileage ‐                 13                ‐               113            150                150                 100%
01‐0060‐4309 Professional Development ‐                 208              ‐               1,875        2,500             2,500              100%

Totals ‐                 569              ‐               5,123        6,830             6,830              100%

EXPENDITURES



 Expenses Financial Report ‐ September 2015

Department

 Curr Mnth 

Actual 

Operating 

Expenditures 

 Curr Mnth 

Budget 

Operating 

Expenditures 

 YTD Actual 

Operating 

Expenditures 

YTD Budget 

Operating 

Expenditures

 $ Budget 

Remaining 

 Total 2015 

Budget 

 % Budget 

Remaining 

Corporate  57,305                30,688                156,363              276,188              211,887              368,250      58%
Administration  29,149                39,203                312,566              352,831              157,875              470,441      34%
Council 9,502                   10,359                92,246                93,229                32,059                124,305      26%
Elections  ‐                       1,292                   15,208                11,625                292                      15,500        2%
Finance  43,440                48,967                477,273              440,700              110,328              587,601      19%
Building 29,028                30,304                251,089              272,736              112,560              363,648      31%
Source Water Protection ‐                       3,268                   2,587                   29,411                36,628                39,215        93%
Planning & Development 10,937                10,772                102,541              96,948                26,722                129,264      21%
By‐law 7,777                   6,910                   95,698                62,194                12,774‐                82,925        ‐15%
Public Works 72,332                114,468              888,653              1,030,213           484,964              1,373,617   35%
Parks 4,639                   6,290                   34,113                56,606                41,361                75,474        55%
Optimist Recreation Centre 11,181                16,588                122,137              149,295              76,924                199,060      39%
Puslinch Community Centre 14,497                16,514                122,373              148,627              75,797                198,169      38%
Fire and Rescue 75,373                50,340                458,884              453,061              145,196              604,081      24%
Library 207                      522                      3,678                   4,695                   2,582                   6,260           41%
Badenoch ‐                       539                      1,031                   4,849                   5,434                   6,465           84%
Committee ‐                       1,258                   1,600                   11,325                13,500                15,100        89%
Totals 365,368              388,281              3,138,039           3,494,531           1,521,336           4,659,375   33%



 Revenues Financial Report ‐ September 2015

Total Revenues
Department  Curr Mnth 

Actual 

Operating 

Revenues 

 Curr Mnth 

Budget 

Operating 

Revenues 

 YTD Actual 

Operating 

Revenues 

YTD Budget 

Operating 

Revenues

 $ Budget 

Remaining 

 Total 2015 

Budget 

 % Budget 

Remaining 

Corporate  246,226              84,757                805,911              762,815              211,175              1,017,086   21%
Administration  60                        259                      17,431                2,333                   14,321‐                3,110           ‐460%
Elections  ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐               #DIV/0!
Finance  1,632                   2,017                   19,702                18,150                4,498                   24,200        19%
Building 56,732                23,283                293,164              209,550              13,764‐                279,400      ‐5%
Source Water Protection ‐                       1,250                   15,000                11,250                ‐                       15,000        0%
Planning & Development 13,520                6,333                   103,677              57,000                27,677‐                76,000        ‐36%
By‐law 1,459                   2,704                   31,384                24,338                1,066                   32,450        3%
Public Works 225                      253                      3,699                   2,273                   669‐                      3,030           ‐22%
Parks 75                        1,072                   14,742                9,649                   1,877‐                   12,865        ‐15%
Optimist Recreation Centre 2,025                   6,346                   59,982                57,113                16,168                76,150        21%
Puslinch Community Centre 2,026                   4,251                   35,438                38,263                15,579                51,017        31%
Fire and Rescue 6,733                   6,064                   81,058                54,578                8,288‐                   72,770        ‐11%
Library ‐                       172                      ‐                       1,545                   2,060                   2,060           100%
Badenoch ‐                       1                           10                        8                           ‐                       10                0%
Committee ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐                       ‐               #DIV/0!
Totals 330,711              138,762              1,481,198           1,248,861           183,950              1,665,148   11%

Total Contributions from Working Reserves
Department  Curr Mnth 

Actual 

Operating 

Revenues 

 Curr Mnth 

Budget 

Operating 

Revenues 

 YTD Actual 

Operating 

Revenues 

YTD Budget 

Operating 

Revenues

 $ Budget 

Remaining 

 Total 2015 

Budget 

 % Budget 

Remaining 

Administration  ‐                       13,639                204                      122,747              163,458              163,662      100%
Building Surplus Reserve Fund ‐                       7,021                   ‐                       49,145                84,248                84,248        100%
Source Water Protection ‐                       2,018                   ‐                       14,125                24,215                24,215        100%
Public Works ‐                       7,083                   ‐                       49,583                85,000                85,000        100%
Totals ‐                       29,760                204                      235,600              356,921              357,125      100%





















 

 

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 

 
BY‐LAW NUMBER _____ 

 
A BY‐LAW TO AMEND BY‐LAW NUMBER 19/85, AS AMENDED, 

 BEING THE ZONING BY‐LAW OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 

 
WHEREAS, the Council of the Corporation of the Township of Puslinch deems it appropriate and in the 
public interest to amend By‐law No 19/85 pursuant to Section 34 of the Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990 as 
amended: 
 
NOW THEREFORE THE COUNCIL OF THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH ENACTS AS 

FOLLOWS: 

 
1. That Schedule ‘A’ to By‐law 19/85 is hereby amended by rezoning a portion of Part of Lot 16, 

Concession 7, as illustrated on Schedule ‘A’ of this By‐law as follows: 
i. From Agricultural (A) to the site specific (IND‐8) Zone. 
ii. From Agricultural (A) to Natural Environment (NE) Zone. 

 
2. That subsection 15 is amended to add the following site specific provision: 

 
IND‐8 (424 Maltby Road)  

Notwithstanding any provisions of this By‐law to the contrary, within the land zoned IND‐8 
on Schedule “A”  hereto, only the following uses are permitted:  
  
(i) Uses Permitted  

 building or contractors establishment 
 business office or professional office 
 dry industrial uses 
 medical office/medical clinic 
 research establishment/laboratory 
 self‐storage facility 
 service trades 
 tree nursery/commercial greenhouses  
 veterinarian’s clinic (no keeping of animals outdoors) 
 
Also permitted is an administration office, showroom, wholesale outlet, and other 
uses, buildings, and structures ancillary to an above listed permitted use. Uses or 
activities which contravene the provisions of subsection 3(22) are prohibited. 

 
 



 

 

(ii) Special Zone Requirements 

 Outdoor storage areas shall only be located to the rear of a permitted main 
building and not be visible from a public road or adjacent properties. Unless 
otherwise provided for in this section, outdoor storage areas shall be in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 3 (General Provisions) of the Zoning 
By‐law. 

 
 The establishment of the NE zone for the land surrounding the land zoned 

IND‐8, includes the natural heritage features and the approved associated 
buffer areas. Accordingly, the setback provisions of Section 3(25) do not apply 
to the land zoned IND‐8. 

 
 Unless otherwise provided above, all applicable provisions of Zoning By‐law 

19/85, as amended, shall apply to the IND‐8 Zone. 
 

3. That SECTION 2 – DEFINITIONS, is amended with the addition of the following new definition 
and the subsequent renumbering of Section 2: 
 
(169) “SELF‐STORAGE FACILITY” means a building or group of buildings containing separate 

storage spaces, of similar or varying sizes, available for lease or rent, for the temporary 
storage of business, commercial, or personal goods and properties. 

 
4. That the subject land as shown on Schedule ‘A’ to this By‐law shall be subject to all applicable 

regulations of Zoning By‐law 19/85, as amended. 
 

5. This By‐law shall become effective from the date of passage by Council and come into force in 
accordance with the requirements of the Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990, as amended. 

 
 

READ THREE TIMES AND FINALLY PASSED  
THIS ____ DAY OF ______________, 2015. 
 

 
____________________________ 
Dennis Lever, Mayor 

 
 

___________________________ 
Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk 

 
   



 

 

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 

 
EXPLANATION OF BY‐LAW NO. _____ 

 

By‐law Number _______ amends the Township of Puslinch Zoning By‐law19/85 by rezoning part of Lot 
16, Concession 7 from the current Agricultural (A) Zone to a site specific Industrial (IND‐8) Zone and 
Natural Environment (NE) Zone as shown on Schedule ‘A’ of this By‐law. 
 
The purpose of this Zoning By‐law Amendment is to: 

 Implement the policies of the Rural Employment Areas designation of the County of 
Wellington Official Plan; 

 Introduce site specific permitted uses and special provisions; 
 Provide a specific definition of “Self‐Storage Facility”; 
 Add further land to the existing Natural Environment (NE) Zone as determined through a 

detailed study of the on‐site environmental features. 
   



 

 

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 

SCHEDULE ‘A’ 
 

 
 



COUNTY OF WELLINGTON  
PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT ADMINISTRATION CENTRE 
GARY A. COUSINS, M.C.I.P., DIRECTOR 74 WOOLWICH STREET 
TEL: (519) 837-2600  GUELPH, ONTARIO 
FAX: (519) 823-1694 N1H 3T9 
1-800-663-0750 
 

August 20, 2014 
 
Karen Landry, CAO/Clerk 
Township of Puslinch 
7404 Wellington Road 34 
Guelph, ON N1H 6H9 
 
Dear Ms. Landry: 
 
Re: Zoning By-law Amendment – Application D14/PER 
 Part Lot 16, Concession 7, Township of Puslinch 
 424 Maltby Road – Persian Investments Limited 
 Proposed Industrial Development 

   
We have received a copy of the Notice of Public Meeting regarding the above-referenced application and provide the 
following comments for Council’s consideration. 
 
Purpose of the Zone Change 
The purpose of this zone change application is to 
permit the development of a portion of the subject 
land for industrial purposes. If approved, an 
industrial zoning would provide for the 
establishment of dry industrial uses and a limited 
amount of service commercial uses (i.e. uses that 
do not require significant consumption of water or 
generate significant quantities of effluent). Natural 
areas on the property (identified as part of the 
County OP Greenlands and zoned Natural 
Environment) will remain unchanged. 
 
At this time, an application to sever the proposed 
industrial lands from the balance of the subject 
property (designated Secondary Agricultural) has 
not been filed. It is our understanding that the 
owners wish to proceed with a rezoning application 
and continue to market the property for potential 
development. If it is necessary to subdivide the property as a result of a purchaser’s industrial proposal, an application 
for consent will be filed at that time. 
 
County Official Plan 
According to Schedule A7 – PUSLINCH, the Official Plan designation for the subject 42 hectare (104 ac) property is 
SECONDARY AGRICULTURAL, RURAL INDUSTRIAL, CORE GREENLANDS and GREENLANDS. The area proposed for 
industrial zoning is approximately 13 hectares (32 acres) and is within the RURAL INDUSTRIAL, CORE GREENLANDS and 
GREENLANDS designations. This area of the property is situated on the western end of the property with frontage along 
Concession Road 7 and Maltby Road. This area of land is currently zoned Agricultural and Natural Environment Zone. 
 



County of Wellington Planning and Development Department    August 20, 2014 
Persian Investments Ltd. (D14/PER)  2 

  
The RURAL INDUSTRIAL designated lands at Maltby Road and Highway 6 are also subject to the policies of Section 9.8.3 
of the County Official Plan referred to as the “Puslinch Industrial Policy”. These special policies establish the Highway 6 
(Hanlon Expressway) area as a secondary industrial area (after the 401/Wellington Road 46 industrial/commercial 
corridor). It also gives the east side of the Hanlon priority of development over the west side lands. The policy limits land 
fragmentation pending review and approval of a detailed concept plan is developed in cooperation with the City of 
Guelph. A preliminary meeting with City staff to discuss the development of the subject land was held in June 2012. 
 
The policies of Section 9.8.3 together with the policies of the Rural Industrial designation support the development of a 
range of industrial land uses and various service-oriented commercial land uses. The policies promote those land uses 
which generally require or benefit from sites with access to major roads and locations that provide large rural sites. 
Complementary commercial uses such as restaurants, professional offices, and automotive uses are also encouraged. 
 
Development Concept 
It is proposed that the development of the subject land be located on the southwestern part of the property outside of 
the Greenlands system. The areas that are currently zoned Natural Environment (NE) Zone at this location are to remain 
unchanged. Development setbacks to the natural heritage features are to provide additional environmental protection. 
Site services are individual and private water supply and sewage treatment systems. The proponent has not secured a 
specific industrial tenant or end user at this time. Instead, a development concept has been prepared and a suggested 
list of land uses have been proposed in a draft amending by-law prepared by their consulting planners.  
 
Technical Studies and Reports 
Technical studies have been submitted by the proponent and include: planning, functional servicing, environmental, 
geotechnical, and hydrogeological. Comments filed by the Grand River Conservation Authority, dated July 22, 2014, 
indicate that additional review and site verification is required by the applicant. County staff has reviewed the Planning 
Justification Report prepared by the GSP Group and we are generally satisfied with the conclusions. However, the report 
has not addressed agricultural impacts and more specifically compatibility regarding livestock buildings (minimum 
distance separation requirements). Further, a cultural heritage and archaeological assessment has not been prepared as 
required by Provincial and County planning policy. 
 
Outstanding Technical Concerns 
We would recommend that the applicant: follow-up with additional environmental assessment as required by the 
Conservation Authority in their July 22, 2014 letter; address the matters we have noted above; and respond to any 
comments or concerns raised at the public meeting by Council, the public, and peer review comments (at the time of 
writing this report, comments from the Township’s peer reviewer were not available). We would also recommend that 
County staff and the Township’s ecologist review the woodland boundary on the property as suggested by the GRCA. 
 
We trust that these initial comments are of assistance to the Township. This office will provide supplementary 
comments following our review of any other written submissions and the resolution of outstanding matters. 
 
Yours truly, 

 
Aldo L. Salis, M.Sc., MCIP, RPP 
Manager of Development Planning 
 
cc. G. Scheifele, GWS 
 N. Garland, GRCA 



1 
 

REPORT PD-2015-026 

 

TO:   Mayor and Members of Council 
 
FROM:  Robert Kelly, Chief Building Official 
 
MEETING DATE: October 21, 2015 
  
SUBJECT: Conditional Building Permit Agreement - Release of Securities – 

Jeffrey Born and Vicki Dickson – Con 10 PT Lot 15 RP 61R5385 
Part 2 PT - 4614 Concession 11, Puslinch  

 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

That Report PD-2015-026 Conditional Building Permit Agreement release of securities - 
Jeffrey Born and Vicki Dickson – Con 10 PT Lot 15 RP 61R5385 Part 2 PT - 4614 
Concession 11, Puslinch be received; and 

That Council approves the release of the securities in the amount of $20,000.00. 

DISCUSSION 

Purpose 

The subject property 4614 Concession 11 is an agricultural property that is an active 
farm.  The owners of the property redeveloped their residence by building an addition to 
their dwelling, then demolishing the former dwelling and replacing it with an attached 
garage.  The property has a livestock operation and the owners had to remain on site 
during the construction of their new dwelling.  The site is located on the west side of 
Concession Rd 11, North of Maltby Rd.  It has a lot area of approximately 22.5 
Hectares.   

The applicant is requesting Council grant the release of the securities held in the 
amount of: 

• Security  $20,000.00 
 

Background 

The applicant sought to obtain a building permit for an addition to their single family 
dwelling.  During the review of the building permit application, it was determined that 
although the application was for an addition, the subject construction would constitute a 
second dwelling; thus creating a zoning conflict during construction.   



2 
 

 
The conditional building permit agreement required the applicant to: 
 

• Post security in the amount of $20,000.00 for the purposes noted in the financial 
implications section of this Report 

• To obtain before occupancy and not later than October 28, 2015 all approvals 
prerequisite to the issuance of a building permit 

• To remove the “Subject Construction” and restore the lands by December 31, 
2015, if all necessary approvals have not been obtained by October 28, 2015  

• To only occupy one dwelling during the subject construction 
• To register the agreement on title to the lands at their cost 

 
The work has all been completed to the Township Building Department’s satisfaction. 
 
Conditional Building Permit Agreement 

 
The Townships Building Enforcement Inspector has confirmed that the work has been 
completed in accordance with the approved plans. 
 
Applicable Legislation and Requirements 

Township of Puslinch Zoning By-law 19/85 
Building Code Act 1992 
 
Attachments 

None 

 
 



REPORT PW-2015-004 

 

TO:  Mayor and Members of Council 

FROM: Don Creed, Director of Public Works and Parks 

DATE:  October 21, 2015 

SUBJECT: Costing of Paved Shoulders and Edge Line Painting 
 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

That Report PW-2015-004 regarding Costing of Paved Shoulders and Edge Line 

Painting be received. 

 

DISCUSSION 

Purpose 

The purpose of Report PW-2015-004 is to provide Council with a cost estimate for 

including paved shoulders and edge line painting for future capital projects. 

Background  

Council held a special meeting on December 22, 2014 for the purpose of setting goals 

and objectives for the 2014 – 2018 Council term. The following information being 

provided was one of the goals and objectives identified in this meeting. 

 

Cost Estimates for Paved Shoulders and Edge Line Painting 

Currently paved roads have an asphalt width of between 6.5 and 7 metres, most of 

these roads have room for up to an additional .5 metre of asphalt on each side of the 

roadway. The cost for the extra .5 meters per side is estimated at $13,000.00 per 

kilometre of road. Edge line painting would cost an additional $595.00 per kilometre and 

would require re-painting on an annual or biannual basis. 

Total cost is $13,595.00 per kilometre. 

 



 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

Funding would be required through the approval of the budget for future capital road 

projects. 

APPLICABLE LEGISLATION AND REQUIREMENTS 

Not Applicable 



REPORT PW-2015-005 

TO: Mayor and Members of Council 

FROM: Don Creed, Director of Public Works and Parks 

DATE:  October 21, 2015 

SUBJECT: Authorizing Speed Limits By-Law 53/12 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

That Report PW-2015-005 regarding Authorizing Speed Limits By-Law 53/12 be 

received; and 

That Council enact a By-law to extend the current 60 km/hr speed zone easterly by 1.2 

km on Concession 1 in Crieff and to repeal By-law 53/12; and 

That staff provide a copy of Authorizing Speed Limits By-law to the Ontario Provincial 

Police. 

DISCUSSION 

Purpose 

The purpose of this Report is to seek approval from Council to repeal By-Law 53/12 and 

enact a consolidated by-law that includes a change in the current distance of the 60 

km/hr speed zone on Concession 1 in Crieff.  

Concession 1- Creiff 

Concession 1 in Crieff currently has a 60 km/hr speed, residents to the east of the 

current speed zone have expressed concerns regarding safety and have formally 

requested for the speed zone extension. The Transportation of Canada Guidelines for 

Speed Limits recommends the extension to the current speed zone. Staff recommends 

granting the request made by the residents in the area to extend the current 60 km/hr 

speed zone by 1.2 km to the east.  



Financial Implications 

The costs associated with implementing the change to the current speed zone is 

estimated at $700.00 for signage and will be funded from account 01-0030-4208 – 

Signage 

Applicable Legislation and Requirements 

Section 128 of the Highway Traffic Act authorizes the council of a municipality to pass a 

by-law to prescribe a rate of speed different from the rate set out in the legislation that is 

not greater than 100 km/hr and may prescribe different rates of speed for different times 

of day. 

The Highway Traffic Act prescribes that the rate of speed is: 

 50 km/hr on a highway within a local municipality or within a built-up area

 80 km/hr on a highway not within a built-up area that is within a local municipality

that had the status of a Township on December 31, 2002 and, but for the

enactment of the Municipal Act, 2001,  would have had the status of a Township

on January 1, 2003, if the municipality is prescribed by regulation.

Attachments 

1. TAC Automated Speed Limit Guidelines Form

2. Letter of request from the residents of the area on Concession 1



Schedule  "A" to Report PW-2015-005 



Schedule "B" to Report PW-2015-005 






	2015 10 21 - Council Agenda 
	2015 09 29- Special Council  Meeting - Community Based Strategic Plan
	2015 09 30 - Budget Meeting Minutes
	2015 10 07- Regular Meeting
	Notice of Public Meeting - Glenn and Yvonne Frosh - D14-FRO - October 21, 2015
	Report PD-2015-025 - Information Report - Rezoning Application File D14FRO Glenn and Yvonne Frosch co Robert and Lisa Frosh, Concession Gore - 6525 Concession 1
	Notice of Public Meeting & Open House - Community Improvement Plan - Nov 5, 2015
	Communications 
	Item 6.1(a) 
	Item 6.2(a)
	Item 6.2(b)
	Item 6.2(c)
	Item 6.2(d)
	Item 6.3(a)
	Item 6.3(b)
	Item 6.3(c)
	Item 6.3(d)
	Item 6.3(e)
	Item 6.3(f)
	Item 6.4(a)
	Item 6.4(b)
	Item 6.4(c)
	Item 6.4(d)
	Item 6.4(e)
	Item 6.4(f)
	Item 6.4(g)
	Item 6.4(h)
	Item 6.4(i)
	Item 6.4(j)
	Item 6.4(k)
	Item 6.4(l)
	Item 6.4(m)
	Item 6.5(a)
	Item 6.6(a)
	Item 6.7(a)

	Intergovernmental Items
	IG#1
	IG#2
	IG#3
	IG#4
	IG#5
	IG#6
	IG#7
	IG#8
	IG#9

	Item 7.2(a) - Municipal Class Environmental Assessment for Niska Road Improvements - Presenation R.J. Burnside and Associates and City of Guelph 
	Item 7.2(a)(i) Niska Road Cultural Heritage Landscape Addendum report
	Item 7.2(a)(ii) City of Guelph Heritage Committee and River Systems Advisory Committee resolutions
	Puslinch Fire and Rescue Services Response Report - September 2015
	Financial Reports - September 2015
	Item 8.2(a)(i) - Financial Report as of September 2015
	Item 8.2(a)(ii) - Cheque Register
	Item 8.2(a)(iii) - Financial Report - September 2015 - Department Summaries
	Item 8.2(a)(iv) -  Expenditures
	Item 8.2(a)(iv) - Revenues & Contributions to Working Reserves

	Reports
	Chief Building Official Report - September 2015
	Item 8.4(b) - County of Wellington Planning and Development Department regarding Zoning By-law Amendment - Application D14/PER, Part Lot 16, Concession 7, Township of Puslinch, 424 Maltby Road - Persian Investments Limited Proposed Industrial Development with attachments dated October 14, 2015
	424 Maltby Road - Draft Amending By-law Oct 14 2015
	Public Meeting Comments 424 Maltby Rd Aug 20 2014

	Report PD-2015-026 - Conditional Building Permit Agreement  Release of Securities - Jeffrey Born and Vicki Dickson – Con 10 PT Lot 15 RP 61R5385 Part 2 PT - 4614 Concession 11, Puslinch
	Report PW-2015-004 - Costing of Paved Shoulders and Edge Line Painting
	Report PW-2015-005 - Authorizing Speed Limits By-Law 53-12



